
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Enterprise, Employment & Major Projects 
Cabinet Member Meeting 

Date: 15 June 2010 

Time: 5.00pm or at the conclusion of the Culture, 
Recreation and Tourism CMM, plus 15 
minutes break (will not meet earlier than 
5.00pm)  

Venue Committee Room 3, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillor: 
Fallon-Khan (Cabinet Member) 

   

Contact: Penny Jennings 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291065 
penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout 
 

Public 
Speaker 

Lawyer  Councillor 
Kemble 

Director 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Members in Attendance 

Officers in Attendance 

Press 

Public Seating 

Member 
Speaker 

Opposition 
Spokesperson 

Green 

Opposition 
Spokesperson 

Labour 
 

Opposition 
Spokesperson 

Lib Dem 



ENTERPRISE, EMPLOYMENT & MAJOR PROJECTS CABINET MEMBER MEETING 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

1. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(b) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the 
public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1 - 4 

 Minutes if the Meeting held on 26 January 2010 (copy attached).  
 

3. CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

4. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION  

 (a) Items reserved by the Cabinet Member 

(b) Items reserved by the Opposition Spokespersons 

(c) Items reserved by Members, with the agreement of the Cabinet 
Member. 

NOTE: Public Questions, Written Questions from Councillors, Petitions, 
Deputations, Letters from Councillors and Notices of Motion will be 
reserved automatically. 

 

 

5. PETITIONS  

 No petitions have been received by the date of publication. 
 

 

 

6. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of public questions is 12 noon   



ENTERPRISE, EMPLOYMENT & MAJOR PROJECTS CABINET MEMBER MEETING 

 
 

on 9 June2010) 
 
No public questions have been received by the date of publication. 

 

7. DEPUTATIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of deputations is 12 noon on 9 June 2010) 
 
No deputations have been received by the date of publication. 

 

 

8. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No letters have been received. 
 

 

 

9. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No written questions have been received.  
 

10. NOTICES OF MOTIONS  

 No Notices of Motion have been received by the date of publication. 
 

 

 

11. UPDATE ON WORK OF CITY EMPLOYMENT INITIATIVES TEAM 5 - 10 

 Report of the Director of Housing Culture and Enterprise (copy attached). 
 
Contact Officer: Joe Davenport            Tel: 29-3930 
Wards Affected:All  
 

 

 

12. INTERIM WORK AND SKILLS PLAN 11 - 98 

 Report of the Director of Housing, Culture and Enterprise (copy attached). 
 
Contact Officer: Cheryl Finella            Tel: 29-1095 
Wards Affected: All 

 

 

13. CREATIVE INDUSTRIES UPDATE : CREATIVE INDUSTRIES SECTOR 
: NEW ENGLAND HOUSE CONSULTATION 

99 - 120 

 Report of Director of Housing, Culture and Enterprise (copy attached). 
 
Contact Officer :Paula Murray           Tel:29-2536 
Ward Affected: 

 

 

14. PRESENTATION BY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  

 
 



ENTERPRISE, EMPLOYMENT & MAJOR PROJECTS CABINET MEMBER MEETING 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Penny Jennings, 
(01273 291065), email penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 

 

Date of Publication - Monday, 7 June 2010 

 

 





 

 
 

ENTERPRISE  
EMPLOYMENT &  
MAJOR PROJECTS 
CABINET MEMBER 
MEETING 

Agenda Item 2 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council  

 
BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 

 
ENTERPRISE, EMPLOYMENT & MAJOR PROJECTS CABINET MEMBER MEETING 

 
11.30am 26 JANUARY 2010 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: Councillor Kemble (Cabinet Member) 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Randall 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

34. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
34a Declarations of Interests 
 
34.1 There were none 
 
34b Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
34.2 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act), the 

Cabinet Member for Enterprise, Employment and Major Projects considered whether the 
press and public should be excluded from the meeting during an item of business on the 
grounds that it was likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the 
nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press and public were present during 
that item, there would be disclosure to them of confidential information (as defined in 
section 100A (3) of the Act) or exempt information (as defined in section 100I(I) of the 
Act). 

 
34.3 RESOLVED – that the press and public be not excluded from the meeting.  
 
35. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

1



 

 

ENTERPRISE, EMPLOYMENT & MAJOR PROJECTS CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

26 JANUARY 
2010 

35.1 RESOLVED – That the minutes held on 8 December 2009 be agreed and signed by the 
Cabinet Member subject to an amendment to Item 24.1 as follows:  The last sentence 
should read “The Head of Culture & Economy reported that a detailed report had 
already been submitted to the Economy Task Force and would be made available to 
Councillor Turton.”  

 
36. CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Vacant Retail Premises   
 
36.1 The Cabinet Member reported that he had been interviewed by the BBC regarding 

vacant retail premises in the city.   
 

Apprenticeship Strategy  
 
36.2 The Cabinet Member reported that he had been interviewed by Meridian TV regarding 

the citywide Apprenticeship Strategy.  The Strategy was to be launched on Wednesday 
27 January at 5.30pm at the Brighton Dome.  Councillor Randall would receive a copy of 
the strategy. 

 
37. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION 
 
26.1 All items were reserved for discussion. 
 
38. PETITIONS 
 
38.1 There were none.   
 
39. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
39.1 There were none.   
 
40. DEPUTATIONS 
 
40.1 There were none.   
 
41. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
41.1 There were none.   
 
42. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
42.1 There were none.   
 
43. NOTICES OF MOTIONS 
 
43.1 There were none.   
 
44. EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY AD HOC PANEL ON ENVIRONMENTAL 

INDUSTRIES 

2



 

 

ENTERPRISE, EMPLOYMENT & MAJOR PROJECTS CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

26 JANUARY 
2010 

 
44.1 The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Director of Culture and Enterprise which 

outlined the Executive response to the Ad Hoc Scrutiny Panel on Environmental 
Industries established in November 2008 by the Culture and Enterprise Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (for copy see minutes book).    

 
44.2 The ad-hoc scrutiny panel had comprised of Councillors Randall (Chair), Davis and 

Harmer-Strange.  Over a six month period the Panel interviewed 25 witnesses 
representing 21 organisations.  The report outlined 7 major recommendations.   

 
44.3 Councillor Randall thanked officers for their help with this work, in particular the Director 

of Culture and Enterprise, the Head of Culture and Economy and the Scrutiny Team.   
He also thanked outside agencies.  Councillor Randall was very pleased the 
administration was supporting the recommendations and stressed that the process had 
been non-political.   

 
44.4 The Cabinet Member thanked Councillor Randall and the other Panel members.  On 

behalf of the administration, he was happy to accept all the recommendations made by 
the Panel.   

 
44.5 The Head of Culture and Economy reported that in addition to the ad-hoc scrutiny 

panel’s seven recommendations, officers had added one more recommendation to 
fundraise.  This would be added to the job specification of the lead officer for 
environmental industries.  Officers were supportive of the minor recommendations made 
by the panel.  The need to carry out an audit would now be moved higher up on the 
agenda.   

 
44.6 It was agreed that it would be appropriate for the report to be submitted to the Cabinet 

Member for Central Services in order for him to consider the procurement issue 
highlighted at paragraph 3.3.7 of the report.  It was noted that the Culture and Enterprise 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee would refer the report together with the Executive 
response to full council for information. 

 
44.7 RESOLVED – Having considered the information and the reasons set out in the report, 

the Cabinet Member accepted the following recommendations. 
 
(1) That the Ad Hoc Scrutiny Panel on Environmental Industries be congratulated on the 

detailed and well informed work undertaken to produce their report. 
 

(2) That officers be mandated to implement the service changes needed to accommodate 
the major recommendations of the Scrutiny report as outlined in the body of the CMM 
report. 

 
(3) That there be an update on the implementation of the recommendations in 12 months. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 11.42am 
 
 

 

3



 

 

ENTERPRISE, EMPLOYMENT & MAJOR PROJECTS CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

26 JANUARY 
2010 

Signed 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member  

Dated this day of  
 
 

 

4



ENTERPRISE 

EMPLOYMENT & 

MAJOR PROJECTS 

CABINET MEMBER 
MEETING 

Agenda Item 11 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: Update on work of City Employment Initiatives Team 

Date of Meeting: 15th June 2010 

Report of: Director of Housing, Culture and Enterprise 

Contact Officer: Name:  Joe Davenport Tel: 293930 

 E-mail: joe.davenport@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1.  SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 This report is to highlight key elements of the work that the council is leading 

in terms of tacking unemployment and creating a diverse workforce that 
reflects the community in which it serves  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 To note the work of the City Employment Initiatives team particularly in terms of 

reducing youth unemployment and supporting the needs of disadvantaged 
communities in the city. 
 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
  
3.1 The City Employment Initiatives Team began in July 2008 by employing one 

member of staff to deliver the Local Employment Partnership. It moved over to the 
Culture & Enterprise Directorate in May 2009 and has expanded to take on board a 
wider range of initiatives designed to tackle unemployment. 

 
3.2 Entirely externally funded, it currently consists of 14 members of staff, and 

operates out of 3 offices across the city. 
 
3.3 Local Employment Partnership 

The Local Employment Partnership programme was originally established to 
achieve a target of 80 local residents placed into sustainable council jobs, with 

5



 

 

support.  To date, the team have actually supported the achievement of 141 
job placements for local disadvantaged residents, with only 2 people not 
achieving a least 6 months in a wide range of roles. 

 
 
 
3.4 Apprenticeships and Work Experience 

The team took over responsibility for Council Apprenticeships in November 
2008 alongside work experience for schools, and launched the citywide 
strategy in January 2010.  Figuring in the ten pledges made by the Leader of 
the Council in 2009, the continued support and development of 
apprenticeships in the city is a priority and a scheme that can deliver benefits 
for individuals and businesses.   
 
Work experience has sat in the CEI team also since November 2008 and has 
increased from 25 opportunities last year to over 50 opportunities this year.  
Focussed on year 10 school pupils, work experience is a vital part of career 
planning.  It can provide the opportunity for pupils to experience a preferred 
job role, to gain a better understanding of that role and whether it is a path 
they wish to go down. This can be an important deciding factor as to which 
education path is subsequently chosen. 
 
For the future, this co-ordination role might sit more appropriately with 
Children and Young People’s Trust and the Business Education Partnership. 
 

3.5 Futures Jobs Fund 
In May 2009, the team put in a bid to the Department of Work & Pensions for 
the Futures Jobs Fund and was successful in September, with programme 
delivery starting in October 2009.  In December 2009, a joint national bid for 
the same fund was written and submitted in partnership with New Deal of the 
Mind to deliver a futures jobs fund scheme for creative and cultural industries. 
This was successful in February 2010, with £1 million allocated to Brighton & 
Hove City Council. 

 
With the successful bids of both the local and national programmes, the 
council will create an additional 730 jobs by March 2011. This equates into a 
value of £4.75 million, and alongside the apprenticeship programme aims to 
support the reduction of youth unemployment by 50%.  
 
To date the programme has created 224 additional job opportunities across 
the city in a number of wide ranging and innovative roles. 50% of the roles 
have been match funded into year long opportunities, with either an 
apprenticeship or NVQ qualification being provided free of charge by its main 
partner, City College Brighton & Hove. This includes 70 apprenticeships that 
were recently created in the NHS. 
 
Part of the scheme has been the creation of a special careers centre the ‘e-
centre’ for participants in the Futures Jobs Fund.  This is a small scale 
premise in the city centre for young people coming to the end of their Futures 
Jobs Fund role where there is careers advice and guidance and information 

6



 

 

on job opportunities.  The atmosphere is professional and modern and the 
resource is targeted at those young people who have just successfully 
completed their Futures Jobs Fund role.  As one of our major partners, Jobs 
Centre Plus have seconded a member of staff to act as the centre manager 
for the duration of the scheme, with a background in employer relations. 
 
With the change in government, there may be a change to this programme in 
the short to medium term.  However, the commitment to funding the existing 
programme stands. 

 
3.6 City Futures Jobs Fair 

In 2009, in partnership with Jobcentre Plus, the council put together a new 
annual jobs fair called City Futures, to bring together employers and potential 
employees in one area, and promote a business as usual feel to the city 
during a time of recession.  The event was very well attended with around 
1,200 participants and a dynamic atmosphere, with workshops on recruitment 
very well attended.  For 2010, the event is set to be bigger, with a current total 
of 30 employers attending advertising around 1,000 jobs plus 24 training 
provider organisations.  

 
3.7 The City Employment Initiatives Team Manager also plays a key role in terms 

of advice and guidance at a regional and national level that feeds into the 
shaping of programmes. 

 
3.8 Looking to the future, the team is currently lead partner of writing a £1 million 

INTERREG bid for a Graduate & Apprenticeship Placement Scheme. Given 
the constraints on public finance and the projected cuts to local authority, the 
need to source external funds for programme delivery are increasingly 
important. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 There has been consultation with the Executive Member for Enterprise and Major 

Projects and senior officers. 
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 Financial Implications: 
 All actions proposed in this executive response are within the scope of current 

grant funding to March 2011 but new commitments are restricted until financial 
risks are fully assessed in line with Cabinet recommendations in the light of 
potential grant cuts.  Any additional activity would need to be subject to additional 
external funding raised. Government funding from April 2011 is uncertain and 
medium and longer term plans will be dependent on confirmation of funding.  

 
Finance Officer Consulted: Anne Silley Date:     01/06/10  

 
5.2 Legal Implications: 

7



 

 

There are no legal implications arising from this report save for the final form of the 
documentation relating to the funding for the New Deal of the Mind, which is a 
registered charity and a company limited by guarantee. 

  
 Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce    Date:    01/06/10 
 
 
 
5.3 Equalities Implications:  

Job creation schemes such as the Futures Jobs Fund would prioritise those in 
long term unemployment and skills development opportunities would be 
accessible to a full range of people including those facing barriers to 
employment and training. The City Employment Initiatives Team was set up to 
address equalities, and support the council to fulfil its commitment to creating a 
diverse workforce representative of the city, and ensuring opportunity to all its 
local residents. 

 
5.4 Sustainability Implications: 
  The sustainability of the city’s economy is improved by the work of this team. 
 
5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  

Any initiatives or programmes implemented that reduce unemployment and benefit 
the city’s economy would be likely to have a positive impact in reducing the 
likelihood of crime and disorder.  

 

5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
Risk and opportunities are evaluated as part of the process of bid development for 
the various funding streams 

  
5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

The work of the City Employment Initiatives Team is citywide in its reach. 
 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
 
6.1 Detailed analysis and planning with partners including the evaluation of different 

modes of delivery go into the shaping of bids and delivery programmes. 
 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 Levels of unemployment and in particular long term unemployment are still an issue 

for Brighton and Hove.  There are funding streams available nationally and 
internationally to support programmes that tackle worklessness and the City 
Employment Initiatives Team are well placed to bring in that funding and shape and 
deliver programmes such as those described above. 

 
 
 
 

8



 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: None 

 

9



10



ENTERPRISE 
EMPLOYMENT &  

MAJOR PROJECTS 

CABINET MEMBER 

MEETING 

Agenda Item 12 

Brighton & Hove City 
Council 

 

 

  

Subject: Interim Work & Skills Plan 

Date of Meeting: 15th June 2010,   

REPORT OF: Scott Marshall Director for Housing Culture & 
Enterprise 

Contact Officer: Name:  Cheryl Finella Tel: 29-1095 

 E-mail: cheryl.finalla@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No Forward Plan No. 7 Digit Ref: 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:  

1.1 The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 
(LDEDC) 2009 places a new duty on county councils and unitary district 
councils to prepare an assessment of the economic conditions of their area. 
Included within the Act is a requirement for local authorities in receipt of a 
Future Jobs Fund grant from central government to produce an Interim Work 
& Skills plan for 2010/11. This report provides a summary of the Interim Work 
and Skills plan for Brighton & Hove and outlines the work required to produce 
a three-year work and skills plan for the city by March 2011. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

 

2.1 The Cabinet Members is recommended to note the content of the report and 
the proposed actions 

 

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3.1 The act states that a Work & Skills plan must set out how a local authority, 
together with its partners, will develop and agree their response to the local 
employment and skills needs identified in their Local Economic Assessment 
(LEA) and worklessness assessment. 

3.2 An Interim plan is required for authorities in receipt of a Futures Job Fund grant 
in order to demonstrate that a viable exit strategy has been developed for the 
programme.  

11



 

070508  

3.3 The Brighton & Hove Interim Work & Skills plan describes the work that has 
already been undertaken by the City Employment & Skills Steering group 
(CESSG) in driving forward the City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP).  

 

3.4 The structure of the CESSG is in line with the recommendations of the 
guidance that followed the Act in that it brings together the key influencers and 
funders of services along with business representatives and key stakeholders. 

3.5 The creation of the CESP and the annual Action plans that followed have pre-
empted the current guidance in that priorities were developed as a direct result 
of a comprehensive socio-economic analysis of local conditions. The CESP 
highlighted a number of challenges for the city which became the focus for 
collective action through the partnership. These challenges are detailed within 
the report along with supporting and updated data sets. 

 

3 WORKLESSNESS ASSESSMENT 

3.1 The Act includes a requirement to produce a worklessness assessment to 
inform decision making. In September 2009 a review of services tackling 
worklessness in the city was produced by the city council’s Policy Team, (once 
again pre-empting the Act). The report highlighted the role of the CESSG and 
the range of activities already in place to address worklessness in the city. This 
report along with the ongoing review of relevant data has helped to inform the 
strategic direction of the partnership. 

3.2 The Interim plan lists a number of CESSG achievements and describes how 
the work of the CESSG links to the Local Area Agreement Targets and 
connects to wider activities and networks through the Local Strategic 
Partnership  

 

 

4 NEXT STEPS 

4.1 The current CESP comes to an end in March 2011 so the requirement to 
produce a three-year work and skills plan for the city is timely. During the 
course of 2010/11 the CESSG will undertake a review of local economic 
conditions, key policy drivers and wider spatial issues in order to set the short, 
medium and long term goals within the plan. Included within this work will be a 
more detailed worklessness assessment and an update on the legacy plans for 
the Future Jobs Fund. 

4.2 Work is already underway through the CESSG to update the 2010/11 action 
plan and finalise the timetable. 

 

 

5 CONSULTATION 

5.1 The CESP and all subsequent action plans are a result of extensive 
consultation and input from CESSG members and wider stakeholders. The 
original plan was endorsed by the Local Strategic Partnership in December 

12



 

070508  

2007.  The Interim Plan was approved for submission to Government Office for 
the South East by the Chair of the CESSG, Scott Marshall, Director of 
Housing, Culture & Enterprise 

 

 

 

 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:  

The Interim plan is primarily a review of existing activity and does not therefore have 
cost implications.  

5.1 Legal Implications 

The Interim Work & Skills plan complies with the terms of the Local Democracy, 
Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. The completed report has been 
sent to Government Office for the South East in compliance with the stipulation within 
the act that local authorities in receipt of Future Job Fund grant must complete an 
Interim plan for 2010/11. 

 

The recommendations in this report are consistent with the council’s economic 
development and well-being powers and duties and there are no adverse implications 
arising 

 

5.2 Equalities Implications 

The Interim work & skills plan is primarily a review of existing activity in support of 
employment and skills in the city; there are therefore no equalities implications at this 
time.  

5.3 Sustainability Implications 

The Interim Work & Skills plan is a review of current and past activities; there are no 
sustainability implications arising from the review document 

5.4 Crime & Disorder Implications 

There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from this report 

5.5 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications 

The Interim Work & Skills plan is a review of current activity; there are no risk and 
opportunity issues arising from this report 

5.6 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

Relevant local, regional and national policy guidance were considered in developing 
the City Employment & Skills plan. The interim plan draws on the original document 
and compliments it with more current data; the document demonstrates the reach of 
the plan in bringing together the multi faceted elements that must be considered in 
order to develop effective strategies for local economic prosperity. 

 

13



 

070508  

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 

6.1 Not applicable in this instance 

 

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

7.1 The Interim Work & Skills plan is a statutory requirement within the Local 
Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. The Cabinet 
is asked to note the contents as a statutory document and as a precursor to 
the full work and skills plan due for completion by March 2011 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices: 

 

1. Interim Work & Skills Plan 2010/11 

 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

  

 

Background Documents 

[List any background / supporting documents referred to or used in the compilation of 
the report.  The documents must be made available to the public upon request for four 
years after the decision has been taken] 

1. City Employment & Skills Plan 2008/9 – 2010/11 

2. City Employment & Skills Action Plan – 2009/10 
 

 

 

 

 

14



 1 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

Interim Work and Skills Plan 2010 

 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
Economic Development Team 

30 April 2010 

15



 2 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
Interim Work and Skills Plan 2010 

 

 

CONTENTS

   Page
1 Purpose and Vision   3
2 Strategic and Economic Context 4
3 Worklessness Assessment 6
4 The role and Governance of the CESSG*  8 

 4.1 Sussex Employment & Skills Board    9 
 4.2 Measuring Outcomes and Impact    11 
 4.3 CESSG* Achievements      13 

5 Futures Job Fund (FJF) 14
 5.1 Background 14 
 5.2 Progress so far 16 
 5.3 Legacy Planning for FJF 18 

6 Future Priorities 18

 6.1 Future challenges and next steps 18 

 6.2 Issues and challenges for 2010/11 19 

  Annexes  

  Annex 1    CESP** Strategic Objectives 21 
  Annex 2    Supporting Data 22 
  Annex 3    Worklessness Report – Sep 2009 27 
  Annex 4    CESSG Terms of Reference 33 
  Annex 5    CESP Thematic Action Plan 37 
  Annex 6    CESSG Accord 52 

  
Annex 7    CESSG end of year Interplan  
                  Report 09-10 

53 

  Abbreviations 83 
    
* CESSG – City Employment & Skills Steering Group 
** CESP – City Employment & Skills Plan 

16



 3 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

Interim Work and Skills Plan 2010 

1. Purpose and Vision 

The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction (LDEDC) 
Act 2009 places a new duty on county councils and unitary district councils to 
prepare an assessment of the economic conditions of their area. The Local 
Economic Assessments (LEA) will ensure that localities have a 
comprehensive understanding of the economic strengths and weaknesses of 
their area and a strong evidence base from which to develop local economic 
policies.  
 
As part of this new obligation county councils and unitary district councils are 
also required to produce a Work and Skills plan for their area. The plan will set 
out how local authorities, together with their partners, will develop and agree 
their response to the local employment and skills needs identified in their LEA 
and worklessness assessments. 
 
The statutory requirements to produce an LEA apply from April 2011, whereas 
an Interim Work and Skills plan is required by April 2010 for local authorities, 
such as Brighton & Hove, who are in receipt of Future Jobs Fund. 
 
The legislation states that work and skills plans should be based upon a 
worklessness assessment produced as part of the LEA. As local authorities 
are unlikely to have already produced a worklessness assessment for their 
area the government has identified this year as a ‘transitional’ year in which 
relevant authorities will produce an ‘interim’ work and skills plan using 
available data. 
 
A key requirement of the interim plan is that local authorities that have been 
awarded Futures Jobs Fund work with their local partnerships to ensure that 
there is an effective legacy for the programme that demonstrates the longer 
term benefits from the investment to the local community and economy. The 
plan must also provide central government via Government Office, with 
evidence to inform the future of devolved worklessness funding.  
 
The Brighton & Hove Interim report must be sent to Government Office for the 
South East by 30th April 2010 with a full three-year plan in place by April 2011.  
 
The LEA legislation has been supported by further documents designed to 
provide practical guidance on the process for conducting an LEA and the 
interim and final versions of the work and skills plan. The government has 
tasked the Improvement and Development Agency (I&DeA) to provide the 
detailed guidance and support to authorities. 
 

17



 4 

This report is in line with the guidance in that it sets out the work already 
underway through the City Employment & Skills Steering group and its role as 
the lead strategic partnership in the city for skills, employment, training and 
business support. It will also cover the work that will take place this year to 
prepare the new three-year plan for the City, encompassing a worklessness 
assessment and a work and skills plan for 2011-2014. 
 
2. Strategic and Economic Context 

As a unitary authority Brighton & Hove does not fall under the remit of either 
the East Sussex or West Sussex Strategic Partnerships. Economic 
Development priorities are established and delivered at the local level by the 
City Council and other local partnerships such as the Local Strategic 
Partnership, the City Employment & Skills Steering Group and the Economic 
Partnership. 
 
The City Employment & Skills Steering Group is the main vehicle through 
which Brighton & Hove seeks to address issues of employment, skills and 
business support. Formed in 2008, the group was established to progress and 
deliver on the City Employment and Skills plan priorities. 
 
The City Employment and Skills plan (CESP) has as its mission, ‘the creation 
of a coherent and coordinated approach to employment and skills, which will 
benefit the residents of Brighton & Hove and strengthen the city’s economy’1. 
 
The plan, produced in 2007, brought together, in one place, the main activities 
undertaken in the public and voluntary sector designed to address skills, 
training and employment with the aim of providing a clearer picture of 
provision thereby facilitating better co-ordination, rationalisation and targeting 
of resources. 
 
The City Employment & Skills Plan delivery and future development is directly 
linked to the Brighton & Hove Community Strategy, which sets the overall 
vision, priorities and actions for the city to 2020. It is underpinned by the Local 
Area Agreement (LAA), which acts as the delivery framework for the 
Community Strategy. 
 
There are also a number of additional strategies, plans and programmes 
which have developed since the inception of the CESP, which have an 
influence upon this activity that is worth noting. These include: 

The Reducing Inequality Review (2008)
The Reducing Inequality Review sets out a broad range of policy options to 
reduce inequality in the city. The report shows that the most deprived areas 
across the city are not “closing the gap” on important indicators of equality. 
One of the key challenges is to ensure that those doing less well can share in 
the city’s prosperity and are not left behind. Reference is made to the need to 
develop a strong link with the CESP, drawing together both… 

                                            
1 www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/employment  

18



 5 

“demand and supply-side actions in the labour market, helping people 
on benefit overcome barriers to employment and at the same time 
working with employers to maximise the jobs available.”
The Review also highlights the important role that public bodies can play by 
acting as exemplar employees, e.g. targeted recruitment initiatives, 
apprenticeships, and work placements scheme for example. 
 
Raising Our Game - Brighton and Hove Economic Strategy 2008-2016
The third Economic Development Strategy prepared by the Brighton & Hove 
Economic Partnership recognises the tough challenges facing Brighton & 
Hove and sets out a programme for both public agencies and the private 
sector to stimulate prosperity across the city. The strategy identifies three core 
themes, which frame a comprehensive action plan: 

  Distinctive 

  Ambitious 

  Reducing inequality 
The strategy recognises the importance of collaboration between public 
agencies – who affect the economy through such areas as planning, skills 
provision, schools – and the employers, who grow jobs and add value to the 
economy. 

The Social Enterprise Strategy
The Social Enterprise Strategy proposes a partnership approach to supporting 
social enterprise through a membership network of social enterprises, private 
businesses, public sector organisations and other 3rd sector partners.  
At a programme level, there are a number of significant changes which will 
impact on the CESP, specifically: 
Business Support Simplification programme will reduce the number of publicly 
funded programmes from over 3,000 to fewer than 100. The three key 
elements of the BSSP are: 

! A single new portfolio of targeted business support 

! A new uniform brand, ‘Solutions for Business – funded by government’ 
to badge the products in the new portfolio 

! Business Link will be the main referral route for businesses and other 
users, to the products in the new portfolio 

Volunteering Strategy 2010-2015.
The CESSG acknowledges volunteering as an important pathway to work 
which enables residents to gain skills. The Volunteering strategy has been 
partially funded by the CESSG and Brighton & Hove City Council. One of the 
strategic priorities of the strategy is to ‘Enable development: build and 
influence an environment that enables volunteering to have the maximum 
economic and social impact’.  The strategy identifies three key activities to 
support this priority:

  Raise employer awareness of volunteering as a means of gaining skills 
& experience and hence a legitimate pathway into employment. 

  Enable employers and their employees to experience the benefits of 
volunteering through the development of their own employer-supported 
volunteering programmes. 

19



 6 

  Address the challenges and harness the opportunities posed by the 
recession. 

 
Machinery of Government.  
Following the demise of the LSC and the transfer of its responsibilities to 
Local Authorities, the Skills Funding Agency and the Young People’s Learning 
Agency, the City Employment and Skills Steering Group has been involved in 
discussions and negotiations with the Children and Young Peoples Trust 
within the Brighton & Hove City Council and the Skills Funding Agency (who 
are now members of the CESSG) to ensure that planned activities and the 
learning system is demand-led and responsive to employer’s needs.  
 
3. Worklessness Assessment 
 
From its inception there was recognition that in order to address the skills and 
employment challenges and opportunities in the city there would need to be a 
fuller understanding of the socio-economic profile of the city and how these 
factors inter-relate. Thus the plan addresses both the supply side - residents, 
workforce, skills and entrepreneurship; and the demand side - business 
retention, business growth and inward investment. 
 
The document highlights seven key issues/ challenges for the city; 
 

! Increase the Employment Rate 

! Prepare for working age population growth 

! The need for an increase in Higher Value Added Jobs 

! Effective support to get more people back into work 

! Better understanding and addressing of NEETs 

! Improved intelligence to inform decision making 

! Better co-ordination and joint working among the key public agencies 
and commissioners 

 
Headline data and issues from the CESP 2007/8 – 2010/11:- 
 

Headline data Challenge for the city 

To achieve the 80% employment 
rate the city would need to find 
work for an additional 16,000 
residents if population growth 
predictions are accurate. 

Despite an increase in employees 
in employment and residents in 
work the number of working age 
benefit recipients has not reduced 
substantially

There is a pressing need to grow the 
business base to create more 
employment opportunities for the 
growing population 
 
 
Existing activities to tackle 
worklessness are having little impact 
and need to be reviewed 

Brighton & Hove’s population is 
getting younger in contrast to most 
of the South East, the main 
contributors are post graduate 

There is a need to secure higher 
value added employment for 
graduates 
 

20



 7 

students

Welfare benefit recipient numbers 
have remained steady despite 
interventions

There is a need to explore 
employment opportunities in the 
travel to work areas outside of the city 
and work in partnership with 
neighbouring authorities 
 
 
Those seeking to enter the labour 
market face stiff competition from 
those with higher level skills 

Gross Value Added per head is 
below the regional average 

The current employment sectors 
do not offer sufficient high value 
added employment 

Heavily service sector employment 
in hospitality, retail and leisure 

The lack of high value added 
employment means that skilled 
workers are taking lower value 
employment 
 
Sector research is needed to identify 
high value added employers and 
attract them to the city 
 
Lower value employment needs to be 
freed up for those wishing to re-enter 
the labour market  

Residents on Incapacity Benefit 
account for more than half the 
city’s working age welfare benefit 
claimants

Only 1,405 fewer working age 
welfare benefit claimants that 7 
years ago (’07 figure) 

Small area approaches to tackling 
worklessness and developing 
skills seem to have limited impact 

Further work needed to establish 
effective transition routes from 
localised to mainstream provision 
 
 
Further work within the partnership is 
needed to better co-ordinate services 
and monitor impact 
 
Better data capture and analysis 
needed to inform provision 

NEET figures (as at 2007/8) have 
remained static; many young 
people are described as being ‘in 
transition’ therefore difficult to 
gauge whether they are at risk of 
exclusion 

Further investigation needed to 
determine the scale of the challenge 
and appropriate intervention 

The scale and range of activities is 
extensive and duplicates in some 
areas and in others there are gaps 

Need to reduce duplication of effort 
and promote joint working in the 
medium term and joint commissioning 
in the long-term 

 
The assessment of need led to the identification of four strategic priorities and 
ten strategic objectives within the plan. 

21



 8 

Strategic Priority 1: 
Support the Creation, Retention and Development of Local Business and 
Enterprise.

Strategic Priority 2: 
Increase the Employment Rate 

Strategic Priority 3: 
Develop and Improve Skills for Work 

Strategic Priority 4: 
Develop the Infrastructure and Intelligence to Support the Delivery of the 
Actions in the CESP 
 
The ten strategic objectives are contained in Annex One. 
 
Labour Market Analysis 
 
A fuller report on the data that supports these findings is contained in Annex
Two, including updated data sets where available. 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council produced a report in 2009 detailing the different 
Welfare to Work programmes and projects that aim to tackle worklessness. 

This report sought to map the existing provision on employment and skills in 
order to inform policy and activities. A copy of the report is contained in 
Annex Three.  
 
4. The Role and Governance of the City Employment and Skills Steering 
Group (CESSG) 
 
The CESSG was formed early in 2008 with a specific remit to ensure the 
implementation and ongoing review of the Brighton & Hove City Employment 
and Skills Plan (CESP). 
 
To this end the members have been drawn from those organisations and 
agencies able to fund or influence the development of policy and the 
implementation of services in the city. It was agreed early on that this forum 
would not be a vehicle for delivery organisations other than those with a duel 
role as a key publicly funded organisation such as the local college. The 
purpose was to ensure that the group did not become side tracked into 
focusing on funding and contracts; rather that the focus would be on 
understanding the issues in order to re-direct core funds towards shared 
goals. 
 
A Terms of Reference was agreed for the group within which there was 
specific reference to the need to set measurable targets that contribute to the 
Local Area Agreement targets; to continue to review the targets to ensure that 
they remain relevant to the local economy and demography; and that the 

22



 9 

steering group should have a direct link to the Local Strategic Partnership to 
report progress. 
 
A copy of the initial Terms of Reference for the group is contained in Annex 
Four along with a list of CESSG members and their role within the group. 

4.1. Sussex Employment & Skills Board (SESB) 
 
The geography of Sussex is diverse with dense urban areas such as Brighton 
& Hove, and relatively rural areas in parts of East and West Sussex. The 
employment and businesses profiles show similar levels of diversity and it is 
therefore not possible to generalise levels of needs across the county. The 
SESB is not therefore considered to be the most appropriate vehicle for 
addressing economic development issues for Brighton & Hove. 
 
The CESSG has a nominated representative that sits on the SESB; the SESB 
coordinator is also a regular member of the group. Through this mechanism 
the steering group is able to ensure that local issues are fed up to sub-
regional level and is able, in turn, to take into account sub-regional issues that 
may affect the action plan. 
 
The chart below demonstrates the role of the CESSG and its link to the Local 
Strategic Partnership (LSP) and the Public Service Board (PSB). A 
representative from the CESSG sits on the LSP and acts as a conduit for 
information on progress, issues and challenges. 
 
The group is informed by and feeds back to a range of partnerships to ensure 
that policy is embedded and that information to inform strategies is based on 
robust information from the front line. There are representatives on the 
CESSG for each of these groups. 
 
Networks that are linked to the CESSG: 
 

! 14 – 19 Partnership Board 

! Learning Partnership 

! Business Retention & Inward Investment Strategy 

! Economic Partnership 

! Partnership Manager Group (2020 community strategy network) 

! The Major Providers Group (regionally contracted DWP/LSC/SEEDA 
providers group) 

! Machinery of Government (set up to manage the LSC transition) 
 
 

23



 
1
0
 

  
  

                       

P
u
b
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

 B
o
ar

d
 

Lo
ca

l 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
L
ea

rn
in

g 
P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 

1
4
-1

9
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

o
ar

d
 

B
u
si

n
es

s 
R

et
en

ti
o
n
 &

 
In

w
ar

d
 I
n
ve

st
m

en
t 

B
o
ar

d
 

E
co

n
o
m

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

M
aj

o
r 

P
ro

vi
d
er

s 
G

ro
u
p
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 M
an

ag
er

s 
G

ro
u
p
 

M
ac

h
in

er
y 

o
f 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

C
E
SS

G
 

d
el

iv
er

y 
ve

h
ic

le
s/

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

C
E

S
S

G
 

M
e
m

b
e
r
s
 

R
es

id
en

ts
 &

 b
u
si

n
es

se
s 

 
L
A

A
 t

ar
ge

ts
 c

ap
tu

re
d
 v

ia
 I
n
te

rp
la

n
 

T
h
e 

ro
le

 o
f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t 
&

 S
ki

lls
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e 

 
fa

m
ily

 o
f 
P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
in

 B
ri

gh
to

n
 &

 H
o
ve

 

24



 11 

4.2. Measuring Outcomes and Impact 
 
Since its inception in 2007 the CESP action plan has been revised annually; 
the subsequent version of the action plan focused on areas of duplication and 
gaps in provision, thus from the extensive action plan of the original 
document, ten where identified as priorities for action. 
 
In October 2008 the CESSG commissioned consultants to undertake a mid-
term evaluation of the plan to: 
 

! Review the performance and impact of the CESP; specifically in terms 
of the partnership and early actions; 
 

! Establish a robust framework for monitoring and on-going evaluation of 
the CESP to 2011, and 
 

! Assess the infrastructure to support delivery of the CESP 
 
The review resulted in a new action plan focused around four Strategic 
Priorities; the emphasis within the new action plan is to differentiate between 
the actions of partners that represent core business and those which are 
additional.  The additional activities then became the focus for joint working 
which could then be monitored and measured and linked back to the LAA 
targets.  
 
The key delivery principles which guide the new Action Plan include: 
 

! A thematic approach with an identified lead partner;  

! Maximising the impact of actions; 

! A focus on outcomes; 

! Adding value and addressing gaps, and 

! Equality of opportunity 
 

A decision was also made to present the Action Plan under a number of 
thematic programme headings, which are needed to deliver the CESP and 
address current employment and skills priorities. The agreed themes are: 
 

! Business Support 

! Entrepreneurship 

! Inward Investment and Retention 

! Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) 

! Volunteering 

! In-work or Employer training 

! Pre-employment training 

! Partnership working 
 

A designated Lead Partner is responsible for each theme, to coordinate the 
delivery of the CESSG activities of the theme and monitor the performance of 

25



 12 

CESSG members who are involved in the delivery of projects within the 
theme.   
 
It was very soon recognised that whilst there is a need to streamline the 
indicators used to measure the progress of the CESP, it was necessary to 
ensure that the measures used were compatible with those included in other 
key strategic plans, notably the LAA. As a result the new thematic Action Plan 
contributes directly to specific headline targets set out within the LAA as part 
of the ‘Promoting Enterprise & Learning’ theme. The Promoting Enterprise 
and Learning theme plays a key role in ensuring that people can make a 
positive contribution to city life, that residents’ learning and skills can be 
enhanced and that local businesses can develop and thrive. 
 
A copy of the current action plan is contained in Annex Five; the action plan 
is colour coded so that partners are able to distinguish core business from that 
which is additional work through the CESSG. 
 

Colour code in the Action Plan Function 

Orange Strategic Priority and the Theme 

Black The main agencies with a remit to 
address the priority along with the 
original CESP priority 

Green The mainstream / core activities in 
place to address the priority 

Blue The CESP in-year actions to address 
the priority 

Red The relevant LAA target 

 
All members were signed up to, and now use, the new ‘Interplan’ ICT system 
for measuring and monitoring LAA activity. Through this medium it has been 
possible to capture activity from all of the partners without ‘double counting’. It 
has also been a valuable tool in ensuring that all partners are engaged. A 
quarterly report is submitted and discussed in CESSG meetings and 
highlights areas that are underperforming and how well the partnership is 
working. 
 
Along with the new action plan and recording method the CESSG agreed to 
sign a joint ‘Accord’. The Accord is a public declaration by each CESSG 
member that they will work collaboratively and engage in joint planning and 
bidding in support of the shared priorities. A copy of the partner Accord is 
available in Annex Six. 

Key to the success of the partnership is a shared understanding of how the 
challenges for the city inter-relate and how, through joint actions across the 
partnership, we can start to address the challenges. Diagram One 
demonstrates this inter-relationship; how increased business growth and 
inward investment linked to targeted training and support can help to build a 
sustainable economy for the city. The CESSG seeks to ensure that the 80% 
employment rate is achieved for all residents, from those with lower skills 
through to higher skilled residents and graduates. 

26



 13 

Diagram One 

Brighton & Hove’s Skills and Employment Vision 
 
 

 
 
 
 
4.3. CESSG Achievements 

One of the objectives of the City Employment & Skills Plan is to ensure a 
coordinated approach between the agencies involved in commissioning and 
delivering initiatives linked to employment and skills training.  There are a 
number of positive developments that have so far been achieved by CESSG 
members including:

i. Raising awareness of the work, priorities and strategic objectives of the 
partners involved;   

ii. Identifying complementarities and overlaps between partners’ work;  

iii. Effective coordination of the work of organisations engaged in 
employment and skills initiatives; in many cases this involves planning 
and joint delivery of initiatives that link directly to the CESP priorities.  

 
A copy of the current LAA interplan report is attached in Annex Seven.
 
Of particular note is the work done to support local businesses through the 
recent economic downturn. Using updated analysis of both national data such 

Training and 
development

of the city’s human 
capital

80%  
Employ-

ment
Rate Target

 Graduate 
opportunities 

Opportunities for
low skilled workers 
increase-NEETS  
         reduced 

Sustainable 

demand driven 
employment
growth

Retain and develop 
core
Business base 

Growth in the
Knowledge
Economy 

 

27



 14 

as rising unemployment, business churn and business registration; and local 
proxy indicators such as retail vacancy rates and footfall surveys in the city 
centre it was possible to identify and anticipate trends. 
 
In collaboration with Business Link and the local Chamber of Commerce the 
City council was able to provide a range of support programmes such as 
sector specific workshops, meet the professionals’ events, one-to-one advice 
sessions and buy local promotions.  

The Breakthrough project was developed jointly by the Council’s Economic 
Development team and the local Learning Partnership and is being delivered 
by key local third sector employment and training agencies. The project is in 
its third year of its delivery and it fills a gap in the mainstream funding support 
that is available to residents.  

The project provides community based support for adults facing the dual 
challenges of unemployment and poor health. It links community based adult 
learning outreach workers, who work with adult residents that experience 
multiple disadvantage in the deprived areas of the city, and the Health trainers 
network in the city to the main learning providers and a skilled and specialist 
employment brokerage services. A number of funding sources have been 
aligned and used for the delivery of this project and so far it has included 
WNF, Skilled for Health, LABGI, LPSA and CYPT.  
 
The Major Providers Group was created by the CESSG as a way of engaging 
with the rising number of regionally contracted organisations remitted to work 
with low skilled and unemployed residents. There was concern that these 
organisations, most of whom were unfamiliar with the city, would displace 
existing local provision and potentially duplicate and /or undermine services. 
The group now meets regularly to share information and co-ordinate 
marketing activity thereby reducing confusion for residents and helping to 
manage the number of approaches to local businesses for jobs and work 
placements. 
 
5. Futures Job Fund (FJF) 
 
5.1. Background

Brighton & Hove City Council has been successful in its bid for the Future 
Jobs Fund money and leads a programme that will create 730 jobs in the city 
over a 2 year period. The bid was developed jointly by the City Council’s 
Culture & Enterprise and Children and Young People’s Departments and 
Hove YMCA, together with a wide range of employers and organisations. 
 
The jobs will be created under four distinct elements, targeting different 
employer sectors and sizes. These are: 

Public Sector Jobs - with a focus upon the City Council, Schools and 
Colleges, Universities and the PCT.  
 

28



 15 

Commercial, Third Sector and Social Enterprise Jobs –jobs will be created 
via an open application process to allow large companies, SMEs, Third sector 
organisations and micro businesses to offer new jobs. Care Co-ops, Impact 
Initiatives, Impetus, The Bridge Community Education Centre, Brighton 
Housing Trust and the Friends Centre have all expressed an interest in this 
scheme during the bid development phase. 
 
Recycling and Green Jobs – led by Hove YMCA, who have recently rented 
a 3000 sq ft warehouse and 2000 sq ft training centre to develop a recycled 
furniture and white good business to increase re-use to reduce landfill and 
improve the environment. Young People will have the opportunity to work in 
various roles of this business including transporting and collecting the stock, 
warehousing and PAT testing/reconditioning and selling the goods (including 
bulk supplies of reconditioned fridges from mainstream electrical businesses) 
in Charity Shops.  
 
Creative and Cultural sector Jobs – with a focus on theatres, music venues, 
visual arts and digital media. This was part of a separate national bid which is 
for 150 jobs in this specific industry.
 
The jobs are aimed at 18-24 year olds who have been out of work and 
claiming Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) for between 6 and 12 months. 
Potential beneficiaries will be referred by Jobcentre Plus advisors to the City 
Council’s award City Employment Initiatives department who will support them 
into the additional roles being created across the city. 
 
Most of the jobs created will have wider benefits to the local community such 
as those in the care sector, construction and maintenance, sports 
development and coaching, the emerging Green economy, charity retail, 
schools and college settings, administrating and developing volunteering 
programmes and working within the many community venues or social 
enterprises in the city. 
 
The employers provide a minimum of 25 hours a week at the National 
Minimum Wage for a minimum of six months and a full wage subsidy will be 
available to enable employers to create these roles. It is expected that 
approximately 50% of the jobs created will be match funded to at least one 
year long and young people will be expected to gain nationally recognised 
qualifications through either an apprenticeship or NVQ whilst in employment, 
supported by Train to Gain funding with training delivered by local providers 
including City College Brighton & Hove. Young People will also be offered the 
opportunity to participate in volunteering and other similar exercises that give 
something back to the City. Existing initiatives such as Duke of Edinburgh and 
access to volunteering placements via Brighton & Hove Volunteers is 
available alongside a new role of Employment Ambassadors who go into 
schools to talk to students about the world of work and their experiences. 
 
Analysis of local Not in Education Employment and Training (NEET) data 
indicates that there are currently 206 young people aged 18 and 19 who have 
been NEET for over 6 months. The main sectors that the longer term NEET 

29



 16 

young people are interested in working in include sales, plant or machine 
assembly and construction. 
 
The Jobcentre Plus Figures (April 2009) used in the successful bid indicate 
that 1,835 18-24 year olds are currently claiming JSA in the city. This is 25% 
of the total JSA claimant count for the city and the highest long term rate for 
this age group in the South East. 375 of these young people have been 
unemployed for 6 months or more, with the bulk (215) being unemployed for 
between 26-39 weeks. Further analysis of the data highlights that the key 
sectors young people are looking for work include: 
 
Sales Occupations – 105 
Elementary Trades, Plant and Storage Related Occupations – 75 
Elementary Administration and Service Occupations – 50 
Administrative Occupations – 30 
Caring Personal Service Occupations – 15 
Skilled Construction and Building Trades – 15 
Culture, Media and Sports Occupations - 15  
 
5.2. Progress So Far  

The first cohort of 16 people completed their 6 month FJF contracts with 
YMCA at the end of March 2010. There were a further 2 young people 
employed in Brighton & Hove City Council who are on year long contracts. 
 
The YMCA extended 6 contracts to year long, 1 person left early to move to a 
permanent role and 3 people left during the 6 months. 
 
The local FJF steering group meets on quarterly basis and monitors the 
project’s performance whilst monthly meetings with JCP ensure the smooth 
progress of the project.  
 
The local JCP office also assists in tracking the individuals’ progress once 
they have completed their 6 or 12 months. Thus, new JSA benefit applicants 
are asked if they have participated in the FJF project and tagged on the JCP 
database.  
 
Working alongside Jobcentre Plus, this project has identified the 9 main areas 
of vacancies by industry in May 2009 which indicates the current labour 
market, and has been utilised when configuring which jobs to create to allow a 
through flow of the candidates into sustainable employment. 
 
These areas are: 
 
Agriculture and fishing   2 
Energy and water    15 
Manufacturing     14 
Construction      8 
Distribution, hotels and restaurants 147 
Transport and communications  9 

30



 17 

Banking, finance and insurance  265 
Public administration, education, health 278 
Other services    9 
 
Ongoing consultation with the candidates is crucial, and the roles created are 
based on these discussions to make sure that suitability is ensured and 
therefore both sustainability and satisfaction is achieved.  
 
For instance, retail and wholesale account for 13% of all jobs in Brighton and 
Hove – second only to Finance and Business Services. Jobs in retail and 
wholesale tend to be lower skilled and lower paid but, due to the very large 
student population, these posts are often filled by undergraduate and 
graduates. This means local young people especially those from 
disadvantage social backgrounds with low educational attainment struggle to 
obtain any work experience or paid employment in this field. They lack 
confidence, work history but also relevant vocational retail and warehouse 
skills and qualifications to compete in the job market. 
 
The Future Jobs Fund offers these young people the opportunity to gain 
employment and importantly valuable training/qualifications.  This programme 
aims not only to overcome their short term unemployment but to significantly 
enhance their future long term employment prospects. 
 
Exit interviews are provided by Level 3 qualified Information, Advice and 
Guidance (IAG) workers from the FJF dedicated eCentre, which has 2 career 
advisors, as well as an employer engagement manager, seconded from the 
Jobcentre. At the centre they can do online application forms with support, 
complete upto date CV’s, have interview techniques and get general support 
from the dedicated team. It is open 9 – 5 Monday – Friday, and operated as a 
drop in centre, although individual sessions can be organised. 
 
The young people can also gain support and advice from either the 
Connexions service or the prototype Adult, Advancement and Careers Service 
(AACS) providers in the city (dependant upon the young person’s age.) This 
provides young people with a formal review of their job, discuss the 
experience that they have developed over the lifetime of the job and enable a 
CV to be developed that captures this.  
 
A reference is also provided to each young person from their employer 
outlining their overall performance and attendance record and employers are 
encouraged to support employment applications that young people may 
complete. 
 
With strong emphasis on partnership working, the council tries to make sure 
that the target group is given a wide range of opportunities across the city, in 
line with career progression and labour market options, to ensure best take up 
and sustainability of what is offered. 
 
 
 

31



 18 

5.3 Legacy Planning for FJF 
 
The FJF delivery and management function sits within the City Council and is 
linked directly to the CESSG. Over the coming year, and as part of the wider 
planning for the next three-year CESSG action plan, the FJF steering group is 
tasked with developing a strategy for the project beyond its current funding. 
The CESSG will support this work by seeking to embed those elements of the 
programme that can be mainstreamed and seek additional funds to continue 
those elements that can not. The FJF programme links directly into the 3 year 
citywide apprenticeship strategy and this adds to the legacy of the project.  
 
There are currently 2 bids in the pipeline to create more opportunity for all, 
one being an INTERREG bid to create a Graduate & Apprenticeship 
Placement Scheme, to encourage the skilled workforce that FJF creates, as 
well as those leaving the 2 universities to look further afield for employment 
opportunity.  There is also an ESF bid being looked at to turn the eCentre into 
an employment bureau, as a joint venture between BHCC, Jobcentre Plus 
and City College. Part of the funding being brought in through FJF is to be 
used to create a portal site providing employers to put placement 
opportunities, apprenticeship and fast track career options onto a locally 
based site, which will also link in with our European partners. 
 
By using the FJF with employers in our growing industries, we can prepare a 
trained workforce, from which these employers will be able to draw upon, as 
they look at expansion coming out the recession. 
 

6. Future Priorities 
 
The CESSG membership has expanded to include University of Brighton, 
University of Sussex, Sussex Learning Network and the newly formed Skills 
Funding Agency. 
 
Scoping is underway for the Local Economic Assessment and the new Work 
and Skills plan which will be the next version of the CESSG Action plan. The 
socio-economic analysis required for the LEA will be used as the basis for 
establishing the needs, issues and challenges for the city. 
 
The CESSG will be tasked with distilling this information and synthesising it 
with local expertise and knowledge in order to identify the next three-year 
cycle of the plan. Interplan will continue to be used to capture activities and 
measure outcomes.  
 
6.1 Future challenges and next steps 
 
The city continues to face the dual challenges of not having enough high 
value added employment for its qualified residents and also, as a 
consequence of this, not having enough entry level jobs for its lower qualified 
residents. 
 

32



 19 

The need to grow the business base is hampered by the poor to average 
quality of its commercial premises and a lack of space for development.  
 
Despite these challenges the city has a number of key strengths: 
 

! A strong and growing creative and digital media sector recognised as a 
centre of creative excellence  

! universities supporting research & business development 

! a city celebrated for its versatile business models and flourishing 
knowledge economy 

! reputation as a dynamic city by the sea with easy transport links to 
London and the rest of Europe via Gatwick Airport 

 
Recent research, (Centre for Cities, HSBC, SEEDA) has served to confirm the 
CESSG view that the city is well placed for economic growth post-recession, 
however, to exploit the opportunities the city must be pro-active. 

While there is evidence of positive action being taken by the CESSG, there 
remains room to improve the way in which information is shared.  A number of 
organisations are still working in isolation on various priorities and actions 
included in the CESP. These issues will need to be addressed in order to 
ensure effective and meaningful partnership working that is linked to the new 
priority actions. 
 

6.2 Issues and challenges for 2010/11 
 

! Develop and support the Innovation & Growth teams to work with 
businesses that have significant growth potential 
 

! Manage and facilitate the transition of the Futures Job Fund activity into 
mainstream activity where possible or through income generation 
 

! Investigate and explore the potential employment gains posed by the 
Brighton & Hove Diamond for Growth 
 

! Promote the development of the Adult Advancement and Careers 
Service and the benefits of co-located services 
 

! Continue to support business retention through targeted intervention 
 

! Work with third sector and Major Providers to provide better transition 
routes from unemployment to work for those facing labour market 
disadvantage 
 

! Work within the group to identify additional resources and practical 
support for the rising number of unemployed residents with mental 
health needs 
 

33



 20 

! Ensure that the newly created Skills Funding Agency and the newly 
appointed regional Business Link contractor are cognisant of CESSG 
priorities in the commissioning of local provision 
 

! Undertake more detailed work to establish a joint commissioning 
framework in the medium term and more joint working and bidding for 
funding in the short-term 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



 21 

Annex 1    

CESP Strategic Objectives 

Strategic Priority 1: Support the creation, retention and development of local 
business and enterprise 

! Strategic Objective 1a: Ensure that there is sufficient and appropriate 
employment space to support the creation of new jobs  

! Strategic Objective 1b: Increase the level of entrepreneurship and business 
performance  
 

Strategic Priority 2: Increase Employment Rate from 75.6% to 76.6% 

! Strategic Objective 2a: Increase the number of jobs in the city that can be 
accessed by priority groups 

! Strategic Objective 2b: Increase the number of people with labour market 
disadvantage accessing and remaining in sustainable employment. 

! Strategic Objective 2c: Develop partnerships with employers to promote 
diversity in the workplace and to respond to their recruitment and retention 
needs. 
 

Strategic Priority 3: Develop and Improve Skills for Work 

! Strategic Objective 3a: Improve Skills and Employability of Young People  

! Strategic Objective 3b: Improve the Skills of the City’s Workforce 

! Strategic Objective 3c: Improve the Skills of Disadvantaged Adult Residents 
in the City 
 

Strategic Priority 4: Develop the Infrastructure and Intelligence to Support the 
Delivery of the Actions in the CESP 

! Strategic Objective 4a: Develop and Sustain Effective Arrangements 
between Partners 

! Strategic Objective 4b: Improve intelligence, data-sharing and a common 
understanding of city employment and skills needs   

 
 
 

35



 22 

Annex 2     
Supporting Data

Employment rate comparison with SE and UK 
Employment and unemployment (Jul 2008-Jun 2009) 

Brighton and 
Hove

(numbers) 

Brighton and 
Hove

(%)

South 
East

(%)

Great 
Britain

(%)

All people 

Economically active† 141,500 80.2 82.4 78.9 

In employment† 131,200 74.1 78.1 73.3 

Employees† 111,800 63.2 67.5 63.9 

Self employed† 17,900 10.0 10.2 9.1 

Unemployed (model-

based)§ 10,000 7.1 5.0 6.9 

Population growth forecasts 2007-2017: 

Our employment rate of 74.1% is 
lower than the regional rate, and has 
decreased from 75.6% at the time of 
the CESP publication in 2007. 

Achieving an 80% target would mean 
increasing the employment rate by 
5.9%, or the equivalent of finding 
work for 10,220 people. 

Population growth projections show 
that working age population will 
increase by 11,220 between 2007 
and 2017. Our working age 
population in 2010 is 173,200.  

Finding employment for 80% of these 
11,220 people will require a further 
8,975 jobs to be created. The total 
jobs that need to be created to meet 
our target is therefore 19,195. 

Population 2007  2017  
2007-2017

change
AGE
GROUP Count % Count % Count % 
 0-15 40,840 16.3 41,820 15.9 980 2.4 
 16-19 11,760 4.7 10,480 4.0 -1,280 -10.9 
 20-24 22,000 8.8 22,600 8.6 600 2.7 
 25-49 103,100 41.1 109,100 41.5 6,000 5.8 

50-59/64 31,300 12.5 37,200 14.1 5,900 18.8 
60/65+ 42,100 16.8 41,900 15.9 -200 -0.5 
W/age 168,160 67 179,380 68.2 11,220 6.7 
non-w/age 82,940 33 83,720 31.8 780 0.9 
Total 251.1 100.0 263.1 100.0 12,000 4.8 

36



 23 

Working Age Population 
Working age population (2008)

Brighton and 

Hove
(numbers) 

Brighton and 

Hove
(%)

South 

East
(%)

Great 

Britain
(%)

All people - working 

age
173,200 67.5 61.1 62.0 

Males - working age 90,400 71.5 65.3 66.1 

Females - working 

age
82,800 63.6 57.1 58.1 

Working age population is higher than 
regionally or nationally as a 
proportion, and is growing at a faster 
rate than overall population, this 
makes it appear that our population is 
getting younger, but is largely 
attributed to graduates choosing to 
remain in the city. 

There is a need to provide new and 
increasing opportunities for graduate 
employment. 
 
Skills inflation is an increasing barrier 
to entering the labour market for low 
skilled workers, as drivers of 
demographic change create a top 
heavy labour market. 

 

Employee Jobs 
Employee jobs (2008)

Brighton and 

Hove

(employee 
jobs)

Brighton and 

Hove

(%)

South 

East

(%)

Great 

Britain

(%)

Total employee jobs 119,300 - - - 

Full-time 77,000 64.6 69.0 68.8 

Part-time 42,300 35.4 31.0 31.2 

Employee jobs by industry 

Manufacturing 3,400 2.9 8.1 10.2 

Construction 3,200 2.7 4.5 4.8 

Services 111,000 93.1 85.7 83.5 

Distribution, hotels & 

restaurants 
28,600 24.0 24.6 23.4 

Transport & communications 5,600 4.7 5.9 5.8 

Finance, IT, other business 

activities
31,900 26.8 24.0 22.0 

Public admin, education & 

health
36,100 30.3 25.6 27.0 

Other services 8,700 7.3 5.6 5.3 

Tourism-related† 14,200 11.9 8.2 8.2 

 

37



 24 

Key Local Employment Sectors

7.3
4.7

2.9

2.7

30.3

1.3

26.8

24

Public Sector

Business & Financial Services

Retail, Hotels & Restaurants

Other Services

Transport & Comms

Manufacturing

Construction 

Primary Sectors

 
GVA per head is below the 
regional figure and does not 
reflect our favourable skills 
base 

Our supply of skilled labour is higher than the 
South East, but there is not sufficient demand 
from businesses to capitalise on this. 
 
High proportions of part-time work reflect the 
need to address the issue of under-
employment in the city. 

Employment sectors do not 
offer sufficient high GVA 
opportunities for employment 

Skilled workers are under-employed and 
contribute to skills inflation. 
 
Back office financial services jobs do not 
reflect the high GVA potential of this sector, 
suggesting a need to attract new higher value 
employers to the city.  

 

Total JSA Claimants 
Total JSA claimants (March 2010) 

Brighton and Hove

(numbers) 

Brighton and Hove

(%)

South East

(%)

Great Britain

(%)

All people 7,425 4.3 3.1 4.2 

 

Working Age Client Group 
Working-age client group - key benefit claimants (August 2009) 

Brighton and 
Hove

(numbers) 

Brighton and 
Hove

(%)

South 
East

(%)

Great 
Britain

(%)

Total claimants 27,850 16.1 11.5 15.9 

Job seekers 7,310 4.2 2.9 4.0 

ESA and incapacity 

benefits 
13,300 7.7 4.8 7.1 

Lone parents 2,960 1.7 1.5 1.9 

Carers 1,460 0.8 0.8 1.1 

Others on income related 

benefits 
840 0.5 0.4 0.5 

Disabled 1,720 1.0 0.9 1.0 

Bereaved 260 0.2 0.2 0.2 

Key out-of-work benefits† 24,410 14.1 9.6 13.5 

38



 25 

 
ESA / Incapacity benefit claims total 
nearly double the number of JSA 
claims in the city, and are much 
higher than the regional figure.  

Work needs to be done to ensure 
transition from key out of work 
benefits into employment through 
carefully targeted strategies. 

In August 2009 the total claimant 
count was 2,290 higher than August 
2000, but 3,600 higher than August 
2007. 

Monitoring the impacts of 
interventions and their efficacy is of 
high importance. 

 
The issue of unemployment in the city is a complex one with many 
dimensions; as such it cannot be represented easily in bite size graphics. The 
chart below is intended to give a visual representation of the relative scale of 
unemployment across the different wards in the city.  
 

 
 
We can see that there are concentrations of proportionately and absolutely 
higher JSA claimant rates in some wards. This does not, however, tell us 
anything of the issue of under-employment in the city. 
 
Why are the issues of unemployment in Brighton & Hove different to 
other locations?
 
The very high proportion of residents with degree level qualifications in the city 
is not reflected in our employment structure. This means that the 41% of 
residents with NVQ4+ level qualifications compete for a much smaller 
proportion of jobs demanding these skill levels.  
 
Underemployment in the city is well represented by the observed 
phenomenon of ‘PhD’s serving cappuccino’s’. This phenomenon is one 
reason for the exclusion of many residents from areas of the employment 
market that have ‘inflated’ skills criteria – retail, tourism and seasonal markets 
for jobs being prime examples. 

Unemployment by Ward (Dec. 2009)

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000 9,000 10,000 11,000 12,000

Working age Population

J
S

A
 c

la
im

s
 (

%
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 

a
g

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
)

Brunswick and Adelaide

Central Hove

East Brighton

Goldsmid

Hangleton and Knoll

Hanover and Elm Grove

Hollingbury and Stanmer

Moulsecoob and Bevendean

North Portslade

Patcham

Preston Park

Queen's Park

Regency

Rottingdean Coastal

St Peter's and North Laine

South Portslade

Stanford

Westbourne

Wish

Withdean

Woodingdean

39



 26 

 
The cumulative effect of this exclusion is highlighted by the fact that there are 
pockets of extreme relative deprivation in the city. In fact we are the 2nd most 
deprived city in the South East. East Brighton, Moulsecoomb & Bevendean, 
and Queens Park rank at the top of the city’s deprivation indexes in many 
areas. 
 
Areas of relatively low unemployment at ward level can mask more localised 
deprivation however, and pockets of deprivation can and do also exist in 
relatively affluent wards such as Wish and Rottingdean Coastal.  
 
The credit crunch has increased unemployment in the city, putting further 
competitive pressure on residents entering the labour market at low levels of 
skill or experience. It is the structure of unemployment then, rather than the 
numbers of unemployed that becomes interesting when we ask ‘What are the 
effects of the credit crunch?’ 
 
With 2% of residents in the city accounting for some 70% of the budget for 
frontline services, it is the potential effect of rising unemployment on 
deprivation that may most concern us, and with respect to child poverty in 
particular it is crucial to intervene and mitigate against increases.  
 
A key challenge in post credit-crunch Brighton & Hove will be to create 
opportunities not just for graduates, who will help drive the recovery from 
recession, but also - and arguably more importantly - for residents who are 
excluded from and squeezed out of the labour market by the dual problem of 
skills inflation and falling employment.  

 

40



 27 

Annex 3    

Worklessness Report – September 2009 

Introduction

Unemployment in Brighton and Hove stood at 6.8% in Brighton & Hove in 2008, 
equating to 9,500 people.  This compares with a South East Regional unemployment 
figure of 4.4% and a national figure of 5.7% in the same year2. Additional more 
recent data from Jobs Seekers Allowance (JSA) shows a total of 7,500 people of 
working age claiming JSA in Brighton & Hove and this figure represents 4.4% of the 
working age population3.  This compares to a South East Regional claimant figure of 
3.1% and an average national figure of 4.2%.  The figures for claimant count have 
been increasing since the lowest point on record in November 2007, but the pace of 
increase has slowed since February of this year.  This trend is in line both with the 
South East Region and nationally. 
 
Although Brighton & Hove has not suffered as badly as other parts of the region and 
nationally in terms of the impact of the recession on unemployment figures, there has 
undoubtedly been an impact, and we are not yet at the end of that in terms of jobs.  
Additionally, the historical baseline position for Brighton & Hove was been worse than 
other parts of the South East.   
 
There is a huge amount of activity in the city which is targeted at tackling 
unemployment.  The following case studies demonstrate the major initiatives that are 
being led by Brighton & Hove City Council to support residents into jobs, including 
the vulnerable and those who face greater challenges to find employment.   
 
Almost all are delivered in partnership with private, public or third sector agencies in 
the city.  The varied nature and time limited funding of activity reflects the changing 
national policy context in responding to unemployment, particularly in the face of a 
declining economy and sharply rising benefit claimants.   
 
Our role as the city council is to make the most of opportunities as they arise, 
brokering new funding streams to increase chances for residents of the city to find 
well being through sustained employment.  Our role is also to co-ordinate initiatives 
and programmes and the relationships between different providers as far as we are 
able, to avoid duplication, confusion and waste of resources.   

                                            
2 Source: ONS Annual Population Survey – note, figures are for those aged 16 and over, % are for those of working age ie 16 – 
59/64. 
3 Source: ONS claimant count with rates and proportions. 

41



 28 

Contents
 
1. City Employment & Skills Plan 
2. Apprenticeships – Brighton & Hove City Council 
3. Apprenticeships – Citywide 
4. City Futures 
5. Adult Advancement and Careers Service 
6. Local Employment Partnership 
7. Flexible New Deal 
8. Breakthrough 
9. Future Jobs Fund 
10. Young People Not in Employment, Education or Training (NEETs) 
11. Supported Employment 
12. Constructing Futures 
13. Tourism Futures 
 

1. City Employment & Skills Plan and Steering Group 

Supports
All residents 

Funding
£70,000 LABGI funding in 2008/09, 
£30,000 for 2009/10 

The City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP) is the main strategy to increase the 
number and variety of jobs in the city whilst raising personal attainment and skills for 
employment.  Its four priorities are to support the creation, retention and development 
of local business & enterprise; increase the employment rate; develop & improve 
skills for work; develop the infrastructure & intelligence to support the delivery actions 
in the CESP. 
 
The CESP has supported a number of the major employment initiatives, such as the 
Adult Advancement & Careers Service, Breakthrough and Tourism Futures.  Other 
specific achievements include the Business Lifebelt campaign to provide tailored, 
local business advice; support to Wired Sussex to develop a Digital Media Degree 
with the universities; and development of the Major Providers Group to ensure that 
contractors of publicly funded skills and employment services meet the needs of the 
city. 
 
Activity to deliver the objectives of the CESP is overseen by a steering group 
(CESSG) chaired by the Director of Culture & Enterprise for Brighton & Hove City 
Council.  The group has members representing 25 organisations from the private, 
public and voluntary sector and is part of the city’s family of partnerships under the 
Local Strategic Partnership.  A formal accord between partners delivering the CESP 
will be signed in October 2009. 

 

2. Apprenticeships – Brighton & Hove City Council 

Supports
All residents 

Funding
£35,000 City Employment Initiatives 
team 

Apprenticeships are a paid programme of learning leading to an internationally 
recognised qualification which allows the apprentice to gain the skills, knowledge and 
competence to progress within their chosen career. 
 
Since April 2009, 30 Apprenticeships have started within Brighton & Hove City 
Council, meeting the 2009/10 target.  With the successful Futures Jobs Fund bid, the 
council aims to create 30 more young peoples’ apprenticeships within its workforce. 

 

42



 29 

3. Apprenticeships – Citywide 

Supports
All residents 

Funding
tbc 

The first citywide Apprenticeship Strategy is currently undergoing consultation with 
training providers, employers and other stakeholder organisations. The strategy sets 
out a target to increase the number of Apprenticeships offered in the city by 500 by 
2012.  Key recommendations of the strategy are better IAG on Apprenticeships for 
young people and more employability training. 
 
A detailed action plan to implement the strategy will be developed in Autumn 2009..  
The new National Apprenticeship Service (NAS) is being embedded across the 
country and close links between local NAS employees, education and training 
providers and employers in the city are progressing well. 

Specific improvements are sought from the key employment sectors, particularly the 
creative industries, sport and leisure and the public sector.  Public sector employers 
are exploring ways to work together even more closely to increase the number of 
Apprenticeships on offer by 150 per annum. 

 

4. City Futures 

Supports
All residents 

Funding
£8,500 JCP and Federation of Disabled 
People 

In June 2009, the council, in partnership with Jobcentre Plus, provided a free City 
Futures jobs and careers fair at the prominent Brighton Centre on the seafront. This 
had been discontinued by the previous sponsor, but it was felt to be of crucial 
importance to the city in a time of recession. 
 
The event was attended by approximately 1500 people with over 18 large employers 
advertising more than 2000 jobs.  Following its success, the event will be repeated 
on 4 June 2010 at the same venue. 
 
The event also offered advice and training for those looking to re-skill or for help in 
finding employment.  Business Link and its partners offered specific advice and 
support for those wishing to become self-employed.  

 

5. Adult Advancement & Careers Service 

Supports
All residents; target areas 

Funding
£400,000 Learning and Skills Council 

Brighton & Hove City Council successfully bid to become one of ten prototypes to 
trial approaches for a new, national Adult Advancement & Careers Service (AACS). 
This will offer integrated employment advice and referrals to residents whether in 
person, via the phone or on the internet. 
 
Each month pilot AACS centres in the city are helping over 50 individuals.  A number 
of online information tools, including Google Maps and social networking sites, will be 
launched for front line workers on 1 October ‘09.  The information portal which has 
been developed in partnership with the local Primary Care Trust is operational and is 
being trialed at various health establishments as well as in the AACS centres 
www.ipbh.org.uk 
 

43



 30 

AACS centres have opened at the Working Links project in the city centre and 
outlying hubs in community venues at The Bridge (Moulsecoomb), Whitehawk Inn 
and the Hangleton and Knoll Project.  Residents receive help with debt management, 
health, housing, child care, training and courses and job searching.  Work is ongoing 
with partners to increase the range of services on offer including Welfare to Work 
(W2W) providers, Business Link, the Community and Voluntary Sector, health 
practitioners and Job Centre Plus. 

 

6. Local Employment Partnership 

Supports
The long term unemployed 

Funding
£145,000 LABGI to March 2010 
£40,000 JCP employer subsidy 

Brighton & Hove City Council has signed up to a Local Employment Partnership to 
provide opportunities to residents who might otherwise find it difficult to enter regular 
employment, as well as supporting the corporate commitment to create a diverse 
workforce that is representative of the local community. 
 
Since July 2008, well over 80 local residents have been employed by the council in a 
wide range of roles up to S01/02 level, with a drop out rate of only one employee.  
The council’s LEP project has won regional and national awards and recognition for 
its achievements and is the only dedicated team in the country. 
 
The LEP provides support to applicants through the recruitment process and also 
when the candidates are in their new roles, as well as offering accredited training 
during their employment. 

 

7. Flexible New Deal 

Supports
The long term unemployed 

Funding
Annual contract value £20.3m from DWP 
for Kent, Surrey and Sussex 

Flexible New Deal aims to provide a range of personalised support packages for 
residents who have been in receipt of Jobseekers Allowance for 1 year or more.  The 
new sub-regional contract for Sussex, Surrey and Kent has been awarded to two 
providers who are new to operating in the city. 
 
Skills Training UK aims to help 1500 residents per annum into work placements and 
will have their offices based in the city.  They have met with members of the Local 
Authority and the CESSG and are keen to work in partnership to link to the range of 
services already available. 
 
Maximus Training will subcontract with existing organisations in the city.  An 
introductory meeting between Maximus and members of the CESSG to share their 
plans will also be arranged 

 

8. Breakthrough 

Supports
The long term unemployed; target areas 

Funding
2008/09 £130,000 WNF, £50,000 Skills 
for Health, £23,750 CYPT 
2009/10 £130,000 LABGI/LPSA2 + in 
kind support from partners 

44



 31 

Breakthrough works one to one with adults experiencing multiple disadvantage, who 
are in receipt of benefit and many of whom were unemployed for 3-18months.  
Predominately the focus has been on adults living in Whitehawk, Moulsecoomb, 
Woodingdean, Hollingdean, Tarner/Eastern Road and Hangleton & Knoll areas of the 
city. 
 
In 2008/9 support was given to 345 adults, 52 of whom entered employment, 57 
undertook work experience placements and a further 91 participated in volunteering 
opportunities to provide them with confidence and skills. 
 
Breakthrough will continue in 2009/10 with LABGI and Local Public Service 
Agreement (LPSA2) funding and will target those who have recently been made 
redundant.  The project is delivered primarily by the outreach teams at the Bridge 
(Moulsecoomb), Whitehawk Inn, Varndean College and Brighton & Hove City 
Council, with the work experience element supplied by Care Co-ops. 

 

9. Future Jobs Fund 

Supports
Young people 

Funding
Up to £2.3 million from DWP 

Brighton & Hove City Council successfully led a bid for the Future Jobs Fund for £2.3 
million, which will create new job opportunities for long term unemployed 18 – 24 
year olds, as part of the government’s Young Persons Guarantee. 
 
The scheme will last for 18 months, commencing from October 2009 with the aim of 
creating 350 new jobs.  Each job will aim to have a community and / or environmental 
benefit, as well as raising the self confidence and aspirations of the individual. 
 
With over 30 partners involved including the public and third sector, as well as social 
enterprises, this will be one of the most significant measures to address 
unemployment among young people in the city. 

 

10. Young People Not in Employment, Education or Training (NEETs) 

Supports
Young people 

Funding
 

NEET Reduction 
Entry to Learning – a pilot programme that provides young people aged 16-19 with 
additional support from Trusted Adults.  50 young people have benefited from 
support and progressed so far this year with a target of 150 by the end of the year.  
The Trusted Adult works up an action plan with the young person and brokers the 
education and training they require to enter mainstream education or employment 
with training. 
Entry to Employment (e2e) – additional e2e provision is now offered in the 
mainstream colleges. Over 100 additional places were offered in 2008/9 with a 
further 45 places in 2009/10, in addition to the 300 places already available year on 
year.  These are work related courses that offer pre-employment and life skills 
sessions that enable young people to look at career options and Apprenticeships. 

NEET Prevention 
An additional 200 learning opportunities each year are provided under the Key 
Stage 4 Engagement Programme, which provides level one accredited provision 
for 14-16 year olds at risk of disengagement.  City College Brighton and Hove 
has also increased the availability of vocational provision for 14-16 year olds 
from 250 to 500 places each year.

 

45



 32 

11. Supported Employment  

Supports 
Those with disabilities mental health 
needs, health conditions 

Funding
Council funding, business income and 
funding from DWP 

The City Council’s Supported Employment Team works with disabled people and 
people with health conditions who have significant support needs, in gaining and 
retaining employment. 
The service has existed in various guises for over 20 years and supports up to 200 
people using the DWP Workstep grant funding, including 22 staff in a council run 
factory facility.  This funding stream will end in October 2010 as the existing contract 
is moving to a single regional contractor under DWP procurement policy.  This will 
impact significantly on the council services as they are currently structured. 
The service works with 75 different employers helping them to make reasonable 
adjustments, apply for Access to Work funding, staff training and provide an 
individual support package for disabled members of staff.  Particular initiatives are 
focused on widening expectations in employment with professionals, such as Social 
Workers, FE Colleges and health staff, and raising aspirations for the individual. 

 

12. Constructing Futures 

Support to 
Unemployed residents age 16-19, 19-24 
with special needs, 19+ without level 2 
NVQ 

Funding
£50,000 LABGI 
Interreg bid for 1.6m Euros 

Brighton & Hove City Council is developing a local labour scheme for the city. This 
will legally require developers, through the planning application process, to advertise 
job vacancies through the scheme and make jobs, work experience and training 
places available to unemployed residents of the city.  A similar scheme will be 
developed with the council’s Housing Department to support residents into 
employment through the council’s new housing maintenance contracts. 
The city council’s Economic Development team has bid for Interreg ‘Four Seas’ 
funding for Anglo-European projects in partnership with City College, the Planning 
Department, the Children & Young People’s Trust and French partners from Grant 
Synthe.  The outcome of the bid will be known in May 2010. 
If successful this bid will fund outreach work offering individuals a needs assessment, 
taster courses in different constructions skills through City College and brokerage 
with a developer for work placements or an Apprenticeship.   

13. Tourism Futures 

Supports
Unemployed adults 

Funding
£70,000 Working Neighbourhoods Fund 

The Tourism Futures steering group, which includes the city council, LSC, Job 
Centre Plus, SEEDA City College and other training providers, meets on a regular 
basis to support the development of employment and training opportunities for 
residents and businesses in the tourism, retail and hospitality industry. 
 
The first year of the Tourism Pre-employment Training Programme, funded by 
Economic Development, was completed in April 2009.  40 residents received training 
and support, 38 entered work placements, with 10 entering employment. 
 
The second year is currently under review due to changes in the local delivery of 
Welfare to Work programmes.  A decision will made after the Flexible New Deal 
provision starts in October 2009 since one of the main elements of this project is the 
after care support provided to individuals through the training provider’s Welfare to 
Work programmes. 

46



 33 

Annex 4      

Terms of Reference 

Partnership Roles within the  
City Employment & Skills Steering Group 2010 

CESSG Partner Purpose/ Role 

South East of England Development 
Agency (SEEDA) 

Regional policy and priorities 
 

Learning & Skills Council (LSC) Adult & Young Peoples accredited training

Jobcentre Plus (JCP) Return to work services for the 
unemployed / Commissioning and support 
for local employment projects 

Brighton & Hove City Council (BHCC) 
Children & Young People’s Trust 
(CYPT)

Adult Education, 14 – 19 Partnership, 
Adult Learning Partnership, Education 
Business Partnership 

BHCC Policy BHCC political priorities, corporate 
knowledge and expertise 

BHCC Economic Development (ED) Business support signposting,  workforce 
development, sites & premises, pre-
planning advice 

BHCC Housing Housing benefits, benefits linked to return 
to work programmes 

Community Voluntary Sector Forum 
(CVSF)

Representing voluntary, community sector 
and not for profits promoting training / 
advice and guidance, or community 
outreach services 

City College Brighton & Hove (CCBH) Community learning, accredited training, 
business support 

Business Community Partnership 
(BCP)

Promotion of Social Enterprise 

Primary Care Trust (PCT) Outreach service, return to work 
programmes 

Business Link Government funded business support 
services in the city 

Economic Partnership (EP) Representing business needs in the city 

University of Brighton Research & Development for business, 
Community University Partnership, Peer 
to peer learning for business 

University of Sussex/ Sussex Learning 
Network (SLN) 

Research & Development for business, 
Creative network, Graduate Internships, 
Innovation & Growth team partner 

Skills Funding Agency (SFA) Post 19 accredited learning 

47



 34 

Partnership Roles within the  
City Employment & Skills Steering Group 2010  

 

Attending to report Purpose/ Role 

Sussex Employment & Skills Board Conduit between the two groups 

BHCC Performance Management of the LAA Interplan 

 

Chair:

BHCC Director Housing Culture & Enterprise 

Deputy Chair: 

BHCC Head of Culture & Enterprise 

LSP nominated representative: 

Principal City College Brighton & Hove 

SESB nominated representative: 

BHCC Economic Development Manager 
 
Secretariat:
 
BHCC Economic Development 

48



 35 

  
 

City Employment and Skills Steering Group (CESSG) 

Terms of Reference 

(December 2007) 

The key objective of the CESSG is to ensure the implementation and ongoing review 
of the Brighton & Hove City Employment and Skills Plan (CESP). 
 
In pursuing this objective the CESSG will: 
 

  Provide a cohesive and co-ordinated group of representatives from across the 
council and other relevant organisations to include the Learning & Skills 
Council, the Primary Care Trust, Business Link and Jobcentre Plus among 
others. 
 

  Contribute to the development of the Local Area Agreement, and agree 
measurable targets against which the CESP can be delivered. 
 

  Work collaboratively with each other to identify and agree the priority actions 
for focus of the CESP activity; identify funding opportunities and work toward 
greater synergy in commissioning. 
 

  Continue to review the CESP the priorities to ensure that they remain relevant 
to the local economy and demography.  
 

  Ensure that the CESP is appropriately disseminated and that mechanisms 
are in place to facilitate the participation of delivery organisations in meeting 
the CESP priorities. 
 

  Report the progress and actions of the CESP to the LSP via the Economic 
Development & Enterprise Board (EDEB) and the Child and Young Peoples 
Trust (CYPT) Board. 
 

  Each CESSG member will report to their own management board as 
appropriate 
 

  Each CESSG will be responsible for disseminating CESSG activity to their 
members and partner organisations 

 
Operating principles: 
 

1. Chair: Meetings will be chaired by the Director for Cultural Services at 
Brighton & Hove City Council. 
 

2. Membership: EDEB x 1, SEEDA x 1, LSC x 2, JCP x 2, BHCC/ CYPT x 2, 
BHCC / ED x 2, BHCC/ Policy x  2, BHCC / Housing x 1, CVSF x 1, CCBH x 
1, BCP x 1, PCT x 1, Business Link x 1, BHEP x 1 
 

49



 36 

3. Secretariat: Secretariat services for the CESP steering group will be provided 
by the Economic Development and Enterprise Unit at Brighton & Hove City 
Council. These services include; the organisation of all meetings and 
catering, booking venues and the drafting and circulation of the groups’ 
agenda’s, minutes and papers. 
 

4. Meetings: Meetings will be a held bi-monthly, as determined by members of 
the group. Meetings will be held in various venues across the CESSG 
membership. 

 
 
 
Glossary: 
 
CESSG –  City Employment and Skills Steering Group 
CESP –     City Employment and Skills Plan 
EDEB –     Economic Development and Enterprise Board 
LAA –       Local Area Agreement 
CYPT –     Child and Young Peoples Trust 
SEEDA –  South East England Development Agency 
LSC –        Learning & Skills Council 
JCP –        Jobcentre plus 
BHCC –     Brighton & Hove City Council 
ED –          Economic Development 
CVSF –     Community and Voluntary Sector Forum 
BCP –       Business Community Partnership 
PCT –       Primary Care Trust 
BHEP –    Brighton & Hove Economic Partnership 
 
 
 

 
 

50



 37 

Annex 5

CESP thematic Action Plan 2009/10 
 

 

Strategic Priority: SP1  
Theme: Business Support 

Lead Organisation: BHCC-ED 
Overall lead: Cheryl Finella 
Data input: Angela Gaitani 

Key City Employment and Skills Steering Group (CESSG) partners / other partners 

  BHEP

  SEEDA

  Business Link 

  Universities

  BCP

  CVSF

  Chamber of Commerce 

  Wired Sussex 

  Federation of Small Businesses 

 
1. City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP) Priorities that this theme will address 

a. 1a: Ensure that there is sufficient and appropriate employment space to support the creation of new 
jobs 

b. 1b: Increase the level of entrepreneurship and business performance 

 
2. Current activities to address this theme? 

a. Business Support Simplification Programme (BSSP) 
b. Business Clinics offered to local SMEs that are more than 2 years old 
c. Provide funding to Brighton & Hove Chamber of Commerce in offering events and training sessions to 

local businesses 
d. Social Enterprise Strategy 
e. Economic Development Strategy 
f. City council Recession Relief package to support Businesses 
g. Support employers to help them recruit effectively and train their staff through Train to gain 

3. What additional areas of joint/partnership activities should/could add value in 2009/10? 
 

Activity Action Partners Timeframe Responsibility 

Establish an Innovation 
and Growth Team (IGT) 
to service the needs of 
the businesses in the city 

Working with partners 
across B&H and East 
Sussex to develop a 
robust business plan that 
secures SEEDA funding, 
and to deliver an effective 
IGT 

SEEDA, 
BHCC-ED, 
BHEP, BL, 
Universities 

4/09-06/09 Tony Mernagh 

Deliver against the 
priorities of Social 
Enterprise Strategy 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment on Action 
Plan 
Enhance Steering Group 
Develop the More than 
Profit Network 
incorporating Social 
Enterprises, business, 
statutory sector and other 
3rd sector partners 

BHCC-ED, 
BCP, CVSF 

09/09 
 
06/09-09/09 
04/09-03/10 
 
 
 
 
04/09-03/10 
 

Overall: Thea 
Alison 
Data: Emma 
Morgan 

51



 38 

Deliver Range of product 
development and capacity 
building workshops and 
surgeries to social 
enterprises 
Better Project – 
embedding social impact 
measurement into pilot 
Social Enterprises 
Gather information on 
needs and challenges for  
Procurers and 
Commissioners in 
Statutory Sector in relation 
to contracting with Social 
Enterprises 

 
 
04/09-03/10 

Extend the recession 
relief package  

Implement Business 
Lifebelt project  

BHCC-ED, 
BL 

02/09 – 07/09 Cheryl Finella 
Data: Rob 
Dawson 

Provide one to one 
business support 

Rolling 12 month 
programme of clinics 
121 business 
improvement reviews 
(these can be chunked up 
into sectors - is there a 
preference?) 
Non-intensive assistance 
Generic non-intensive 
assistance 
GVA per employee (IA)

Business 
Link 

 Kerry Kyriacou 

Deliver the Creative 
Workspace action plan 

Work with developers and 
landlords to consider how 
vacant commercial space 
can be made accessible to 
the creative sector. 
Explore opportunities for 
new creative space within 
new developments 

BHCC ED / 
Planning 

06/09 – 03/10 Cheryl Finella 
Data: Angela 
Gaitani 

 
 

LAA refreshed targets agreed in March 2010 

LAA outcome Baseline Target 
08/09

Target
09/10

Target
10/11

Comment  Lead Partners

L 2   Increase GVA 
per head 

£18,833 
(2005) 

£20,185 
 

£18,500 £18,685 Revised 
targets 
following 
revised ONS 
baseline 

Brighton & 
Hove City 
Council & Job 
Centre 
Plus/City 
Employment & 
Skills Steering 
Group

52



 39 

 
Strategic Priority: SP1 / SP2 
Theme: Entrepreneurship 

Lead Organisation: BHEP/ BHCC-ED 
Overall: Cheryl Finella 

 
Key City Employment and Skills Steering Group (CESSG) partners / other partners 

  CYPT

  Business Link 

  SEEDA

  Sussex Innovation Centre 

  Education Business Partnership 

 
1. City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP) Priorities that this theme will address 
a. 1b: increase the level of entrepreneurship and business performance 
b. 2a: increase the number of jobs in the city that can be accessed by priority groups 
c. 2b: increase the number of people with labour market disadvantage accessing and remaining in 

sustainable employment  
d. 3a: improve the skills and employability of young people 

 
2. Current activities to address this theme? 
a. Business Link Enterprise Gateway Service 
b. Business Link core service – 1-2-1 Business review 
c. Training, advice and support programmes delivered by Brighton & Hove Chamber of Commerce, InBiz 

etc. 
d. Sussex Innovation Centre – providing support for the creation and growth of technology and 

knowledge based companies in Sussex 
e. Support provided through national programmes, e.g. Shell LiveWire (16-30 yrs old), The Prince’s Trust 

etc. 
f. Universities – innovation and growth  team project 
g. Business Community Partnership – Social Enterprise Strategy actions 

3. What additional areas of joint/partnership activities should/could add value in 2009/10? 

Activity Action Partners Timeframe Responsibility 

 
Co-ordinated design and 
delivery of start up clinics 
and workshops  

 
Rolling 12 month 
programme of clinics 
121Start-up  
Start-up workshop 
programme 
Non-intensive assistance 
Generic non-intensive 
assistance 

BL 
BHCC 
SINC 

4/09 Kerry Kyriacou 

LAA refreshed targets agreed in March 2010 
 

LAA outcome Baseline Target 
08/09

Target
09/10

Target
10/11

Comment  Lead Partners 

NI 171 New 
business 
registrations  
 
 

71.8 
 

 

64.0 
 
 

64.0 74.0 Renegotiated Brighton & Hove 
City Council & 
Job Centre 
Plus/City 
Employment & 
Skills Steering 
Group

 

53



 40 

Strategic Priority: SP1/SP2  
Theme: Inward Investment and Retention 

Lead Organisation: BHCC-ED 
Overall: Cheryl Finella 

Key City Employment and Skills Steering Group (CESSG) partners / other partners 

  BHEP

  SEEDA

  Business Link 

  BHCC-Planning 

 
1. City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP) Priorities that this theme will address 
a. 1a: Ensure that there is sufficient and appropriate employment space to support the creation of new 

jobs 
b. 1b: Increase the level of entrepreneurship and business performance 
c. 2A: Increase the number of jobs in the city that can be accessed by priority groups 

2. Current activities to address this theme? 
a. Business Retention and Inward Investment (BRII) strategy 
b. Economic Development Strategy 
c. Assisting businesses to find suitable commercial premises in the city (included in the BRII) 
d. Creative work space study 

3. What additional areas of joint/partnership activities should/could add value in 2009/10? 
 

Activity Action Partners Timeframe Responsibility 

Take forward the BRII 
Implementation Plan 

Deliver the year one action 
plan including a marketing 
& communication strategy 
to promote the city/ 
establish a business 
enquiry database/ produce 
a business welcome pack/ 
update the Commercial 
property database 

BHCC-ED, 
BHEP, BL, 
SEEDA 

05/09-03/10 Cheryl Finella 
Data: Andy 
Glover 

Maximise the support of 
Investment 
Development Manager 
(IDM) 
Work with SEEDA’s 
new focus on 
international trade, 
inward investment 
nurturing global 
companies 

Work with:  

  SEEDA to revise the IDM 
role and link it more 
closely to the BRII 
priorities 

  SEEDA sector consortia 
and other sector 
organisations as well as 
SEEDA’s business 
operations team 

SEEDA 06/09 – 03/10 Cheryl Finella 

Support the Creative 
workspace Study 

Explore opportunities for 
new creative space within 
new developments 

BHCC ED / 
Planning 

04/09 – 03/10 Cheryl Finella 

LAA refreshed targets agreed in March 2010 

LAA outcome Baseline Target 
08/09

Target
09/10

Target
10/11

Comment  Lead Partners 

NI 171 New 
business 
registrations  
 
 

71.8 
 

 

64.0 
 
 

64.0 74.0 Renegotiated Brighton & Hove 
City Council & Job 
Centre Plus/City 
Employment & Skills 
Steering Group

 

54



 41 

Strategic Priority: SP1/SP2  
Theme: Information, Advice and Guidance 

Lead Organisation: BHCC- CYPT 
Overall and data: Dan Shelley 

Key City Employment and Skills Steering Group (CESSG) partners / other partners 

  LSC

  JCP

  CVSF

  Universities (SLN) 

  Business Link Enterprise Gateway service 

 
1. City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP) Priorities that this theme will address 
a. 2a – increase the number of jobs in the city that can be accessed by priority groups 
b. 2b – increase the number of people with labour market disadvantage accessing and remaining in 

sustainable employment 
c. 2d – develop appropriate actions to support individuals facing redundancy 
d. 3a – improve the skills and employability of Young People 
e. 3b – improve the skills of the City’s workforce 
f. 3c – improve the skills of disadvantaged adult residents in the city 

 
2. Current activities to address this theme? 
a. Advice Services Network, PCT, Sussex Partnership Trust 
b. Next Step service providing Careers advice and guidance in the city 
c. Breakthrough – a partnership of city council and third sector organisations providing 1:1 support and 

advice to unemployed residents 
d. Connexions Service providing careers advice and support to 13-19 year olds 
e. Co-location of Housing and work & learning advice services 
f. Sussex Learning Network - Learning at Work Information Service (LAWIS) and Learning Opportunities 

in the South East 
g. JCP contracted advice services, i.e. Pathways to work, Flexible New Deal,  

3. What additional areas of joint/partnership activities should/could add value in 2009/10? 
 

Activity Action Partners Timeframe Responsibility 

Implement the Adult 
Advancement and 
Careers Service 
(aacs) prototype  
Redevelopment of 
Palace Place and 
First Base to provide 
co-location of 
housing, work and 
learning services, 
IAG 
 
Extend role of 
Housing Options to 
include links to work 
and learning 
 
Improving access to 
work and learning 
for tenants in social 
housing 

– Host launch event 
– Ensure all commissioned 

services link with aacs to 
explore co-location, joint 
CPD and databases 

– Referrals between partners’ 
services 

– Refurbishment undertaken 
(centre operational Summer 
2010) 

– Stepping In Project for 
people in temporary 
accommodation 

– Training for Options Staff 
– Pilot for Turning the Tide 

JCP/LSC 
contractors, 
PCT and 
wider 
Advice 
services, 
Housing, 
AACS 
delivery 
partners 

23/3 
 
 
 
 
 
July/Aug 09-
Summer 2010 
 
Jan 10 
 
Autumn/Spring 
09/10 
July 09-Mar 10 

Dan Shelley 

Agree a citywide 14-
19 IAG Strategy for 

– Jointly produced LMI 
– Strategy developed 

ED/CYPT August 09 
March - June 

Dan Shelley 

55



 42 

the city to provide 
impartial guidance 
that includes up to 
date resources on 
Diplomas, 
Apprenticeships and 
the local Labour 
Market Intelligence 
(LMI) 

– Strategy signed off by 14-19 
Partnership Board 

October 09 

 
LAA refreshed targets agreed in March 2010 

LAA outcome Baseline Target 
08/09

Target
09/10

Target
10/11

Comment  Lead Partners

NI 79 Achievement 
of a Level 2 
qualification by the 
age of 19  

69% 
(07/08) 

78% 80% 82% No change Learning
Skills Council 

NI 117 16 to 18 
year olds who are 
not in education, 
training or 
employment 
(NEET)  

9.3% 7.6% 7.10% 6.70% No change Learning
Skills Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56



 43 

Strategic Priority: SP2  
Theme: Volunteering 

Lead Organisation: CVS Forum 
Overall: Paul Bramwell 

 
Key City Employment and Skills Steering Group (CESSG) partners / other partners 

  BCP

  JCP

  Business Link Enterprise Gateway service  

  Working Together Project 

  Volunteer Centre 

  Volunteer Strategy Steering Group 
 

 
1. City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP) Priorities that this theme will address 
a. 2b: Increase the number of people with labour market disadvantage accessing and remaining in 

sustainable employment  
b. 3a: Improve the Skills and Employability of Young people  
c. 3b: Improve the Skills of the City’s Workforce 
d. 3c: Improve the Skills of Disadvantaged Adult Residents in the City 

 

 
2. Current activities to address this theme? 
a. LSC - Volunteers eligible for free Train To Gain training leading to Skills for Life, full level 2 (including 

repeat level 2s from the approved list), and full level 3 qualifications 
b. Volunteering strategy 
c. Volunteer Centre Brokerage and good practice support in working with volunteers 
d. BCP Business Action on Homelessness 
e. LSC ESF project with B&H Albion to promote volunteering related to sport and the Olympics (includes 

Personal best qualification) 
f. Brighton & Hove Volunteers – supporting youth volunteering 
g. Working Together Project – training for neighbourhood based voluntary run community groups 
h. Frontline VCOs providing volunteering programmes across the city 
i. JCP – Community Services Volunteer (CSV) 

3. What additional areas of joint/partnership activities should/could add value in 2009/10? 

Activity Action Partners Timeframe Responsibility 

Develop  and 
Implement 
Volunteering 
Strategy  

Partners to contribute to 
the development 

Strategy steering 
group 

 Paul Bramwell 

Enhance citywide 
brokerage and 
volunteer placement 
service 
 

In line with the 
Volunteering Strategy, 
CESSG to support the 
enhancement of 
brokerage services, and 
offering an attractive and 
integrated package to 
potential volunteers, 
including access to 
training as well as 
support to maintain and 
develop their skills in the 
(voluntary) workplace 
and access to 
employment support 
when it is needed.  

JCP – CSV, 
Volunteer Centre, 
Brighton & Hove 
Volunteers, 
Active Student, 
ProjectV, JCP, 
Employment 
support 
contractors, 
Working Together 
Project 

06/09 – 03/10 Paul Bramwell 

57



 44 

Enhance and 
coordinate outreach, 
to promote 
volunteering around 
the city  

Develop a network of 
volunteer co-ordinators 
and connect it to the 
network of outreach / 
advice workers and the 
CESP outreach funders 
group.  

Outreach 
Funders Group 
BHCC 
Working Together 
Project 
Volunteer Centre 
Volunteer 
Strategy Steering 
Group 
 

06/09 – 03/10 Paul Bramwell 

 
LAA refreshed targets agreed in March 2010 

 

LAA outcome Baseline Target 
08/09

Target
09/10

Target
10/11

Comment  Lead 
Partners

NI 6 Participation 
in regular 
volunteering 

23.9% 
08/09 

baseline 

Baseline 
year 

 26.6% 
 
Place 
Survey  
2010 

Updated 
baseline – 
targets 
pending 
comparative 
data 

Brighton & 
Hove Council 
& Stronger 
Communities
Partnership 

NI 7 Environment 
for a thriving third 
sector  

19.8% 
08/09 

19.8%  ) 
 

25.0% 
(5.2% 
increase  
in new 
survey  
2010) 

Updated 
baseline &  
targets 

Brighton & 
Hove Council 
& Stronger 
Communities
Partnership 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

58



 45 

 
Strategic Priority: SP2/3 
Theme: Pre-employment training and 
support

Lead Organisations: JCP 
Overall lead: Grahame Widdowson 

 
Key City Employment and Skills Steering Group (CESSG) partners / other partners 

  BHCC 

  City College Brighton and Hove 

  Business Link Enterprise Gateway service  

  Working Links 

  VCS Forum members (e.g. Together Project) 

 
1. City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP) Priorities that this theme will address 
a. 2b: Increase the number of people with labour market disadvantage accessing and remaining in 

sustainable employment  
b. 3a: Improve the Skills and Employability of Young people  
c. 3b: Improve the Skills of the City’s Workforce 
d. 3c: Improve the Skills of Disadvantaged Adult Residents in the City 

 
2. Current activities to address this theme? 
a. Outreach working and courses developed through the BHLP Adult Learning Group 
b. JCP Pathways to Work  
c. DWP ESF contracts  
d. LSC ESF Skills for Jobs contracts (Albion, BHCC, Working Links) and 6 month unemployed and rapid 

response 
e. JCP New Deal 
f. JCP Programme Centres 
g. LSC funded courses for 16-18s and 19+ including Entry to employment (e2e) 
h. LSC Employability Skills (Tomorrow’s People) 
i. LSC Offender Learning and Skills Service (OLASS) 
j. Futures models in the tourism and construction sector 
k. Housing Work and Learning Services 
l. City Sector Routeway group (consists of JCP and main contracted partners working in the City:  A4E, 

W Links, RBLI, CDG, with City College to join). 
m. JCP run group jobsearch sessions. 
n. JCP/BHCC LEP workshops 
o. Future Jobs Fund.   

3. What additional areas of joint/partnership activities should/could add value in 2009/10? 
 

Activity Action Partners Timeframe Responsibility 

Worklesness/ 
Outreach funders 
group 
 

– Map outreach provision in 
the city and work with 
partners towards greater 
collaboration in planning 
and delivery 

– Work towards joint 
commissioning and links to 
the AACS 

BHCC, 
PCT, 
Voluntary 
Sector

06/09 – 03/10 
 
 
 
Review in March 
2010 

Cheryl Finella 

Closer cooperation 
between Major 
Contractors in 
delivering front line 
services  

Providing performance 
outcomes to contribute to the 
LAA 

Major 
Providers 
Group 

06/09 – 03/10 Angela Gaitani 

59



 46 

Develop a legally 
enforceable 
obligation for 
developers (SPD/ 
S106) linked to the 
provision of skills 
and employments 
opportunities for 
residents 

– Prepare the Interreg EU bid 
in partnership with France 

– Support the progression of 
SPD 

BHCC - ED, 
Planning, 
International 
Team 

06/09-03/10 Cheryl Finella 

Improving access to 
work and learning 
for residents in 
social housing 

– Turning the Tide Pilot 
– City-wide roll out 2010-

2012 

Housing, 
AACS 
delivery 
partners 
JCP/LSC 
contractors, 
PCT and 
wider advice 
services 

July 09-Mar 2010 Emma Gilbert 

 
 

Existing targets (with any potential stretch due to added value) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

LAA outcome Baseline Target 
08/09

Target
09/10

Target
10/11

Comment Lead Partners

NI 79 Achievement 
of a Level 2 
qualification by the 
age of 19  

69% 
(07/08) 

78% 80% 82% No change Learning
Skills Council 

NI 117 16 to 18 
year olds who are 
not in education, 
training or 
employment 
(NEET)  

9.3% 7.6% 7.10% 6.70% No change Learning
Skills Council 

NI 152 Working 
age people on out 
of work benefits 

12.9% 12.3% 12.0% 11.7% Renegotiated Brighton & 
Hove City 
Council & Job 
Centre
Plus/City 
Employment 
& Skills 
Steering
Group

NI 163 Working 
age population 
qualified to at least 
Level 2 or higher  

75.3% 76.9% 77.9% 79% No change Learning
Skills Council 

60



 47 

 
Strategic Priority: SP2/3 
Theme: In-employment training and support 

Lead Organisation: LSC 
Overall lead: Michael Nix 

 
Key City Employment and Skills Steering Group (CESSG) partners / other partners 

  JCP

  City College Brighton and Hove 

  Sussex Learning Network 

  Sussex Enterprise/Business Link/South East Skills 

  CVSF 

  Train To Gain partners 

 
1. City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP) Priorities that this theme will address 
a. 2a: Increase the number of jobs in the city that can be accessed by priority groups  
b. 2b: Increase the number of people with labour market disadvantage accessing and remaining in 

sustainable employment  
c. 2c: Develop partnerships with employers to promote diversity in the workplace and to respond to their 

recruitment and retention needs 
d. 2d: Develop appropriate actions to support individuals facing redundancy 
e. 3a: Improve the Skills and Employability of Young people  
f. 3b: Improve the Skills of the City’s Workforce 
g. 3c: Improve the Skills of Disadvantaged Adult Residents in the City 

 
2. Current activities to address this theme? 
a. LSC Train to Gain and Employer responsive provision 
b. LSC National Apprenticeship Service 
c. Adult Advancement and Careers Service 
d. Local Employment Partnerships (LEPs) 
e. Contribution to Sussex Employment & Skills Board 
f. ESF contracts for colleges (responding to recession) 
g. Tourism Futures 
h. Housing employment support services eg BAOH, Working Support Service, LD Work & Skills Group 

3. What additional areas of joint/partnership activities should/could add value in 2009/10? 

Activity Action Partners Timeframe Responsibility 

Develop a citywide 
Apprenticeship 
Strategy for the city 
that increases the 
number of 
placements 
available and 
reduces the contacts 
employers have on 
skills related issues 
 

– Draft strategy consulted 
with employer 
representative groups 

– Development of citywide 
marketing strategy for 
Apprenticeships 

– Work with Skills South 
East, NAS and CCB to 
ensure a cohesive 
approach to employers 
develops in the city 

– Plan joint attendance at the 
city’s employer 
representative groupings 

– 1 page provider matrix 
outlining the city’s 
Apprenticeship offer  

City Council 
LSC 
Skills South East 
BHEP 
City College

 Dan Shelley 

Increase the number 
of employers in the 

– Use CESP employer links 
to sell the concept of the 

LSC 
JCP 

06/09 – 
03/10 

Angela Gaitani 
Input from Joe 

61



 48 

city signing both the 
Skills Pledge and 
Local Employment 
Partnerships. 

wider workforce 
development benefits 
including apprenticeships 
and encourage employers 
to sign the Skills Pledge, 
LEP agreements 

– Ensure all relevant 
employment and skills 
funding is linked and  
packaged to benefit 
employers in a targeted 
way  

– Ensure Business Link, SSE 
and LEP managers have 
fully effective 
communication 
arrangements so referrals 
are made   

Davenport/ 
Grahame 
Widdowson 

Systematically 
publicise the Train to 
Gain and Skills 
Pledge offer to 
employers in an 
employer-friendly 
format 

– Produce and distribute local 
1 page publicity materials 
and web content  

 

SCTP 
LSC 
Skills South East 

06/09 – 
03/10 

Vernice Halligan 

Working with SESB 
to ensure that the 
needs of Brighton & 
Hove employers are 
reflected in future 
provision 

– Provide representation on 
the SESB and disseminate 
the new CESSG priorities 
with the aim of influencing 
regional policy decisions 

CESSG / SEEDA 06/09 – 
03/10 

Cheryl Finella 

Housing 
Management 
Improvement 
Programme  
Maintenance 
Contracts 
Procurement - 
Objectives for 
community 
regeneration and 
wellbeing 

– Procurement Process  
– Co-ordination and 

programme management of 
identified work, training and 
employment opportunities 
prior to contracts coming 
into effect in April 2010  

 

Housing 
Econ Dev 
Successful 
contractor and 
identified partners 

July 2009 – 
Mar 2010 

Emma Gilbert 

Develop a flexible 
and accessible 
framework of higher 
level CPD 
opportunities to 
increase the take up 
of workplace training 
at level 4 and 
beyond 

– Consultations with 
employers to establish and 
define areas of demand 

– Remodelling of existing 
curriculum to meet 
established needs 

– Delivery of flexible, modular 
curriculum offer in 
partnership with employers 

SLN partners 
(two Universities, 
City College), City 
Council, Major 
Providers Group, 
, B&H Economic 
Partnership, LSC 
and possibly JCP 
and Business 
Link  

06/09 – 
05/12 
 
 
 
 
01/10 – 
05/12 

Viki Faulkner 

 

62



 49 

LAA refreshed targets agreed in March 2010 
 

LAA outcome Baseline Target 
08/09

Target
09/10

Target
10/11

Comment Lead Partners 

NI 79 Achievement of 
a Level 2 qualification 
by the age of 19  

69% 
(07/08) 

78% 80% 82% No change Learning Skills 
Council

NI 117 16 to 18 year 
olds who are not in 
education, training or 
employment (NEET)  

9.3% 7.6% 7.10% 6.70% No change Learning Skills 
Council

NI 152 Working age 
people on out of work 
benefits 

12.9% 12.3% 12.0% 11.7% Renegotiated Brighton & 
Hove City 
Council & Job 
Centre Plus/City 
Employment & 
Skills Steering 
Group

NI 163 Working age 
population qualified 
to at least Level 2 or 
higher  

75.3% 76.9% 77.9% 79% No change Learning Skills 
Council

63



 50 

 

Strategic Priority: SP4 
Theme: Partnership working 

Lead Organisation: BHCC-ED 
Overall: Cheryl Finella 
Data: Angela Gaitani 

 
Key City Employment and Skills Steering Group (CESSG) partners / other partners 

  All CESSG members 

 
1. City Employment & Skills Plan (CESP) Priorities that this theme will address 
a. 4a: Develop and sustain effective arrangements between partners 
b. 4b: Improve intelligence, data-sharing and a common understanding of city employment and skills 

needs 

 
2. Current activities to address this theme? 
a. CESSG Meetings and activities 
b. CESSG working group activity 
c. Partnership data group meetings with focus on economic, employment and learning data 
d. Regular updates to LSP/PSB to ensure commitment at the highest level 

3. What additional areas of joint/partnership activities should/could add value in 2009/10? 
 

Activity Action Partners Timeframe Responsibility 

Relevant 
Performance 
updates from all 
partners against 
areas of work 

Performance information at 
meetings 
Performance analysis 
undertaken by CESSG WG 
and distributed to main board 
Commitment to interventions 
and actions from relevant 
partners 

All CESSG 
partners

06/09-03/10 Angela Gaitani 

Ensure that other 
partnerships are 
aware of their 
contribution to the 
employment and 
skills work 
undertaken by 
CESSG 

Some activities listed below 
Improve the dissemination of 
the CESSG actions to all 
related partners 
Specific workshops/ events 
organised between 
partnerships focusing on links 
between other themes and 
employment and skills 

All CESSG 
partners

06/09-03/10 All leads 

Annual CESSG 
workshop 

CESSG working group to plan 
and propose the programme 
Review performance and plan 
future activities 

All CESSG 
partners 

06/09-03/10 Cheryl Finella 

Establish the CESP 
accord which will 
outline partners’ 
commitments to 
deliver the CESP 

CESSG Members to attend 
formal signing event for the 
Accord 

All CESSG 
partners  

06/09-03/10 Angela Gaitani 

Establish key 
mechanisms to 
ensure annual 
sharing of business 
planning between 
and with partners to 
maximise 

CESSG members to share 
information on business 
planning cycles and indicate 
which elements of the CESP 
will be considered 
Timetable agreed and plans 
shared 

All CESSG 
partners 

06/09-03/10 All leads 

64



 51 

partnership working 
and impact  

Improve intelligence 
sharing regarding 
the flow of vacancies 
and the needs of 
employers 

Draft list for JCP to consider All CESSG 
partners 

06/09-03/10 All leads 

Evolve Integrating 
Employment and 
Skills (IES)  

Implement IES in Brighton & 
Hove by: 
1. Introduction of training for 6 
month unemployed involving 
college, JCP and VT. 
2. Introduction of training for 
12 month unemployed 
3 Launch of ‘IES Light’ IAG 
service for unemployed 
through VT, JCP and AACS 
prototype  
4 Through the Major Providers 
Network, obtain the optimum 
working relationship and 
referral arrangements between 
LSC providers, JCP providers 
and VT 

LSC, JCP 06/09-03/10 Val Koffman 

Work together to 
access and harness 
funding from 
different sources to 
meet employment 
and skills needs in 
the city 

Joint application for the Future 
Jobs Fund 

All CESSG 
partners 

06/09-03/10 All leads 

Ensure all relevant 
activities are tracked 
by LAA 

Interplan database will monitor 
the progress of the CESP 
action plan 
Lead partners to get training 
and start using the Interplan 
database  

BHCC 06/09-03/10 Lisa Shaw 

 
LAA refreshed targets agreed in March 2010 

LAA outcome Baseline Target 
08/09

Target
09/10

Target
10/11

Comment  Lead Partners

L 2   Increase GVA 
per head 

£18,833 
(2005) 

£20,185 
 

£18,500 £18,685 Revised 
targets 
following 
revised ONS 
baseline 

Brighton & 
Hove City 
Council & Job 
Centre
Plus/City 
Employment 
& Skills 
Steering
Group

65



 52 

Annex 6          

CESSG Accord 
 

66



 
5
3
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 A
n

n
e
x
 7

  
 

 
 

In
te

rp
la

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

C
it
y

 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 S
k
il
ls

 P
la
n

C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
k
il
ls

 S
te

e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

E
n
d

 o
f 
y
e
a
r 
re
p
o
rt

 (
0
9
/1
0
)

67



 
5
4
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

I
n

d
ic

a
t
o

r
s

P
E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 I

N
D

I
C

A
T
O

R
U

N
I
T

T
A

R
G

E
T

A
C

T
U

A
L

S
T
A

T
U

S
L
a
t
e
s
t
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t
s

 1
9

,4
7

7
.0

0
 1

8
,5

0
0

.0
0

 
L

 0
2

 –
 G

ro
s

s
 V

a
lu

e
 A

d
d

e
d

 P
e

r 
H

e
a

d
 

£
 

G
V

A
 (

G
ro

s
s
 V

a
lu

e
 A

d
d

e
d

) 
is

 a
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
. 

A
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 G
V

A
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 

is
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
e

. 
 

 B
ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 G
V

A
 g

re
w

 a
t 

a
ro

u
n

d
 

3
%

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 2
0

0
6

-7
; 

th
e

 S
E

 g
re

w
 

a
t 

a
ro

u
n

d
 4

%
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
c
o

u
n

tr
y
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 s

lo
w

e
r,

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 N

E
 

a
n

d
 M

id
la

n
d

s
’s

 a
re

a
s
. 

T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s
 

th
a

t 
B

&
H

 G
V

A
 i
s
 g

ro
w

in
g

 f
a

s
te

r 
th

a
n

 
m

o
s
t 

c
it
ie

s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

. 
 B

&
H

 
G

V
A

 i
s
 g

ro
w

in
g

 a
t 

a
 f

a
s
te

r 
ra

te
 t

h
a

n
 

m
o

s
t 

c
it
ie

s
, 

a
n

d
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 
d

o
 s

o
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

C
it
ie

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
0

. 

  

 7
.8

0
 

 7
.6

0
 

N
I1

1
7

 –
 1

6
 t

o
 1

8
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s

 w
h

o
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 (
N

E
E

T
) 

%
T

h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 

re
s
u

lt
 i
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 b
e

in
g

 
a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
N

o
v
/D

e
c
/J

a
n

. 
 T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 

w
e

ll 
w

it
h

 n
e

a
re

s
t 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

r 
re

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
7

.9
%

 (
B

ri
s
to

l)
 a

n
d

 8
.2

%
 

(B
o

u
rn

e
m

o
u

th
) 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 s

tr
o

n
g

. 
 

N
E

E
T

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
is

in
g

 i
n

 
re

c
e

n
t 

m
o

n
th

s
. 

In
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
9

 t
h

e
re

 
w

e
re

 5
0

0
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 3
9

8
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
8

. 

  

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
2

9

68



 
5
5
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

I
n

d
ic

a
t
o

r
s

P
E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 I

N
D

I
C

A
T
O

R
U

N
I
T

T
A

R
G

E
T

A
C

T
U

A
L

S
T
A

T
U

S
L
a
t
e
s
t
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t
s

 6
3

.3
0

 
 6

3
.0

0
 

N
I1

7
1

 –
 N

e
w

 b
u

s
in

e
s

s
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 r
a

te
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 (
V

A
T

 a
n

d
 P

A
Y

E
) 

N
o

.
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

 p
ro

x
y
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 f

o
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

ta
rt

-u
p

s
 

(a
c
tu

a
l 
m

e
a

s
u

re
 i
s
 V

A
T

 a
n

d
 P

A
Y

E
 

p
e

r 
1

0
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
).

  
 T

h
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

T
h

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
e

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

to
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 

 
 In

 t
h

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

r 
C

it
ie

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
, 

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 w

a
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 a
s
 

h
a

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 6
th
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

ir
th

 
ra

te
 (

o
u

t 
o

f 
6

4
 o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s
 –

 4
9

.6
%

) 
–

 
th

is
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 a
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

d
e

a
th

 r
a

te
 o

f 
4

2
.4

%
. 

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

fe
a

tu
ri

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 t
e

n
 f

o
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

b
ir

th
s
 w

e
 a

ls
o

 f
e

a
tu

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 t
e

n
 

fo
r 

h
ig

h
 s

k
ill

e
d

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
n

d
 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 –

 t
h

is
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 o
u

r 
h

ig
h

 r
a

te
 o

f 
e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

ri
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
a

ls
o

 r
e

fe
rs

 t
o

 o
u

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

to
c
k
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 r
a

n
k
 

2
n

d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 6
4

 a
re

a
s
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

d
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 (

a
 s

to
c
k
 o

f 
4

5
6

.5
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
).

 

  

 1
9

.8
0

 
 1

6
.2

0
 

N
I0

0
7

 –
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

a
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 t

h
ir

d
 s

e
c

to
r 

%
 

D
a

ta
 s

o
u

rc
e

 –
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
T

h
ir

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 2

0
0

8
. 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 1

6
.2

%
, 

a
s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 y
e

a
r 

n
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 s

e
t,

 i
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 

a
s
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

 
p

u
t 

th
e

 B
ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

to
 

c
o

n
te

x
t.

 
T

h
e

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 2

4
.8

%
. 

  

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 3
 o

f 
2

9

69



 
5
6
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

I
n

d
ic

a
t
o

r
s

P
E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 I

N
D

I
C

A
T
O

R
U

N
I
T

T
A

R
G

E
T

A
C

T
U

A
L

S
T
A

T
U

S
L
a
t
e
s
t
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t
s

 7
8

.9
0

 
 7

7
.9

0
 

N
I1

6
3

 –
 P

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

 t
o

 L
e

v
e

l 
2

 o
r 

h
ig

h
e

r 
%

T
h

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
y
e

a
r 

2
0

0
8

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

h
e

 
la

te
s
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

T
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

 w
a

s
 6

9
.4

%
. 

  

 7
6

.0
0

 
 7

8
.0

0
 

N
I0

7
9

 –
 A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 L

e
v
e

l 
2

 q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
1

9
 

%
 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 g

iv
e

n
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
2

0
0

7
/0

8
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

  
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 w

a
s
 7

3
%

 

  

 2
4

.3
0

 
 2

3
.2

0
 

N
I0

0
6

 –
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 

%
 

T
h

is
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

2
0

0
8

 P
la

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
. 

T
h

e
 U

K
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 2

3
.2

%
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

8
 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

s
 t

h
e

 0
8

 w
a

s
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 y
e

a
r.

 

  

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 4
 o

f 
2

9

70



 
5
7
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

I
n

d
ic

a
t
o

r
s

P
E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 I

N
D

I
C

A
T
O

R
U

N
I
T

T
A

R
G

E
T

A
C

T
U

A
L

S
T
A

T
U

S
L
a
t
e
s
t
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t
s

 1
3

.3
0

 
 1

3
.4

0
 

N
I1

5
2

(i
) 

–
 P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 c

la
im

in
g

 o
u

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n

e
fi

ts
 

%
T

h
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
 a

n
d

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 ‘
k
e

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

’.
 G

iv
e

n
 t

h
a

t 
a

 d
ir
e

c
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

a
n

y
 r

e
c
e

s
s
io

n
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 i
t 

fo
llo

w
s
 t

h
a

t 
N

I 
1

5
2

 
h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 c
la

im
in

g
 J

S
A

 
in

 G
re

a
t 

B
ri

ta
in

 h
a

s
 d

o
u

b
le

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
a

s
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 B
ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 b
e

tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 
J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n

ts
, 

e
v
e

n
 t

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 

w
a

s
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 f
ro

m
 a

 h
ig

h
e

r 
b

a
s
e

lin
e

. 
C

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

r 
C

it
ie

s
 2

0
1

0
 p

u
ts

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 
in

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 t
e

n
 c

it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
in

e
q

u
a

lit
y
 (

in
 N

o
v
 0

9
) 

w
h

e
n

 
lo

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
c
la

im
a

n
t 

c
o

u
n

ts
 

g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
lly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
. 

  
 T

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 a
 f

o
u

r 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 u

p
 u

n
ti
l 
A

u
g

 2
0

0
9

 –
 1

3
.3

%
 i
s
 

th
e

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

to
 2

3
,6

7
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

. 
T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
1

3
.4

%
 i
s
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

th
a

t 
tr

a
c
k
s
 a

t 
1

.1
%

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
. 

  

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 5
 o

f 
2

9

71



 
5
8
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

I
n

d
ic

a
t
o

r
s

P
E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 I

N
D

I
C

A
T
O

R
U

N
I
T

T
A

R
G

E
T

A
C

T
U

A
L

S
T
A

T
U

S
L
a
t
e
s
t
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t
s

 7
4

.1
0

 
 7

2
.8

0
 

N
I1

5
1

 –
 T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 i

n
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
%

T
h

is
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 d

o
 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

o
n

e
 h

o
u

rs
 p

a
id

 w
o

rk
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

A
ls

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 u
n

p
a

id
 i
n

 f
a

m
ily

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 a
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 J

u
l 
0

8
-J

u
n

 0
9

 a
n

d
 

is
 e

q
u

a
l 
to

 1
3

1
,2

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 (

to
ta

l 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
s
 1

7
3

,2
0

0
).

 
 C

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

r 
C

it
ie

s
 2

0
1

0
 s

e
e

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 
fa

ir
in

g
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

jo
b

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 o
u

r 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 b
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 

h
ig

h
e

s
t 

p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
jo

b
s
 g

ro
w

th
 

ra
te

 o
u

t 
o

f 
th

e
 6

4
 c

it
ie

s
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 
th

e
 s

tu
d

y
 –

 t
h

is
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
e

 
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 i
n

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 c
o

m
e

. 

  

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 6
 o

f 
2

9

72



 
5
9
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

T
h

e
m

e
 :

 1
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

- 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 T
e
a
m

 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 S

E
E

D
A

 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

T
o

n
y
 M

e
rn

a
g

h
 –

 C
.E

. 
o

f 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
0

1
/0

4
/0

9
 

3
0

/0
6

/0
9

 

- 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 7
 o

f 
2

9

- 
A

 f
in

a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 £
2

.6
m

 o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 E
a

s
t 

S
u

s
s
e

x
 

a
n

d
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 I
n

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 &

 G
ro

w
th

 T
e

a
m

 (
IG

T
) 

w
a

s
 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 S

E
E

D
A

 o
n

 9
th
 O

c
to

b
e

r.
 

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
- 

T
h

e
 I

G
T

 i
s
 t

a
s
k
e

d
 t

o
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 £

5
0

m
 o

f 
#

n
fl
u

e
n

c
e

#
 G

V
A

 
a

n
d

 £
2

5
m

 o
f 

p
ri

v
a

te
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 J

a
n

 2
0

1
0

 a
n

d
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

. 
 

T
h

e
 I

G
T

 w
a

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 o
n

 0
1

.0
1

.2
0

1
0

 b
u

t 
th

is
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 b

y
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fa
c
to

rs
. 

- 
T

h
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 p
a

s
s
e

d
 a

ll 
th

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
S

E
E

D
A

 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
u

s
s
e

x
 I

n
n

o
v
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 [
S

in
C

] 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
s
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
r/

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 B

o
d

y
. 

S
in

C
 a

n
d

 S
E

E
D

A
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 G

ra
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

[G
F

A
] 

fo
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
w

e
e

k
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 b
u

t 
it
 i
s
 

h
o

p
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 G

F
A

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
s
o

rt
iu

m
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 1

5
th
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 f

o
r 

th
e

 I
G

T
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 
im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft

e
r 

th
is

 d
a

te
.

73



 
6
0
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
 

- 
 

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

 S
te

e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 
- 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 M

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 P
ro

fi
t 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
, 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
, 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

3
rd

 s
e

c
to

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

- 
D

e
liv

e
r 

R
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
p

ro
d

u
c
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 a

n
d

 
s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 t

o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
 

- 
B

e
tt

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

e
m

b
e

d
d

in
g

 s
o

c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
in

to
 p

ilo
t 

S
o

c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
 

- 
G

a
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

o
r 

P
ro

c
u

re
rs

 a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

rs
 i
n

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
in

 
re

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 S
o

c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
 

J
u

d
it
h

 C
o

u
s
in

 –
 I

n
te

ri
m

 
C

E
O

 –
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

- 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

- 
S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

n
o

w
 h

a
s
 3

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
 a

s
 a

c
ti
v
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 
- 

M
o

re
 T

h
a

n
 P

ro
fi
t 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 h

a
s
 2

1
8

 c
ro

s
s
-s

e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

o
n

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 l
is

t 
(o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 8

0
 a

re
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
).

  
N

e
tw

o
rk

 o
ff

e
r 

re
c
e

n
tl
y
 d

ra
ft

e
d

 w
it
h

 r
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 3
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

e
v
e

n
ts

. 
O

n
 m

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 l
is

t 
h

a
s
 

g
ro

w
n

 t
o

 2
5

7
. 

- 
P

ro
d

u
c
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 a

n
d

 
s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 v

e
ry

 w
e

ll-
s
u

b
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 

- 
B

e
tt

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

e
m

b
e

d
d

in
g

 s
o

c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
–

 6
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 t
o

 a
d

o
p

t 
a

n
d

 e
m

b
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

o
c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

 A
s
 o

n
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
0

 –
 t

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

p
h

a
s
e

 
b

e
in

g
 o

n
e

-t
o

-o
n

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 m
e

n
to

ri
n

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

F
ir
s
t 

s
e

t 
o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

ilo
t 

s
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

ro
m

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

. 
- 

 
B

e
tt

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

–
 G

a
th

e
ri

n
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

a
c
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
u

re
rs

 
in

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
. 

 A
t 

th
e

 f
ir

s
t 

e
v
e

n
t 

fo
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

rs
, 

th
e

re
 w

a
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 e
v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 1

5
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
o

n
ly

 6
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

rs
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 a

n
d

 
p

re
s
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

id
d

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
. 

A
s
 o

n
 M

a
rc

h
 1

s
t  2

0
1

0
 –

 4
6

 p
ro

c
u

re
rs

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

rs
 a

re
 o

n
 T

h
e

 B
e

tt
e

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 l
is

t.
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
n

 
u

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 T
h

e
 B

e
tt

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

h
a

v
in

g
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 f
o

r 
d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
u

re
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

rs
. 

 
- 

In
te

rn
a

lly
 a

t 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 p
o

o
lin

g
 o

f 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

v
o

lu
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 B
C

P
 h

a
s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
s
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 
s
h

a
re

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
u

p
d

a
te

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
w

it
h

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

fa
c
e

 t
o

 
fa

c
e

 e
v
e

n
ts

 b
e

in
g

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

d
 f

o
r 

s
im

ila
r 

ti
m

e
-s

c
a

le
. 

0
1

/0
4

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 8
 o

f 
2

9

74



 
6
1
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

- 
E

x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
 r

e
lie

f 
p

a
c
k
a
g

e
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 L

if
e

b
e

lt
 p

ro
je

c
t 

R
o

b
 D

a
w

s
o

n
 –

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

if
e

b
e

lt
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 c
o

m
p

le
te

, 
a

s
s
is

ti
n

g
 1

4
0

7
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

n
e

-t
o

-o
n

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 1
4

 e
v
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 –

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
8

7
%

 o
f 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

fr
o

m
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

if
e

b
e

lt
 e

v
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 ‘
g

o
o

d
’ 
o

r 
‘e

x
c
e

lle
n

t’
 (

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 

s
a

m
p

le
 =

 1
9

5
).

 B
e

lo
w

 i
s
 a

 b
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t:

 -
 

 1
. 

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 C

it
y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

lin
ic

s
 (

F
e

b
 –

 J
u

ly
) 

M
a

rk
e

te
d

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 s
e

c
to

rs
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 C

it
y
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

lin
ic

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
ta

ilo
re

d
 1

to
1

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
s
h

-f
lo

w
 a

d
v
ic

e
. 

 
 

3
9

 S
M

E
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
2

. 
 2

. 
S

e
c
to

r-
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 (

M
a

rc
h

 –
 S

e
p

t)
 

F
iv

e
 s

e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 t

h
a

t 
fo

c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
c
to

rs
.

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 t
o

p
ic

s
 w

e
re

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
to

r 
a

n
d

 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 s

e
c
to

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
ts

. 
 

4
9

3
 S

M
E

S
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 s

e
c
to

r-
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
0

0
.

 3
. 

“M
e

e
t 

th
e

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
” 

D
ro

p
 I

n
 (

A
p

ri
l)

 
D

ro
p

-i
n

 e
v
e

n
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 C

h
a

m
b

e
r 

w
h

e
re

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 c

a
n

 
‘s

p
e

e
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
’ 
in

d
u

s
tr

y
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

ts
, 

b
a

n
k
e

rs
, 

s
o

lic
it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 d
ig

it
a

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
. 

  
7

5
 S

M
E

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0

0
. 

 4
. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 E

v
e

n
t 

(M
a

y
) 

F
u

ll-
d

a
y
 e

v
e

n
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
 g

ro
u

p
. 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 s

u
b

s
id

is
e

d
 s

ta
n

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 u

p
 b

y
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

te
a

m
s
 a

n
d

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
  

 
8

0
0

 S
M

E
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
0

0
. 

0
1

/0
2

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

7
/0

9
 

- 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 C

re
a
ti
v
e
 W

o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 9
 o

f 
2

9

75



 
6
2
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 t

o
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
s
p

a
c
e

 
c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 
s
e

c
to

r.
 

E
x
p

lo
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 
s
p

a
c
e

 w
it
h

in
 n

e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

C
h

e
ry

l 
F

in
e

lla
 –

 L
e

a
d

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 

W
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 o
f 

N
e

w
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 

H
o

u
s
e

, 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
m

o
n

g
s
 o

th
e

r 
th

in
g

s
, 

th
e

 c
o

s
ts

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 a
n

y
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

. 
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

n
e

w
 a

n
d

 o
r 

p
re

-p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 
w

o
rk

s
p

a
c
e

 w
h

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 a
 s

lo
w

 d
o

w
n

 i
n

 n
e

w
 b

u
ild

. 
 A

 n
e

w
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
p

o
s
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 c
re

a
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

E
D

 t
e

a
m

, 
th

e
 p

o
s
th

o
ld

e
r 

w
ill

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 s

e
c
to

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
re

a
ti
v
e

 I
n

d
s
u

tr
ie

s
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 i
n

 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

- 
P

ro
v
id

e
 o

n
e

 t
o

 o
n

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
0

 o
f 

2
9

76



 
6
3
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
R

o
lli

n
g

 1
2

 m
o

n
th

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
c
lin

ic
s
 

- 
 

1
2

1
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

re
v
ie

w
s
  

- 
N

o
n

-i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 
- 

G
V

A
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 (

N
o

te
: 

G
ro

s
s
 V

a
lu

e
 

A
d

d
 e

x
tr

a
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 h

a
v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 
In

te
n

s
iv

e
ly

)

K
e

rr
y
 K

y
ri
a

c
o

u
 –

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

L
in

k
 

P
e

ri
o

d
: 

1
s
t  A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

9
-3

0
th
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

9
 (

R
o

lli
n

g
 4

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rs

) 
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

lin
ic

s
: 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 &
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  
2

0
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
lin

ic
s
 ,

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 1

9
 I

n
te

n
s
iv

e
 A

s
s
is

t 
9

5
%

 o
n

 
ta

rg
e

t.
 (

J
u

ly
 t

o
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r)
 

1
2

1
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
s
: 

8
7

0
* 

In
te

n
s
iv

e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
: 

7
.9

%
 p

e
n

e
tr

a
ti
o

n
 (

ID
B

R
 n

o
. 

o
f 

B
&

H
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
) 

 
*I

n
c
lu

d
e

s
 I

n
te

n
s
iv

e
 A

s
s
is

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

lin
ic

s
. 

 
+

 4
8

%
 o

v
e

r 
ta

rg
e

t:
 +

3
7

%
 o

v
e

r 
L

.Y
r 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
tt

ri
b

u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
L

if
e

b
e

lt
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

h
a

v
in

g
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
B

L
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 
*2

4
5

 I
a

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 w

it
h

 f
e

m
a

le
 o

w
n

e
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
: 

2
4

2
 I

a
s
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 R
e

a
l 
E

s
ta

te
, 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 &

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
: 

5
7

 I
a

s
 i
n

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
, 

S
o

c
ia

l 
&

 P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
: 

5
9

 I
a

s
 i
n

 R
e

ta
il 

&
 

W
h

o
le

s
a

le
 s

e
c
to

rs
 &

 3
4

 I
a

s
 i
n

 H
o

te
ls

 &
 R

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

. 
 

1
5

 I
a

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
o

c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 s
e

c
to

r:
 A

 l
o

w
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

d
e

n
o

ti
n

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 i
n

 r
a

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
L

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 s
e

c
to

r.
 T

h
o

u
g

h
 N

o
n

 I
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h

in
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
 i
s
 m

u
c
h

 m
o

re
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

  
 N

o
n

 I
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

: 
6

,7
6

2
 n

o
n

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 i
n

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
s
: 

6
1

.3
9

%
 p

e
n

e
tr

a
ti
o

n
. 

(I
D

B
R

).
  

+
 3

7
%

 o
v
e

r 
ta

rg
e

t:
 +

 3
2

%
 o

v
e

r 
L

.Y
r 

A
g

a
in

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
tt

ri
b

u
te

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 L
if
e

b
e

lt
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

P
e

n
e

tr
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 a

re
a

s
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 +

2
3

%
 o

v
e

r 
L

.Y
r,

 a
tt

ri
b

u
te

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 G
a

te
w

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
S

o
c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
 i
s
 +

9
%

 o
v
e

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
a

tt
ri
b

u
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

B
&

H
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 
 In

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

, 
a

n
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

IA
 &

 N
o

n
 I

A
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
in

d
ic

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

a
t 

a
 v

e
ry

 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
h

e
lp

s
 r

e
a

c
h

 m
a

n
y
 m

o
re

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

 
 G

V
A

 p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
: 

£
1

6
,0

0
0

 p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 i
s
 m

o
d

e
ra

te
ly

 b
e

lo
w

 E
a

s
t 

S
u

s
s
e

x
 a

t 
£

1
8

,0
0

0
 p

.e
, 

th
o

u
g

h
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 W

e
s
t 

S
u

s
s
e

x
 a

t 
£

3
0

,0
0

0
 

p
.e

 a
n

d
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
tt

ri
b

u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
e

s
s
io

n
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

G
V

A
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 o

f 
£

6
,0

0
0

 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 
g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 m

o
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

S
u

s
s
e

x
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
, 

 

0
1

/0
4

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
1

 o
f 

2
9

77



 
6
4
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

s
ig

n
if
y
in

g
 p

e
rh

a
p

s
 l
e

s
s
 r

e
d

u
n

d
a

n
c
ie

s
 p

e
r 

c
o

m
p

a
n

y
. 

T
h

e
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 i
n

 B
&

H
, 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

0
9

 w
a

s
 t

h
e

 l
o

w
e

s
t 

in
 

S
u

s
s
e

x
, 

s
u

g
g

e
s
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
 

to
 o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s
 m

u
c
h

 l
o

w
e

r.
 (

M
a

n
y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 r
u

ra
l 
a

re
a

s
 i
n

 
S

u
s
s
e

x
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
e

s
s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
e

s
s
io

n
 t

h
o

u
g

h
 a

s
 w

e
 

k
n

o
w

 C
o

a
s
ta

l 
to

w
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
o

re
 v

e
n

e
ra

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

s
s
io

n
).

 
S

in
c
e

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

0
9

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 B
&

H
 i
s
 m

u
c
h

 m
o

re
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
, 

s
h

o
w

in
g

 a
 s

lig
h

t 
d

ip
 a

g
a

in
 i
n

 S
e

p
t 

b
u

t 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

fo
re

c
a

s
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 p

e
a

k
e

d
 a

t 
£

4
,7

0
0

 p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 

re
s
t 

o
f 

S
u

s
s
e

x
, 

s
u

g
g

e
s
ti
n

g
 g

re
a

te
r 

re
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

p
ti
m

is
m

. 
G

V
A

 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 e

x
tr

a
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 B

L
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 w
it
h

 I
n

te
n

s
iv

e
ly

 
a

n
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 s
u

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 o

n
ly

.

T
h

e
m

e
 :

 2
 E

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
h

ip
 

- 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
ta

rt
 u

p
 c

lin
ic

s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p

s
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
2

 o
f 

2
9

78



 
6
5
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
1

2
1

 S
ta

rt
-u

p
  

- 
 

S
ta

rt
-u

p
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

- 
N

o
n

-i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 

K
e

rr
y
 K

y
ri
a

c
o

u
 –

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

L
in

k
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

s
t  A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

9
 t

o
 3

0
th
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

9
 –

 R
o

lli
n

g
 4

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 1

2
7

 s
ta

rt
 u

p
 I

n
te

n
s
iv

e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 +
3

2
7

%
 o

v
e

r 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 

ro
lli

n
g

 4
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
B

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
 b

y
 s

e
c
to

r:
 

1
2

.5
%

 i
n

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

1
2
%

 i
n
 R

e
ta

il 
5
0
%

 i
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
5
%

 i
n
 H

e
a
lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
 

 W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
: 

N
o

n
 I

n
te

n
s
iv

e
 a

s
s
is

t 
 

In
 t

h
is

 p
e

ri
o

d
 6

5
 s

ta
rt

 u
p

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 r

a
n

 i
n

 B
&

H
 a

lo
n

e
 w

it
h

 a
n

 
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

4
5

5
 d

e
le

g
a

te
s
, 

a
v
e

ra
g

in
g

 7
 d

e
le

g
a

te
s
 p

e
r 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

. 
 

X
2

 S
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 w

e
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 w

it
h

 2
6

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s
.

T
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

p
o

p
u

la
r 

m
a

in
s
tr

e
a

m
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 w

a
s
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

fo
r 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

3
3

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
d

e
le

g
a

te
s
. 

T
h

e
 l
e

a
s
t 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 w
a

s
 t

h
e

 p
re

 s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 t
it
le

d
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
 t

h
a

t 
h

e
lp

s
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 a
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

 
T

h
e

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 a
re

: 
F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
S

u
c
c
e

s
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 M

o
n

e
y
 

W
in

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

ta
in

in
g

 n
e

w
 w

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 

0
1

/0
4

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

T
h

e
m

e
 :

 3
 I
n

w
a
rd

s
 I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 R

e
te

n
ti

o
n

 

- 
T

a
k
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e
 B

R
II
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
3

 o
f 

2
9

79



 
6
6
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 &

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
/ 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

e
n

q
u

ir
y
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

/ 
p

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

w
e

lc
o

m
e

 p
a

c
k
/ 

u
p

d
a

te
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 

A
n

d
y
 G

lo
v
e

r 
–

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
s
it
e

s
 

a
n

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 

T
h

e
 B

R
II

 1
s
t  y

e
a

r 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 B
R

II
 B

o
a

rd
. 

 
  –

 A
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 i
n

 p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 v

a
ri

o
u

s
 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
to

rs
. 

4
 e

v
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
h

e
ld

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 B

R
II

 w
a

s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
.

 –
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 i
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 e

n
q

u
ir

y
 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 w
h

e
re

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
, 

tr
a

c
k
e

d
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
. 

A
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
, 

tr
a

c
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 w
it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 –
 A

 W
e

lc
o

m
e

 P
a

c
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

it
y
, 

it
s
 k

e
y
 s

e
c
to

rs
, 

th
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 v

a
ri

o
u

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

T
h

is
 W

e
lc

o
m

e
 P

a
c
k
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
d

a
p

te
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
, 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 
th

e
 c

it
y
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 t

o
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 m
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 a
s
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
. 

 –
 T

h
e

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 g

o
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 
m

a
jo

r 
o

v
e

rh
a

u
l 
u

p
g

ra
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 f

ro
n

t 
e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 w
it
h

 a
 

m
o

re
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
fe

e
l 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
e

d
. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 b
e

in
g

 b
u

ilt
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 t
o

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 w

it
h

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 m

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
p

a
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d

 #
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 o
n

 
lin

e
 1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 

0
1

/0
5

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

- 
M

a
x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

(I
D

M
) 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
4

 o
f 

2
9

80



 
6
7
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

: 
 

• 
S

E
E

D
A

 t
o

 r
e

v
is

e
 t

h
e

 I
D

M
 r

o
le

 a
n

d
 l
in

k
 i
t 

m
o

re
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 B
R

II
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

• 
S

E
E

D
A

 s
e

c
to

r 
c
o

n
s
o

rt
ia

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
s
e

c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

• 
S

E
E

D
A

’s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 t

e
a

m
 

C
h

e
ry

l 
F

in
e

lla
 –

 L
e

a
d

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 

S
E

E
D

A
’s

 n
e

w
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

b
e

in
g

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 

a
s
 y

e
t 

u
n

c
le

a
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
; 

th
e

 
S

E
E

D
A

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 B

R
II

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
g

ro
u

p
 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
u

p
d

a
te

s
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

 T
h

e
 I

n
n

o
v
a

ti
o

n
 &

 G
ro

w
th

 T
e

a
m

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
to

 S
E

E
D

A
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
re

 d
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 t
h

is
 m

o
n

th
. 

W
h

e
n

 i
n

 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 t

h
e

 I
G

T
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 E
a

s
t 

S
u

s
s
e

x
 &

 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 w
it
h

 g
ro

w
th

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l;
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

c
ri
te

ri
a

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 g
ro

w
th

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

m
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 f
o

r 
lo

n
g

-t
e

rm
 g

ro
w

th
. 

A
ro

u
n

d
 2

5
0

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 w

ill
 

re
c
e

iv
e

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 w

it
h

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
7

0
0

 -
9

0
0

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 l
e

s
s
 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 
to

 o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 S
ta

ff
 i
n

 E
D

 a
re

 p
u

lli
n

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 d
a

ta
 f

o
r 

th
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 
P

ro
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

a
 s

e
c
to

r 
#

in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 P
ro

p
o

s
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

d
ig

it
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
it
io

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 b
y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

0
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

- 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e
 C

re
a

ti
v
e

 w
o
rk

s
p

a
c
e

 S
tu

d
y
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
E

x
p

lo
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 
s
p

a
c
e

 w
it
h

in
 n

e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

C
h

e
ry

l 
F

in
e

lla
 –

 L
e

a
d

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 

E
D

 t
e

a
m

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
s
p

a
c
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 T
h

e
 C

re
a

ti
v
e

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 p

o
s
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

s
o

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 

to
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

o
s
tp

o
n

e
d

. 
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 p

o
s
t 

in
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
s
e

c
to

rs
, 

in
it
ia

lly
 t

h
e

 C
re

a
ti
v
e

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
R

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
; 

th
e

 p
o

s
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

 i
n

 
th

e
 n

e
w

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 

0
1

/0
4

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

T
h

e
m

e
 :

 4
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 G
u

id
a
n

c
e
 

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
5

 o
f 

2
9

81



 
6
8
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

- 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 A

d
u
lt
 A

d
v
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

a
re

e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

a
a
c
s
) 

p
ro

to
ty

p
e
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

- 
H

o
s
t 

la
u

n
c
h

 e
v
e

n
t 

- 
 

E
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 l
in

k
 w

it
h

 
a

a
c
s
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 c
o

-l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

jo
in

t 
C

P
D

 a
n

d
 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

s
 

- 
R

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
’ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

- 
R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 (

c
e

n
tr

e
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
b

y
 S

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
1

0
) 

- 
S

te
p

p
in

g
 I

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 

fo
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

- 
T

ra
in

in
g

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 

- 
P

ilo
t 

fo
r 

T
u

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

 T
id

e
 

V
a

le
ri
e

 K
o

ff
m

a
n

 –
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

a
n

d
 S

k
ill

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

L
a

u
n

c
h

 e
v
e

n
t 

o
c
c
u

rr
e

d
 o

n
 2

7
/3

/0
9

 w
it
h

 o
v
e

r 
2

0
0

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
 

in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

#
 e

v
e

n
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

1
0

0
 f

ro
n

tl
in

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 w
a

s
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 1
/1

0
/0

9
. 

P
a

p
e

r 
b

a
s
e

d
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l 
tr

a
c
k
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 u

p
 a

n
d

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

A
C

S
 p

ilo
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 p

ilo
t 

is
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll.

 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
la

y
s
 h

a
v
e

 o
c
c
u

rr
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
a

l
A

A
C

S
 h

u
b

 a
t 

P
a

la
c
e

 
P

la
c
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 a

s
b

e
s
to

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 n
o

t 
o

p
e

n
 u

n
ti
l 
la

te
 2

0
1

0
, 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
p

ilo
t!

 T
h

is
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

is
 t

a
s
k
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
e

le
te

d
 

a
s
 a

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 r

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 f

o
u

n
d

 a
t 

W
o

rk
in

g
 L

in
k
s
. 

 B
y
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

9
 a

a
c
s
 h

u
b

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

t 
u

p
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

a
s
t 

a
n

d
 

w
e

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 a
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 N
o

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e

t.
  

T
h

e
s
e

 e
n

a
b

le
 c

o
-l

o
c
a

te
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 f

ro
m

 a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

. 
 2

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 e

v
e

n
ts

 
fo

r 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 h
e

ld
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
o

ls
 o

n
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 1

2
2

 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
 e

v
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 t
o

o
k
 

p
la

c
e

 o
n

 1
0

 F
e

b
 2

0
1

0
 .

 T
h

e
 ‘
F

ro
n

tl
in

e
rs

’ 
s
o

c
ia

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

in
g

 s
it
e

 i
s
 

u
p

 a
n

d
 r

u
n

n
in

g
. 

 A
 f

in
a

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

in
g

 e
v
e

n
t 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
is

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 i
s
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
7

 O
c
t 

2
0

1
0

 a
n

d
 s

tr
o

n
g

 l
in

k
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 8

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

0
1

/0
4

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

- 
A

g
re

e
 a

 c
it
y
w

id
e
 1

4
-1

9
 I
A

G
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

it
y
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
m

p
a
rt

ia
l 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 u

p
 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

o
n
 D

ip
lo

m
a
s
, 
A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
L
a
b
o
u
r 

M
a

rk
e
t 
In

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e
 (

L
M

I)
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
6

 o
f 

2
9

82



 
6
9
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

4
.2

.1
 J

o
in

tl
y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 L

M
I 

–
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 –
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 b
y
 1

4
-1

9
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
o

a
rd

 

P
h
ili

p
 W

a
rd

 –
 Y

o
u
th

 &
 

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
(c

it
y
w

id
e

) 

1
2

 L
o

c
a

l 
L

a
b

o
u

r 
M

a
rk

e
t 

In
te

lli
g

e
n

c
e

 (
L

M
I)

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 

th
a

t 
c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 m

a
in

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 o
n

e
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

o
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
’s

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
m

a
k
e

-u
p

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 i
n

 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 1
4

-1
9

 I
A

G
 G

ro
u

p
 b

u
t 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 A

d
u

lt
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
 

0
1

/0
4

/2
0

0
3

1
/1

0
/2

0
0

T
h

e
m

e
 :

 5
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 

5
.1

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
  
a
n
d
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
V

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

5
.1

.1
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

P
a

u
l 
B

ra
m

w
e

ll 
–

 C
V

S
F

 
T

h
e

 V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
C

e
n

tr
e

 h
a

s
 l
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

T
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 (

V
S

S
G

) 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 f

o
rm

e
d

 
to

 o
v
e

rs
e

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

s
ig

n
 i
t 

o
ff

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 
o

v
e

rs
e

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
w

o
rk

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 b
y
 t

h
e

 V
S

S
G

 i
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 g

o
 

to
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

E
S

S
G

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 L
S

P
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
g

re
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 r
e

w
o

rk
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 V

S
S

G
 h

a
s
 

n
o

w
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 b
y
 

th
e

 C
h

a
n

g
e

U
p

 C
o

n
s
o

rt
iu

m
 w

h
ic

h
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r,
 a

n
d

 i
t 

g
o

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
E

S
S

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 L

S
P

 
to

 b
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 l
a

te
r 

in
 t

h
e

 m
o

n
th

. 

0
1

/0
4

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

5
.2

 E
n

h
a

n
c
e

 c
it
y
w

id
e

 b
ro

k
e

ra
g
e

 a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
7

 o
f 

2
9

83



 
7
0
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

5
.2

.1
 I

n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

C
E

S
S

G
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
ro

k
e

ra
g

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 t
o

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
ir

 s
k
ill

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

(v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

) 
w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
h

e
n

 i
t 

is
 n

e
e

d
e

d
. 

P
a

u
l 
B

ra
m

w
e

ll 
–

 C
V

S
F

 
T

h
e

 f
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 (

V
S

S
G

) 
h

a
s
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

b
ro

k
e

ra
g

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

lo
c
a

l 
p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
f 

tr
a

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
, 

to
 m

e
e

t 
re

g
u

la
rl

y
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
ir

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

. 
 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 b
id

 f
o

r 
L

A
B

G
I 

fu
n

d
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

E
S

S
G

 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 t

h
a

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 i
n

lin
e

 w
it
h

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 i
n

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 g

a
in

 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
k
ill

s
. 

 W
o

rk
in

g
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

h
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

to
 o

ff
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 t
o

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 

m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

fu
n

d
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

, 
C

L
G

 a
n

d
 L

P
S

A
 a

w
a

rd
 f

u
n

d
in

g
. 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 e
a

rl
y
 s

ta
g

e
s
. 

 W
h

ile
 t

h
e

 L
A

B
G

I 
b

id
 w

a
s
 u

n
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l,
 b

ro
k
e

ra
g

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

C
e

n
tr

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 

th
e

 t
h

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
to

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

W
T

P
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
 t

o
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 a

 b
id

 i
n

 t
o

 E
S

F
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 G

ra
n

ts
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

W
o

rk
in

g
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
d

u
lt
 A

d
v
a

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

a
re

e
rs

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

tw
o

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 g

iv
in

g
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
a

id
 s

ta
ff

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 a
d

v
is

in
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
b

o
u

t 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
re

 t
ra

in
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
 t

h
e

 j
o

b
. 

 T
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

c
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o

g
e

th
e

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 
lo

o
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 i
n

 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 o
ff

e
r 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 t

h
e

 m
e

a
n

s
 o

f 
g

a
in

in
g

 
a

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 g

a
in

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 A
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
b

ro
k
e

ra
g

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

to
 m

o
v
e

 
th

e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

, 
w

h
ic

h
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 i
n

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

ro
k
e

ra
g

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
8

 o
f 

2
9

84



 
7
1
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

5
.3

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
, 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

5
.3

.1
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

n
e

c
t 

it
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 /
 a

d
v
ic

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

E
S

P
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 
fu

n
d

e
rs

 g
ro

u
p

. 

P
a

u
l 
B

ra
m

w
e

ll 
–

 C
V

S
F

 
T

h
e

 V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
C

e
n

tr
e

 l
e

d
 a

n
 u

n
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
b

id
 t

o
 C

a
p

a
c
it
y
B

u
ild

e
rs

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 
n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o

g
e

th
e

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

is
 a

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

 a
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 
c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e

n
 a

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
 T

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 V
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

it
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

a
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 n
e

tw
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

te
e

ri
n

g
 g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 L

P
S

A
 f

u
n

d
s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
S

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

u
s
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 n

e
tw

o
rk

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 A

n
g

ie
 

G
re

a
n

y
, 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r.
  

 W
h

ile
 t

h
is

 a
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 a

 r
e

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
t 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 l
o

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 d
o

, 
it
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

W
e

 a
re

 n
o

w
 i
n

 a
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 m

o
v
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 o

n
 t

h
is

. 
A

 
w

a
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

, 
a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

T
h

e
m

e
 :

 6
 P

re
-E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

6
.1

 W
o
rk

le
s
n
e

s
s
/ 
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 f
u

n
d

e
rs

 g
ro

u
p

 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 1
9

 o
f 

2
9

85



 
7
2
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

6
.1

.1
 –

 M
a

p
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d

 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 g
re

a
te

r 
c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
  

- 
W

o
rk

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 j
o

in
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 

th
e

 A
A

C
S

 

C
h

e
ry

l 
F

in
e

lla
 –

 L
e

a
d

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
A

A
C

S
 c

o
m

e
s
 t

o
 a

n
 e

n
d

 s
o

o
n

; 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
. 

 A
 n

e
w

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 P
C

T
 h

a
s
 j
o

in
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

a
n

d
 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 P

C
T

 a
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 a
t 

th
e

 M
a

y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 e
x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 P
C

T
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 c

a
n

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 a
 m

o
re

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 w
a

y
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

6
.2

 C
lo

s
e

r 
c
o
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 M
a

jo
r 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

6
.2

.1
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 t

o
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 L
A

A
 

A
n

g
e

la
 G

a
it
a

n
i 
–

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
fo

r 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

T
h

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 
n

o
w

 a
tt

e
n

d
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
. 

T
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 w
o

rk
in

g
 o

n
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
n

g
 e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 a
t 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
o

v
e

rl
a

p
 a

n
d

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t.

  
 S

k
ill

s
 T

ra
in

in
g

 U
K

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
t 

th
e

 M
P

G
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
E

S
S

G
. 

 
 A

n
 e

n
d

 o
f 

y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 b
o

th
 F

N
D

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
(M

a
x
im

u
s
 a

n
d

 S
k
ill

s
 T

ra
in

in
g

) 
in

 N
o

v
 2

0
1

0
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

6
.3

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 l
e
g
a
lly

 e
n
fo

rc
e
a
b
le

 o
b

lig
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
S

P
D

/ 
S

1
0
6
) 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

ts
 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
0

 o
f 

2
9

86



 
7
3
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

6
.3

.1
 –

 P
re

p
a

re
 t

h
e

 I
n

te
rr

e
g

 E
U

 b
id

 i
n

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 F
ra

n
c
e

  
- 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
S

P
D

 

C
h

e
ry

l 
F

in
e

lla
 –

 L
e

a
d

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 

A
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
In

te
rr

e
g

 b
id

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

 w
a

s
 

d
e

fe
rr

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 p
a

n
e

l;
 m

o
re

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 F

re
n

c
h

 l
e

a
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
ir

 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
y
. 

T
h

e
 b

id
 w

a
s
 r

e
-s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

0
. 

 T
h

e
 S

P
D

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

in
g

 d
ra

ft
e

d
 b

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 –

 n
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 c

a
n

 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

 u
n

ti
l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

c
u

re
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

ls
 t

o
 

s
ta

rt
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

 T
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
L

a
b

o
u

r 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
s
ta

rt
e

d
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

 
a

n
d

 i
s
 n

o
w

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

6
.4

 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 s
o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u

s
in

g
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

6
.4

.1
 –

 T
u

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

 T
id

e
 P

ilo
t 

–
C

it
y
w

id
e

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 

o
f 

2
0

1
0

-2
0

1
2

 

E
m

m
a

 G
ilb

e
rt

 –
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

N
e

e
d

s
 &

 S
o

c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 

P
ilo

t 
a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

9
.9

.0
9

 a
n

d
 H

M
C

C
 1

2
.1

0
.0

9
 

P
ilo

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
fr

o
m

 S
e

ls
fi
e

ld
 D

ri
v
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

re
a

 1
.1

1
.0

9
 

L
a

b
g

i 
b

id
 a

g
re

e
d

 1
5

.1
0

.0
9

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
W

&
L

 o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 

B
ri

d
g

e
 G

a
te

w
a

y
 T

e
a

m
  

 N
O

 E
N

D
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 M

A
D

E
 

0
1

/0
7

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

T
h

e
m

e
 :

 7
 I
n

-E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

7
.1

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
it
y
w

id
e
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

it
y
 t
h
a
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 o
n

 s
k
ill

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
1

 o
f 

2
9

87



 
7
4
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

7
.1

.1
 –

 
D

ra
ft

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 w

it
h

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

–
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
it
y
w

id
e

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 

- 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 S
k
ill

s
 S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t,

 N
A

S
 a

n
d

 C
C

B
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 c
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 

- 
P

la
n

 j
o

in
t 

a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 c
it
y
’s

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 g
ro

u
p

in
g

s
 

- 
1

 p
a

g
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

m
a

tr
ix

 o
u

tl
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
’s

 
A

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
 o

ff
e

r 

J
o

e
 D

a
v
e

n
p

o
rt

  
- 

C
it
y
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

T
h

e
 C

it
y
w

id
e

 A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 p
ri

n
te

d
 u

p
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 L

a
u

n
c
h

 e
v
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 w
e

ll 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 
a

n
d

 p
le

n
ty

 o
f 

p
re

s
s
 c

o
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
. 

A
 s

te
e

ri
n

g
 

g
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 h

e
lp

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e

w
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

 -
 2

0
1

2
, 

a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 

0
1

/0
4

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

7
.2

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 s

ig
n
in

g
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 S

k
ill

s
 P

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

7
.2

.1
 –

 
U

s
e

 C
E

S
P

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
lin

k
s
 t

o
 s

e
ll 

th
e

 
c
o

n
c
e

p
t 

o
f 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 

to
 s

ig
n

 t
h

e
 S

k
ill

s
 P

le
d

g
e

, 
L

E
P

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 
–

 
E

n
s
u

re
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 a

n
d

  
p

a
c
k
a

g
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 i
n

 a
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 w

a
y
  

- 
E

n
s
u

re
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
, 

S
S

E
 a

n
d

 L
E

P
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 f
u

lly
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 s

o
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 

a
re

 m
a

d
e

 

M
ik

e
 B

u
rg

e
s
s
 –

 J
C

P
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 "

F
u
tu

re
s
" 

m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

e
n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t.
  

C
lo

s
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 -
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
, 

th
e
 

C
it
y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 F

o
ru

m
 a

n
d
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 -

 t
o
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

ff
e
r 

fr
o
m

 J
o
b
c
e
n

tr
e
 P

lu
s
 a

n
d
 L

S
C

. 
J
o
in

t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 J

o
b
c
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
, 

L
S

C
, 

V
T

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
(N

e
x
ts

te
p
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
r)

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
f 

s
e
c
to

r 
b
a
s
e

d
 

p
re

-e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 -

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 6

m
o

n
th

 o
ff
e
r 

(f
o
r 

J
o
b
s
e
e
k
e
rs

 o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
) 

a
n
d
 o

f 
R

o
u
te

s
 i
n
to

 W
o
rk

 f
o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 (
a
g
e
 1

8
-2

4
) 

P
ro

p
o
s
in

g
 C

E
S

G
 a

d
o
p
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

E
n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
0
. 

In
it
ia

l 
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

J
a
n
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 t

a
s
k
 &

 f
in

is
h
 g

ro
u
p
 m

e
t 

to
 f

le
s
h
 o

u
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 C
E

S
P

 r
e
v
ie

w
. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 C

E
S

S
G

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 s
ig

n
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g

re
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
ro

k
e
re

d
 b

y
 J

o
b
c
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

e
a
rl

y
 5

0
%

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
0

9
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
0
; 

fr
o
m

 4
6
5
 t

o
 n

e
a
rl

y
 6

8
0
. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t  

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

7
.3

 S
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 p
u
b
lic

is
e
 t
h
e
 T

ra
in

 t
o
 G

a
in

 a
n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 P

le
d
g
e
 o

ff
e

r 
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 i
n
 a

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r-

fr
ie

n
d
ly

 f
o
rm

a
t 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
2

 o
f 

2
9

88



 
7
5
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

7
.3

.1
 –

 
P

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
 l
o

c
a

l 
1

 p
a

g
e

 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 a

n
d

 w
e

b
 c

o
n

te
n

t 

V
e

rn
ic

e
 H

a
lli

g
a

n
 –

 C
it
y
 

C
o

lle
g

e
 

T
h

e
 c

o
lle

g
e

 h
a

s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 a

 o
n

e
 p

a
g

e
 f

ly
e

r 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 T
ra

in
 t

o
 G

a
in

 o
ff

e
r.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

in
g

 p
ro

m
o

te
d

 o
n

 
o

u
r 

w
e

b
 p

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
u

r 
te

a
m

s
 o

f 
C

o
lle

g
e

 S
k
ill

s
 A

d
v
is

o
rs

 
a

n
d

 A
s
s
e

s
s
o

rs
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 d
a

ily
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

w
it
h

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e

c
to

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

7
.4

 W
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 S

E
S

B
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

7
.4

.1
 P

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 S
E

S
B

 a
n

d
 

d
is

s
e

m
in

a
te

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 C
E

S
S

G
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

a
im

 o
f 

in
fl
u

e
n

c
in

g
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 
p

o
lic

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 

C
h

e
ry

l 
F

in
e

lla
 –

 L
e

a
d

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 

S
E

E
D

A
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 E
S

B
’s

 w
ill

 c
e

a
s
e

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
, 

W
e

s
t 

S
u

s
s
e

x
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 p
a

rt
-f

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
t 

h
o

ld
e

r 
a

ft
e

r 
A

p
ri

l;
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

S
B

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
is

. 
 T

h
e

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 w

it
h

 a
n

 e
a

s
ie

r 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 g
u

id
e

 t
o

 
p

u
b

lic
ly

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
; 

a
 t

e
s
t 

v
e

rs
io

n
 i
s
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
J
u

n
e

. 
T

h
e

 E
S

B
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 C
h

a
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

 a
re

 j
o

in
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

7
.5

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
–

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 f
o

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

7
.5

.1
 –

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
c
e

s
s
  

–
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

o
rk

, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 c
o

m
in

g
 i
n

to
 

e
ff

e
c
t 

in
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

0
 

E
m

m
a

 G
ilb

e
rt

 –
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

N
e

e
d

s
 &

 S
o

c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 

In
it
ia

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 H
o

u
s
in

g
/C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
M

e
a

rs
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 2

0
0

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 o

v
e

r 
1

0
 y

e
a

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

H
a

v
e

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 t

a
k
e

n
 o

n
 5

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t.

 
E

G
 o

n
 M

o
b

ili
s
a

ti
o

n
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
t 

u
p

 s
u

b
-T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 M
e

a
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
o

b
ili

s
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
T

a
s
k
 g

ro
u

p
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

E
G

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

w
it
h

 M
e

a
rs

 N
o

v
/D

e
c
 0

9
 a

n
d

 s
e

t 
d

a
te

 f
o

r 
S

u
g

-g
ro

u
p

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

 N
O

 E
N

D
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 M

A
D

E
 

0
1

/0
7

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
3

 o
f 

2
9

89



 
7
6
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

7
.6

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 f
le

x
ib

le
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 o
f 
h
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
C

P
D

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

a
t 
le

v
e
l 
4
 a

n
d
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

7
.6

.1
 –

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 t

o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 d
e

fi
n

e
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 

- 
 

R
e

m
o

d
e

lli
n

g
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 n

e
e

d
s
 

- 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

fl
e

x
ib

le
, 

m
o

d
u

la
r 

c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
 

o
ff

e
r 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 

V
ik

i 
F

a
u

lk
n

e
r 

–
 S

u
s
s
e

x
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 

F
ir

s
t 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
fo

c
u

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
. 

S
h

o
rt

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 o

n
 o

ff
e

r 
in

c
lu

d
e

 
m

o
d

u
le

s
 i
n

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 h

o
s
p

it
a

lit
y
, 

le
is

u
re

 a
n

d
 t

o
u

ri
s
m

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

w
o

rk
p

la
c
e

, 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

H
A

. 
 N

e
w

 m
o

d
e

ls
 o

f 
p

o
s
t 

g
ra

d
u

a
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
le

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

re
 

u
n

d
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
, 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 n

e
e

d
s
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 o

ff
e

r.
 

 A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 n

o
w

 w
e

ll 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
, 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

lik
e

ly
 t

h
a

t 
it
 w

ill
 

b
e

 a
 j
o

b
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
a

c
h

e
s
 a

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

c
e

rt
a

in
ly

 n
o

t 
in

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o

 
y
e

a
rs

. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

T
h

e
m

e
 :

 8
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 W
o

rk
in

g
 

8
.1

 R
e

le
v
a
n

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 u
p

d
a

te
s
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

re
a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

8
.1

.1
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 C

E
S

S
G

 
W

G
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t

o
 m

a
in

 b
o

a
rd

 
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

A
n

g
e

la
 G

a
it
a

n
i 
–

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
fo

r 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

A
ll 

C
E

S
S

G
 t

h
e

m
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 l
e

a
d

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 I

n
te

rp
la

n
 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
 m

id
 y

e
a

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

0
9

. 
A

 f
u

ll 
y
e

a
r 

re
p

o
rt

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

C
E

S
S

G
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

n
 

1
8

th
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
. 

 
T

h
e

m
e

 l
e

a
d

s
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 l
e

a
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 t
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

r 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
. 

 
In

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

C
E

S
S

G
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

ill
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r’
s
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

fi
n

a
lis

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 W
G

. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

8
.2

 E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 C

E
S

S
G

 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
4

 o
f 

2
9

90



 
7
7
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

8
.2

.1
 –

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 d

is
s
e

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
E

S
S

G
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 a

ll 
re

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

- 
S

p
e

c
if
ic

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
/ 

e
v
e

n
ts

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

d
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 f

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 l
in

k
s
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 o
th

e
r 

th
e

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
s
k
ill

s
 

A
n

g
e

la
 G

a
it
a

n
i 
–

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
fo

r 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

C
E

S
S

G
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 s

it
 o

n
 v

a
ri

o
u

s
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 C
E

S
P

 t
h

e
m

a
ti
c
 A

c
ti
o

n
 a

re
 

d
is

s
e

m
in

a
te

d
. 

 
T

h
e

s
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
’s

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 &

 I
n

w
a

rd
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
, 

th
e

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

th
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 G

ro
u

p
, 

T
h

e
 M

a
jo

r 
P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 g
ro

u
p

, 
th

e
 M

a
c
h

in
e

ry
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
th

e
 1

4
-1

9
 b

o
a

rd
, 

e
tc

. 
 

C
E

S
S

G
 h

a
v
e

 a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 g
ro

u
p

. 
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 C

E
S

P
 t

h
e

m
a

ti
c
 A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
a

s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 
d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 a
t 

th
e

 s
ig

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

E
S

S
G

 A
c
c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 A
A

C
S

 e
v
e

n
t,

 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 1
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
’0

9
 a

n
d

 i
s
 a

ls
o

  
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

n
d
 L

S
P

 w
e
b
s
it
e
s
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

8
.3

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

E
S

S
G

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

8
.3

.1
 –

 C
E

S
S

G
 w

o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

 t
o

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
- 

R
e

v
ie

w
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

 f
u

tu
re

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

C
h

e
ry

l 
F

in
e

lla
 –

 L
e

a
d

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 

T
h

e
m

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 –

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 t
o

 d
a

te
, 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

s
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

, 
th

e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
; 

th
is

 
n

e
w

 f
o

rm
a

t 
h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e

d
 u

s
e

fu
l 
in

 h
e

lp
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 h
o

w
 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 /
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 

b
ro

a
d

e
r 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

h
e

m
e

 l
e

a
d

s
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

8
.4

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 C

E
S

P
 a

c
c
o

rd
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 o

u
tl
in

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

’ 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 C

E
S

P
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
5

 o
f 

2
9

91



 
7
8
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

8
.4

.1
 C

E
S

S
G

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 a
tt

e
n

d
 f

o
rm

a
l 

s
ig

n
in

g
 e

v
e

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 A
c
c
o

rd
 

A
n

g
e

la
 G

a
it
a

n
i 
–

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
fo

r 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it
y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
k
ill

s
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 s

ig
n

e
d

 
a

 m
e

m
o

ra
n

d
u

m
 o

f 
A

c
c
o

rd
 o

n
 t

h
e

 1
s
t  O

c
to

b
e

r 
to

 r
e

it
e

ra
te

 t
h

e
ir

 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

E
a

c
h

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 p

ro
m

is
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
k
ill

s
 p

la
n

 e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

w
ill

 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
l 

to
 t

h
e

ir
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
. 

 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 s
ig

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
c
o

rd
 e

a
c
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

m
a

d
e

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 

d
e

c
la

ra
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 i
n

 a
 n

e
w

 w
a

y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

. 

0
1

/1
0

/0
9

 
3

1
/1

0
/0

9
 

8
.5

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 k

e
y
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
h
a

ri
n
g

 o
f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

8
.5

.1
 –

 C
E

S
S

G
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 t

o
 s

h
a

re
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

o
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 w
h

ic
h

 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

E
S

P
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

- 
T

im
e

ta
b

le
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

s
 s

h
a

re
d

 

A
n

g
e

la
 G

a
it
a

n
i 
–

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
fo

r 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
it
e

m
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 C
E

S
S

G
 

a
g

e
n

d
a

s
, 

w
h

e
n

 C
E

S
S

G
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 c

o
u

ld
 s

h
a

re
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

id
e

a
 o

r 
a

s
k
 f

o
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

’ 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 T
h

is
 w

a
y
 

C
E

S
S

G
 c

a
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 m

o
re

 e
a

s
ily

 a
n

d
 c

a
n

 h
e

lp
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 

o
f 

th
e

 C
E

S
P

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

It
’s

 b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 i
s
 m

o
re

 
c
re

a
ti
v
e

 t
h

a
n

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 d
is

a
p

p
e

a
r 

in
 t

h
e

 
s
y
s
te

m
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

8
.6

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 s
h
a

ri
n

g
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t
h

e
 f
lo

w
 o

f 
v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

8
.6

.1
 D

ra
ft

 l
is

t 
fo

r 
J
C

P
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

A
n

g
e

la
 G

a
it
a

n
i 
–

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
fo

r 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

It
’s

 b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
J
C

P
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 l
is

t 
o

f 
v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 a

s
 a

n
d

 
w

h
e

n
 i
t’
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
0

1
/0

6
/0

9
 

3
1

/0
3

/1
0

 

8
.7

 E
v
o
lv

e
 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
n
g
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 (

IE
S

) 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
6

 o
f 

2
9

92



 
7
9
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

8
.7

.1
 1

. 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
6

 m
o

n
th

 
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 c

o
lle

g
e

, 
J
C

P
 a

n
d

 V
T

. 
2

. 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
1

2
 m

o
n

th
 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 

3
 L

a
u

n
c
h

 o
f 

‘I
E

S
 L

ig
h

t’
 I

A
G

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 V

T
, 

J
C

P
 a

n
d

 A
A

C
S

 
p

ro
to

ty
p

e
  

4
 T

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 N
e

tw
o

rk
, 

o
b

ta
in

 
th

e
 o

p
ti
m

u
m

 w
o

rk
in

g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 a

n
d

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 L
S

C
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
J
C

P
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 V

T
 

V
a

le
ri
e

 K
o

ff
m

a
n

 –
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

a
n

d
 S

k
ill

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
h

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k
ill

s
 (

IE
S

) 
is

 b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

: 
1

 L
S

C
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 6

 m
o

n
th

s
 u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 a
t 

C
it
y
 

C
o

lle
g

e
  

fr
o

m
 A

p
ri

l 
0

9
 a

n
d

 b
y
 3

0
 S

e
p

t 
0

9
 t

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 1
8

0
 s

ta
rt

s
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 J

C
P

, 
V

T
, 

L
S

C
 a

n
d

 
C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 o
n

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
. 

2
 T

w
o

 L
S

C
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
1

8
-2

4
s
 o

n
ly

 h
a

v
e

 
a

re
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 a

t 
C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 f
ro

m
 N

o
v
 0

9
. 

(a
) 

S
e

c
to

r 
R

o
u

te
w

a
y
s
, 

w
it
h

 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 L
E

P
s
 a

n
d

 F
u

tu
re

 J
o

b
s
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

s
 a

n
d

 (
b

) 
3

-6
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
1

8
-2

4
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

in
g

 1
2

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
3

 I
E

S
 (

th
e

 t
e

rm
 ‘
lig

h
t’
 n

o
w

 d
ro

p
p

e
d

) 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 a
a

c
s
 

h
u

b
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

a
s
t 

a
n

d
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
, 

p
lu

s
 a

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
v
e

n
u

e
 a

t 
W

o
rk

in
g

 L
in

k
s
 o

ff
ic

e
 i
n

 N
o

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 w

it
h

 c
o

-l
o

c
a

te
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 b

y
 

J
C

P
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

IA
G

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 A
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
v
e

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 B
H

C
C

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

a
t 

P
a

la
c
e

 P
la

c
e

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

4
  

T
h

e
 M

a
jo

r 
P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 m

e
e

ts
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 e

v
e

ry
 2

 m
o

n
th

s
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

8
.8

 W
o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 h
a
rn

e
s
s
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
7

 o
f 

2
9

93



 
8
0
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

8
.8

.1
 J

o
in

t 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 F
u

tu
re

 J
o

b
s
 F

u
n

d
 

A
n

g
e

la
 G

a
it
a

n
i 
–

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
fo

r 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

C
E

S
S

G
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 b

id
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

: 
 F

u
tu

re
 J

o
b

s
 F

u
n

d
 –

 T
h

e
 b

id
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 j
o

in
tl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

u
lt
u

re
 &

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 Y
M

C
A

, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

It
 w

ill
 c

re
a

te
 3

5
0

 j
o

b
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 D

ig
it
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
 p

o
s
tg

ra
d

u
a

te
 c

o
u

rs
e

 –
 T

h
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 

a
n

d
 W

ir
e

d
 S

u
s
s
e

x
 a

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 D

ig
it
a

l 
M

e
d

ia
 c

o
u

rs
e

 w
h

ic
h

 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it
 a

c
c
o

rd
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
to

r.
 T

h
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
y
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
0

. 
 In

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 &

 G
ro

w
th

 T
e

a
m

 (
IG

T
) 

–
 T

h
e

 c
it
y
’s

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
v
e

 l
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
b

id
. 

S
IN

C
 w

ill
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 o
u

tp
u

ts
. 

F
ro

m
 F

e
b

 o
r 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

 I
G

T
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

h
ig

h
 v

a
lu

e
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 E
a

s
t 

S
u

s
s
e

x
 a

n
d

 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
e

le
c
te

d
 o

n
 g

ro
w

th
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l,
 n

o
t 

b
y
 s

e
c
to

rs
. 

  
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

lin
ic

s
/L

if
e

b
e

lt
 p

ro
je

c
t 

–
 T

h
e

 C
it
y
’s

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 b

id
e

d
 f

o
r 

C
E

S
S

G
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
’s

 
C

h
a

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

e
 a

n
d

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
h

e
 a

w
a

rd
 

w
in

n
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

lin
ic

s
/L

if
e

b
e

lt
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

lo
c
a

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
 w

it
h

 t
a

ilo
re

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

o
n

e
 

to
 o

n
e

 a
d

v
ic

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
, 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 a

n
d

 l
a

rg
e

-s
c
a

le
 e

v
e

n
ts

. 
 

 B
re

a
k
th

ro
u

g
h

- 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

Y
P

T
 a

n
d

 E
D

 t
e

a
m

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 

b
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
L

A
B

G
I 

a
n

d
 L

P
S

A
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 
B

re
a

k
th

ro
u

g
h

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
ff

e
rs

 p
re

 v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l,
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 S
k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

L
if
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 G
u

id
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

o
n

e
 t

o
 o

n
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

  
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
, 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 a

re
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 t

o
 a

p
p

ly
 f

o
r 

In
te

rr
e

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 B
&

H
 S

o
c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
8

 o
f 

2
9

94



 
8
1
 

95



 
8
2
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 –

 C
it

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

Y
P

T
 t

e
a

m
s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 C
it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
 £

1
.2

 m
ill

io
n

 I
n

te
rr

e
g

 b
id

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

le
s
s
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

tr
a

in
e

e
s
h

ip
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
it
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

o
w

n
e

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
. 

 T
h

e
 C

E
S

S
G

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
e

 W
G

’s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 L

P
S

A
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 f

o
u

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
: 

  
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
v
e

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

lin
ic

s
/ 

L
if
e

b
e

lt
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
A

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 –

 6
5

 A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
1

2
1

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 1
5

0
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 B

re
a

k
th

ro
u

g
h

 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
ie

s
 

 C
E

S
S

G
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 L
A

B
G

I 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v
e

 D
ia

m
o

n
d

 f
o

r 
G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 I
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
–

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 

b
y
 B

H
E

P
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 –
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
T

o
u

ri
s
m

 F
u

tu
re

s
 l
e

d
 b

y
 C

C
B

H
 

G
ra

d
u

a
te

 B
ri
g

h
to

n
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 t
w

o
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
 

8
.9

 E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 t
ra

c
k
e
d
 b

y
 L

A
 

A
c

ti
v

it
y

:

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 D

a
te

 

8
.9

.1
 –

 I
n

te
rp

la
n

 d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 w
ill

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

E
S

P
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
- 

 
L

e
a

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 g

e
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
ta

rt
 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 I
n

te
rp

la
n

 d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 

L
is

a
 S

h
a

w
 –

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
A

n
a

ly
s
t 

M
o

s
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

0
9

/1
0

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 f
e
w

 g
a

p
s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

re
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 f
o

r 
n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r.

  
M

id
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 f
u

ll 
y
e

a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 I

n
te

rp
la

n
. 

0
1

/0
6

/0
9

 
3

1
/0

3
/1

0
 

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
0

P
a

g
e

 2
9

 o
f 

2
9

96



 83 

Abbreviations
 
AACS Adult Advancement and Careers Service 

B&H Brighton & Hove 

BCP Business Community Partnership 

BHCC Brighton & Hove City Council 

BHEP Brighton & Hove Economic Partnership 

BL Business Link 

BRII Business Retention & Inward Investment (Strategy) 

BSSP Business Support Simplification Programme 

CCBH City College Brighton & Hove 

CESP City Employment & Skills Plan 

CESSG City Employment & Skills Steering Group 

CVSF Community Voluntary Sector Forum 

CYPT Children & Young Peoples Trust 

DWP Department for Work and Pensions 

ED Economic Development (Team) 

ESF European Social Fund 

FJF Futures Jobs Fund 

FND Flexible New Deal 

GVA Gross Value Added 

IAG Information Advice & Guidance 

IDM Investment Development Manager 

IGT Innovation and Growth Team 

JCP Job Centre Plus 

JSA Jobseekers Allowance 

LAA Local Area Agreement 

LABGI Local Area Business Growth Incentive 

LEA Local Economic Assessment 

LEP Local Employment Partnership 

LPSA Local Public Service Agreement 

LSC Learning Skills Council 

LSP Local Strategic Partnership 

NEET Not in Education, Training or Employment 

PCT Primary Care Trust 

SEEDA South East England Development Agency 

SESB Sussex Employment and Skills Board 

SLN Sussex Learning Network 

SPD Supplementary Planning Document 

SSE Skills South East 

WNF Working Neighbourhoods Fund 

YMCA Young Men’s Christian Association 

 
 
 
 

97



98



ENTERPRISE 

EMPLOYMENT & 
MAJOR PROJECTS 

CABINET MEMBER 
MEETING 

Agenda Item 13 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: Creative Industries in Brighton & Hove 

Date of Meeting: 15th June 2010 

Report of: Director of Housing, Culture and Enterprise 

Contact Officer: Name:  Paula Murray Tel: 292536 

 E-mail: paula.murray@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision:          No  

Wards Affected:  All 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 This report summarises the current state of the local creative industries sector and 

council interventions to ensure that the sector can develop, grow and provide 
employment opportunities for residents, including and update on the creation of a 
new digital media enterprise and innovation hub at New England House. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 Receive this report and note the activity currently being undertaken by the Council in 

support of growing the local creative industries sector in Brighton & Hove. 
 
 

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Brighton & Hove’s creative industries sector is rich and diverse, consisting of around 

1,500 businesses that employ approximately 10,000 people. 5,800 sole traders and 
freelancers are estimated to work locally in the creative sector, providing an 
estimated total employment figure of 15,800 or 10.7 of all city employment (2007 
data). The number of businesses in the various creative sub-sectors are broken 
down as follows: - 

 

Digital media, software, leisure 
software and games  

33% 500 

Music and the performing arts  11% 165 

Publishing and literature  9% 135 

99



 

 

Visual arts and photography  9% 135 

Design  8% 120 

Art & Antiques  7% 105 

Film, TV & radio  5% 75 

Architecture  4% 60 

Advertising  3% 45 

Crafts  3% 45 

Heritage & Museums  2% 30 

Others (details unspecified)  6% 90 

Total  100% 1505 
 Source: Creative Workspace Study 2007 

 
3.2 The 2009 Brighton & Hove Business Retention and Inward Investment Strategy 

(BRII) identified the creative industries as a growth sector due to performance in the 
past decade. The BRII action plan brings forward a multitude of initiatives to 
retain/grow existing creative businesses and attract new investment. 

 
3.3 To build upon our existing knowledge of the needs of indigenous firms, the council is 

currently undertaking a survey of the key growth sectors identified in the BRII. This 
includes the creative and digital media sectors. The quantitative and qualitative data 
collected from the survey will inform future policy interventions, with survey results 
due to be available in August. 

 
3.4 Business Lifebelt, part of the council’s recession relief package, included a series of 

three free workshops designed to support local creative businesses that may be at 
risk of failure due to the economic climate. The three workshops supported over 220 
creative businesses and the overall satisfaction rate for the three workshops was 
87% good or excellent.  The high attendance and positive feedback drawn from 
these events has been taken as an indicator of demand for sector-specific business 
support and networking, and a second series of workshops for creative industries 
will be delivered by the city council and partners in early Autumn. 

 
3.5 Creative Brighton, a group consisting of public and private sector partners including 

the city council, offers operational support to the creative sector by collaborating to 
put on peer-to-peer and networking events in addition to an online information 
resource. The city council is supporting Creative Brighton to develop a stronger 
presence in bring creative businesses together through a more interactive website. 

 
3.6 An economic development officer post with specific responsibility for developing 

particular subsectors is currently being recruited to.  The first focus of that post will 
be to support growth of the environmental and creative industries. 

 
3.7 The BRII and Creative Industry Workspace study both identify an under-supply of 

flexible and sufficient creative workspace as a key barrier to future economic growth. 
In the case of New England House the council, as landowner, has the opportunity to 
investigate which options would bring about the greatest economic benefit to the 
city. 

 
 

100



 

 

4. NEW ENGLAND HOUSE PROJECT 
 
4.1 CONTEXT 

 

4.1.1 It is recognised that there is a need for more flexible and affordable office space in 
the city for high tech and digital media firms. In other cities this type of space has 
been provided in a single hub, which supports and sustains start-ups, provides the 
opportunity for collaboration and can also work with universities to harness training 
and enterprise potential.  Such a hub would be very beneficial for the city’s important 
and growing digital media sector. 

 

4.1.2 New England House is a city council owned building, which was constructed in 1963 
to house local industries that were displaced by slum clearance in the late 1950’s.  It 
forms part of the council’s commercial property portfolio and is managed by 
Cluttons, the council’s agent.  The building is divided up into workshops and office 
units which cater for a lively mix of activities such as precision engineering, printing, 
I.T., fashion design, construction consultancy, furniture manufacture, jewellery, 
artwork, music recording, publishing, ecology and ceramics.  Many businesses have 
been formed into ‘clusters’ to promote joint working, synergy and bulk purchasing.  
New England House has proved to be an ideal focus for these types of starter/small 
businesses because it offers subsidised low-cost accommodation on flexible terms 
in central Brighton, where there is good accessibility to public transport and other 
services.  It already plays a significant role in the city’s economy by supporting start-
up and growing businesses by the provision of affordable subsidised premises on 
flexible terms.  As such the building is very popular and has a waiting list for space.  
It could continue to be an environment for nurturing business by becoming a digital 
media hub, bringing together the two issues of the need for such a facility and 
securing the future of New England House.  

 
4.1.3 There are however, a number of issues with the building in its current form; the 

condition of the building both internally and externally and its projected lifespan 
depending on what action is taken.  In 2002 a report was commissioned by the 
Regeneration Partnership to look at the existing condition of the building and to 
provide a number of costed options for its future regeneration.  These ranged from 
full refurbishment at a capital cost of £6.4m (2003 prices – estimated to be £7.8m at 
2007 prices) to minimal ongoing repairs.  There was considered to be scope to raise 
c.£3m (2003 prices – may well have been subject to change since) by developing 
the car park to the north of the site.  This could be developed to provide move-on or 
premium space above the car park for the firms that start in New England House.  
The report found that there was a lifespan of 10 years left in the building in its state 
at that time meaning that ‘do nothing’ is not an option.  Even if this was a pessimistic 
prediction, the need for new cladding is clear as the existing cladding is not 
weatherproof.  The full refurbishment would add 40 years to the building’s life.   
£1.345m of city council and SRB funding was invested into refurbishing some floors 
of the building in the late 1990’s early 2000’s.  Since then the city council has 
continued to invest money on planned maintenance, including replacing the goods 
lift (costing £106,000) improvements to common areas and the removal of asbestos.  
There is no existing budget for large scale renovation. 

 
4.1.4 Recently, a large proportion of the space in the building has been occupied by 

businesses within the digital media and creative industries sector. This is something 

101



 

 

that has been supported and promoted by the city council together with 
organisations such as Wired Sussex who are a tenant in the building. These sectors 
tend to locate together as a cluster because of the nature of the business.  
Clustering has also been assisted by the availability of space and the competitive 
terms being offered to attract businesses to the building. The needs of this sector is 
clear; flexible affordable workspace and the availability of an appropriately qualified 
workforce.   

 
4.2 FUTURE OPPORTUNITIES FOR NEW ENGLAND HOUSE 
 
4.2.1 We are now exploring a future vision for New England House as a large scale, high 

profile and visible digital media focused managed business centre.  The early vision 
concept is for a consortium of partners including the University of Sussex, Wired 
Sussex and the city council to agree a clear partnership vision, viable business case 
and funding package for the development of New England House as a digital media 
hub. In addition, the University of Sussex are very keen to establish a city centre 
presence for their digital media courses, bringing them closer to where the sector 
actually operates, as well as giving them the opportunity to grow and support 
knowledge exchange and innovation from their research programmes. 

 
4.2.2  The city council needs to properly assess all of the options for realising such a hub, 

including preparing and testing a business case.  DCA Consultants have been 
appointed to prepare a viable business case and business plan for a digital media 
‘enterprise hub’ operating out of the existing building (following improvements), 
providing various levels of intervention and support together with varying levels of 
quality of space and rents.  Wired Sussex, who will be the key consultee, along with 
the University of Sussex and council officers are also involved in preparing the brief.  
LABGI funding has been identified for this project.  DCA are a Birmingham based 
company with extensive experience of both business planning and developing out 
similar facilities, and the brief they have been appointed to fulfil is attached at 
appendix 1. 

 
4.3 PROJECT VISION 
 
  The brief contains the following vision for the New England House project: 

 
Our goal is to develop New England House in Brighton & Hove into an 
internationally recognised centre of excellence for digital business, 
encouraging innovation and facilitating economic growth.  
 
We aim to provide a range of much needed and appropriate workspaces 
for the fast growing digital sector including start-up spaces, 2nd phase 
move on space, Grade A accommodation, and networking facilities.  The 
partners aim to deliver innovation, research and knowledge exchange 
opportunities, effectively linking higher education to the sector with the 
goal of extending commercial and funding opportunities and enhancing 
the reputations of participants.  
 
To be an effective vehicle for demonstrating the ambition of the local 
digital sector, New England House must also be safe and habitable, 

102



 

 

accessible, well-designed, commercially sustainable., and situated within 
(as well as contributing to) a vibrant quarter of the city. 

 
 
 
 
4.4     WIDER CONSIDERATIONS 

 
4.4.1  The London Road Masterplan SPD was adopted at Environment CMM in December 

2009.  This SPD seeks retention of the existing creative industries cluster as part of 
any refurbishment or redevelopment of the existing New England House building.  
This project would implement a key element of the masterplan and show the city 
council taking action in line with its own planning policy.  This example would act as 
a catalyst to kick start the regeneration of the central London Road area.  The 
project needs to be in tune with the area and surrounding development 
opportunities, but it needs to avoid additional complexity that would act as a barrier 
to delivery.  However, there is scope for consideration for how neighbouring sites in 
different ownerships might be developed to complement NEH and vice versa.   
 

4.4.2  There are legal and procedural issues to be cleared if the city council does decide to 
dispose of New England House into a body such as a CIC in partnership with Wired 
Sussex and the University of Sussex.  The city council and the university will have to 
fully comply with EU procurement rules if they are deemed to apply and will need to 
set up appropriate structures.  Best consideration and state aid issues will also apply 
in any long term decisions on the building. 
 

4.4.3   As the project proceeds consideration will be given to any potential European pots of 
funding to help close any gap in the business plan.  Any works undertaken to the 
building will raise its environmental performance so options for assistance will be 
explored.  There are no specific national sustainability funding pots in place, though 
the Sustainability Team have been made aware of this project and are monitoring 
emerging options.  What is clear though is that any such funding pots are likely to be 
marginal in terms of the overall viability of the business plan 

 
4.5      COMMUNICATION 
 
4.5.1   Officers and DCA are aware of the sensitivities of existing tenants in New England 

House.  It needs to be made clear through the communications process that this 
project is not about removing existing tenants but instead creating more space, 
making better use of the space there is and potentially seeing the change in the 
pattern of occupation through natural churn.  In addition, there is also no long term 
benefit in excluding the non-digital creative industries as having them in the building 
also helps to create the right ecology, with digital firms potentially needing deal with 
non digital firms (for example, a computer games company might want to work with 
a traditional animator).   

 
4.5.2   As DCA continue their work they are going to speak to a number of existing and 

potential building users about how the building does work and how it might be 
improved.  This is not a formal consultation process as it is about creating a 
business plan that works financially, but part of that does include opening a dialogue 

103



 

 

with existing building users and making it clear to them that something does need to 
be done to protect the future of the building.  The city council and DCA have written 
to all building users to invite them to help input into the business plan. 

 
 
 
4.6      NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 
 
4.6.1   As outlined above, the current work being undertaken is around officers investigating 

the options for New England House, including drawing up a business case for a 
potential joint vehicle.  Potential milestones for the project include: 

 
1)  In March 2010 – The three project partners appointed DCA to undertake the 

business case. 
 

2)  By September 2010 – Appraise the options for the project, including 
consideration of a completed business case and seek Cabinet approval for the 
preferred option, informed by that business case.  
 

3)  From October 2010 – Start to form the joint venture (subject to Cabinet 
approval) to start the work to turn New England House into a digital media hub. 

 
 
5. CONSULTATION 

 

5.1 Consultation in the preparation of this report has been undertaken with council 
officers in Economic Development, Major Projects and Property Services and with 
external partners; Wired Sussex and University of Sussex. 

 
 
6. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
  
6.1 Financial Implications: 
 Detailed financial implications will follow. 
 

Finance Officer Consulted: Anne Silley Date:     01/06/10  
 
6.2 Legal Implications: 
 Some of the complex legal issues are referred to at paragraph 4.4.2 of this report. 

These and other legal issues will be addressed in the options appraisal report 
currently programmed for the Cabinet meeting in September 2010. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce Date:  01/06/2010 
 
6.3 Equalities Implications: 

Nationally, figures for unemployment have risen in terms of people unemployed 
for longer than 12 months, both in total and in terms of the figures for young 
people (Labour Market Update, Centre for Cities April 2010).  In terms of 
tackling unemployment, there is a particular need in Brighton and Hove to 
create higher skilled jobs to free up the labour market elsewhere for those 

104



 

 

furthest from the labour market.  The higher skilled jobs are more likely to be 
found in sectors such as creative industries. 

 
 
 
6.4 Sustainability Implications: 

In general terms the creative industries and the digital media sector in particular are 
clean and sustainable businesses.  The initiatives outlined above also contribute to 
the sustainability of the city’s economy. 

 
6.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  

Any measures that increase employment in the city are likely to have a beneficial 
impact in terms of crime and disorder.  The plans to improve New England House 
would also have a beneficial impact on that area as well as the building itself which 
has suffered from targeted break-ins. 

 
6.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 

 The strategies developed and interventions undertaken to support and develop the 
creative industries sector are done so in response to audit and research data.  The 
New England House project has risk and opportunity analysis built into the 
framework of its project management at every stage 

 
6.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 

Tackling worklessness is citywide in its scope in terms of work done to develop 
key employment sectors.  There are corporate implications in the future 
development of New England House as it is in council ownership, that are yet 
to be worked through. 

 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. New England House Consultants Brief 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 

 
1. None 
 
Background Documents 

 
1. None 

 

105



106



� ������

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

������	�
������

����������������������������

�����������	����������������
������ � ��������	�����!�������

�
�

���������	
�
�
�
�

�������������
�

���� �������� �
�

����

����	�
�

��
���

107



� ��"���

��
�������������������
�
��� ���������
���
�������������������#�������	�$%�������#�������	&'(�)�����!����*���������+��������#�� �
!����*�$%����+��������#&'��������,���������	������������������������������������ ���
�������������� �����-������������������	�����.��������������	�.�����������.������
���������������/��,�����(�����������������/���������� �����������	�.�������������������
���#0��
����������	��������������������-����������������/������		����������������/��	���������
�����0��1�������/��	��������������2�/����	����������$%2��3'(����-�������������	��
�������������������� ��.�	����������������#�������	�$���������/������ �2�/����	����
�����'������������������������0��1������������������������������ ��.������	������/����
�*��������������� ��	��� �����������	������������������	��	#������������	��.����� �-�����
���4����	����������4��������������������������	������(����������������/������������������
�������.����(�������� �������	�.���	��$���	��������������������	'� ������	���������.�����
 �����������/�����.������������������������������#��������0��
�
���,�������
�
���������	
�����
���
�	

��

�������/�/���	#������������������������������������������������������,�#�+5�������� ���
������	�.��������	��������������(���.�������	��.���(�1�(����.�����(�������	������(������	�
.����������� �/��������	��.��������������0�1������#�����	����#���.�����.��#�
���������� ��������.����������/�		������	����� ���	�����������0�
�����������������������
���������������� ��.���.�������$���	�����������#(�!��#�6	�#������������������'�	��,����
 �����+5�����������������0�
�
1���������/�		����/��,���������(�/����)�����!����*�������������0�)�����!����*�/��,��
�	���	#�/���������789�.�.������.�������������	��������������������#(��������������
�����������������������	���	������������	�������.���(������������������������0�
�
��������� ������������������.��������� ��.���������������������+5��������������/���
�	�����������������������.�����	���� �����������������������	��	�����0�:�����������������
��������������	#���������������������������	�������(����	��������������������� �.���������
������	�.���������������� ���	�������	��������0�
������.�����������������������������������
����	��������  ����#���������������������.����/��������������������������(�/�����
��.��������������������������������������/(�����/��������������/����������.����
��������� ��.�������������.���������0�
�

���������������������������������������������� ������������	� 	�*��	�(��  �����	������
������������������������  ����������������������������������������������������	�
����#���.� ������������(�����������(� ���	����������������������������$����	����������
�������'��������������	�.�����������0��
�

������	����������������������.������������������������������(�������.����/����	���	�
����������������� �����.������.��������0�1����������������������	#���������������	#�� �
�����������	���(����#��	�����	���������������*������������,��/	�����/����(�� �	��,���
�����������	#(�����������������.����������������������	���	�����������0��
�

108



� ��;���


�������������������������������������������(���������(�.��,��������.���	���	�#����,�#�
��	�������	������������������������0�!�(��������.�������� ���������������������	���� �����
	���	�������	��	�����������������������������������������������	������������	��������
������������������/��,������	�(�������������������/������������������������/����������
��.������0���
�

����������������������	�.���������� ������	�������������������������� �������	�����(�
/������������������������������������(������������������������#� �����		��������������
�����	�������	�����������������������������������(�����������������������������������	0���
�
�������
	����
�����
2�/����	������������������#�������	��/�������	����� ��.���������� �����������	&��
��..�����	��������#����� �	��(�/�����/�������������������<=;����������	���	�
����������������/��������	������#��	�.��	���������������	�����<89&�0��
��������#�
�	������(��������	������������������������/��,�����������  ����������/����������� �����
	���	#�.�*�� �����������������������������������������(���������(�
010(� �������������(�
������������������	����#(� ���������.��� ������(�-�/�		��#(����/��,(�.��������������(�
���	������(����	��#���������.���0��
��#����������������� ��.��������%�	������&����
���.����-�����/��,���(��#����#�������	,�����������0��2�/����	���������������������
���������#�����	�����������������	� ����� ����������4�.�		������������������������  ����
	�/����������..��������������#����� 	�*��	�����.�����������	���������(�/��������������
��������������	��#�������	�������������������������������0��
������� �����	�#�����
�.����������	������������#&�������.#��#������������  �����	�����.����� �����/�����
���/��������������(��������	��������������������������� ��.�� ���������	�.��������0��
�
1��������(���/����(�����.����� ��������/�����������	�������������������� ��.>�����
����������� ��������	�����������������		#������*�����		#������������-������	� ������
�������������/����������������,��0��
��"99"����������/�����..����������#��������#�
������	�����?������������6��������������	��,���������*������������������ ��������	�����
�������������������.����� ���������������� ������� ������������������0��1������������
 ��.� �		��� ������.���������������	������� �@=0A.�$"99;��������������.�����������@70B.�
���"997�������'����.���.�	����������������0��1�����/�����������������������������������
�0@"�;.�$"99;�������'��#�����	�����������������,��������������� ���������������������
.������������� ������� ��.����������������2�/����	���������0��1�����������/���
 ���	��������"99A�����������������6�	��#���?�����������..�����0�
�
�������
��������
1�����������������������-������������������������������������� �2�/����	�������������
��������	�.������������	����	�������������� ������������������� �������������	�.�����
������(���������������������.���������������������������&����.�����������.���������
�������������������	�������������� �����	�������.� ������ ���2�/����	���������0��
�
1������������,��/	������������������������.������������������������/�����������	�����
��������� ���������������������������������������������������������(��������������������
������.����/�������������������/�#� ��/����/����2�/����	���������0��C��������.��
��.����������������������������������#�/��	������ �������� �����	#� ��.���������	�.�����
���������.�������������� ������������������������������/��,�����(����������
���/��,���(������������������������������������������� ������  0���
�����(�������	��.����

109



� ��A���

� �������#���/��	������������������	#������������������������������������.���������
���������� �/������������ ��������#&��,�#����/����������0��
�
1������#�������	����������������D������?����
������	���!���	�.�����#�6	�������
����.����$!6�'0��1����!6�����,���� ������.����� ������*�������2�/����	����������
���	�������������������� ������*����������������������������	�����0����	����#�� ����������(�
������������������ ���������������2�/����	������������������ �������������		#��.��������
��������	����������������	����� �������/��������/����������*�0 
�
?�����	#���������������#������������ ����������#�������	���������	����/������������
����������������������	�� ��������.�������	��.�������/��,�/����)�����!����*�����
����+��������#�� �!����*����������������0��C�������� ����������.����� �������������������
��������#� �������������������������������� ������� ������� ��������	����0��1�����.���� ���
���������������������� ��.���-�������	����#������	�(�������	#�����..����#�
��������
��.���#�$�
�'��������������������	�������	�������	���������������(�����.����������
.������2�/����	�������������.��������������� �����������	�.��������������������
/��,���������������(�����������������(�������/����������� ����/��,�����������������(�
�������������.����.���	������������������������� �������+��������#����.��������
��E����.�����������������������������������������������������������	�����������.���
���� ���0�
�
1���"99A�?������������6�����������!���#��������� �		�/����������� ������� ������� �����
���	����>�

�
�����������	������	������
���������	

��	���������	

�����������������������
	����
�����
���	�����	�����	���	����
��� �
�	�����	���	���
���	����������������
������������
� �����
 	���	������������
����
��
��� �

� ����
��
�����������	����������������!����!
����
"��
�����	��
��	��	��	��

��#���������
	����
���� ����	
�
�����	�����	���	�
����
 �
�	���
���������������	��	����	����
��������
���
�����	������	���	
����
 ������	 ��
�����!
����
#�

�

1�����������������.���	#��������������	���������	 ���������������������������������*��� �
	��,�����������/�����	���	������.#(�����!6�(������������ �����������	�
����������������
����������� �������������������������������		#0��2�/����	��������������	���������
�����������/���������,��/	�������������E����.������ ������������������/�����������#0��
1������������	���.�,������.�������� �������������������������������� �/��,������
/��������	���������..����������������	�	���	�������������� ����������������������(���
,�#������.������� ������������������	#���	�����(����/�		���� ���	��������������������������
 ������.��.������.���0�F������.���(���������������������� ��������	������������������
���������.���#������(�������.����������.�������������/�����������	��� ��� ���������(�
,��������������������� ������������������/�(�����������������*�����������.�������.(�
������������������������	�����.�������.�������������.��.��  ����������(����0��!�(����
������ ���#� ����������������������������	�����������.�#��������������������������
����������������� ��������#� ������������	�0���
�
C������������������������� ����������-���������/��	�����	����>�
�

�����
	
�����
�����

���������
	����
�������$�����
��%��
������
�	��������	��
�	

��
���
������� ������� 
�� ����

����� �
�� �����	
� ���������� ���
��	����� ���
�	��
�� 	���
�	��
��	�������
�
 �����
���#��
�

110



� ��8���

&��	� ��
���
�����	��	����
�� �����������	���	���
���	����
�'��	�����
�������	���
��
����� �����	
� ����
�� ���
������ ��	��(��� ��	����� )��� ��	���  
��� 
�� ��	���� *�	��� +�
	��
  
�	��
��� 	��� ����
�'���� �	��
�����#� � ���� �	������� 	� � �
� ��
����� ���
�	��
���
����	����	���'�
�
���������	����
��
��������������������
�� 
��'���������������	��
���
�
���� ����
�� ����� ���� �
	
� 
�� ���������� �
  ����	
� 	��� �������� 
��
���������� 	���
���	���������������	��
���
���	������	���#��
�
�
� ��� 	�� ���������� �����
�� �
�� �� 
����	����� ���� 	 ����
�� 
�� ���� 

�	
� �����	
� ����
���
���� ���
	��� �
����  ���� 	
�
� ��� �	��� 	��� �	���	�
��� 	�������
��� ��

(����������
�
  ����	

�� ����	��	�
�#�� 	��� ����	���� ������� ,	�� ��

� 	�� �
����������� �
-� 	� ����	���
.�	�����
����������#�
�

	��� �������������
�
$�����
��%��
���!����!
����
�
1������#�������	�������������.�������	��.���� �������������/��,�����������������
 �		�/������-�������>�

• 1���.������������.�������������� �����	���	������.#��#����������������
�����.��������������������������/�����.�	�#.�����������0��

• 1���.�������������������.����(������ ���������������������������� ���	���	(�
�������	�����������������	����������������*����������������������������������0��

• 1������	������	�������.������������	���	������.#��#������������������������ �
��������������,�		������	��.���0�
�


������������������������2�/����	����������������	�.���������/�		���������������.�������
� ���������-�������� �������������	�.�����������0�
�

����������(��������������-����������	��/��	���.�	�.������,�#��	�.����� �����D������
?����
������	���!���	�.�����#�6	�����������.����$!6�'��������/��������#�������	�
��,��������������	����/���������/���	���������	��#0��1�����*�.�	�(���.������/��������
:����
��,���������	��.���(�/��	���������������	#������,��,������������������������� �
D������?���0��1������-������������������������/��������/��������������������������
����	��.�����������������0��C���������������������� ������������������ ���/�
������������������������  �������/���������.������������	����������.�	�.����2�������
����������0�
�
1������#�������	�������������C���	�"99<��������������?�������������
�/����

�����.����!������#�/���������������� ��.�/��,�� ������������������������*�������
�������������������������/����������������������#����������� ��������,�#��������� ���
���/���/��������	���������������	�
�����������0�1������#�������	����������/����)�����
!����*�������������/����������.�������������/��,��������������������������/�
���������������������#�
�
&������������
)�����!����*������������������(����� ������ ���.�.��������������������0��
�������������
������������������������������	������������������������&��.��������� ��������/�.�����
���0�
���.����������������	����������.��������#�/��,����/���(�������	����������	��� ��(�����
.�.������.������0�
�

111



� ��=���


���������	#�������������(A99�.�.������.�������$���	��������������������� ����������
������'�/��������� ��.���	�������������������������	������������	�,�������#(�!������
D� ������������0�
�������������������� �������������	�������������.���(���������(�
���/��,�����������������(����������� ������(�����������	����������.���#��������#0�
��
�	�����	�����������	����#(�����������������������	���	������������	����	����������
�����������������	������!���C(����������+51
0�)�����!����*�����	��� �������#�����
�������	�����	��.���������#������������������������������/����������������������	�
������	��#������/����������� ���������/�������������������������!���������0������������
��������#�������	��	�������� ��������
����������6�����..��/������F�� ������0�
�
)�����!����*�/��,���	���	#�/�����������������	���		#(��������		#�����������������		#0�
�����������-�����/��������+��������#�� �!����*����	��������������	����#�6��-���(�����
!����*�
����������6�����..�(���������������������������!����*�
��������������
G��/���1��.0�
�
)�����!����*������������������������������		������ �����������������������/��,������
 �������������(�� ���	���������.�.������������.��������������������������������������
��������/��,������������������/�������������������/����������������(����� ������������
���������������.����� ������������H�����������.�������� ������������	���		#0��
�
)�����!����*����������������������� �����+5&�� ���.�������������������������	�.�����
����������	�������������/���������������������������������������	��������(����/��,����
������������.�	�������������0�C������(�)�����!����*�����/��,���/�����������/���	��,�
�����	�������	������������	���������$���	�����������	�#�������	�
�����������(�
������� ��	��
�����������(�!D�������(�+!C�����������'0�)�����!����*�/��	�����
	��,�������.����������2���������	�.�����������(��������������������*���������������� ��	��
����������������������� ���/����/��,�/������������������  ������	#����� ��������.�.�����
������������������/��	�0�
�
/����������
���������
1���+��������#�� �!����*��������� �����+5&��.����������� �	��������������/�������������
����,�������������������(�/�		�����	�����������������	�	��,�(�������������������������
��.�����������E��������������*��������0��
�
1���+��������#����������.������������������������������������ ����-���������(����	��������
��.�������������������	#������������	#�	��,������������	�.����(����	������������� �
��������	(���..�����	(����������	���	������0�
�

���/��������������������!����*�
�����������������$!
��'(�/�������������������������
���������������������������������������������������	��������.������0��!
����������������
	����������������� �������������������������!����*�
��������������G��/���1��.0�
�

��	����/����G�����.�����*����������(�����+��������#�/����������.����.���� �		#�
I�����J�� ��		�,�������������������������������������	�����������(������*��������������������
����������(�����	����������� ����	���*�������� ��������������������������*�������0��1���
������	�.������������������������������� ������/������������������(���������� �����
������������������� ��������#��������+��������#(�������������������� �����������������#����
��������(����������������� ����������������	 0�
�

112



� ��7���


����	���������������������	(�����+��������#���������������������������#� ����������������
�����	�(�������������������������������#0��1���+��������#�/��	��/�����������.���	�������
/��	������	�>�

• ��������	��.����� ���	��������.������������������������	�����������������������
�������������������������������������� ������  �������$�0�0��������	�.�
����	��.���(��������������	���.��������������������������������'K�

• ��������	��.����������	����#�� ������������(���������������������������	��.����
��������������������������������.����������������� ��.��������	�����
������������	������K�

• �������������/�������������������.�����������������������,��/	������*�������
����������(�������������..���������/��,(���������		��������������������	�����
��������	������������K�����

• ��������	��.����� ���	��������.�����������������	�������������*�	���������� �����
+��������#&���������������	��0�

�

���		������(����������������/��	����������.��������+��������#&����������������	��.����
���������������������������������	�����.�������.���������+��������#(�����/��	����������
��.��������������2�/����	����������������������	�������� ������.0�
�
��� ���������������� �
�
1���6���������������,����������	������������������������������	��� �����������	�.�����
%�����������������������������&����2�/����	�����������$ �		�/�����.�����.����'(�
������������������	���	��� ���������������������������������#����	���	�������#����� �
�����0��1���������� �����/��,�����	�����	�������� �		�/����������>�
�

• �����	����������	������,�����/��,����������/��������0��1��� �����/�		����������
 ������(�	��,�����������	�.������������������������������������.����� �	�,�	#�
�������� ��������������������0��1����/�		������ ����������������	�����������	������
/��,�� ���������������(��� �����������������������	0��1����������������/�		����.����
�����	����������(���,�������������	�	��,�������� �������	��.�	������������������	��#0��1���
���������������	������/�		�����*����������������������������������$����:�������
��	�/'(����	����������������	&��6��-���������(��� ���������������� ��.�!�����:������
!�����1/�0�

�

• 1��������	������/�		����������������������������.�����������������#���� �
����������������������������������	��.������������������	�������0��C���..����#�

����������.���#�$�
�'������.���	����������	������������	#�������������#�����
�����	�����(�����������������	��.���	������	���	�������*�.��������������������0��
1��������	����������	���������������������..������.���	�/��������� ���	������
����������	����#�� ������������������(��������������������..�����	����������� ���
�������-���������  ������	#���������������������&����������(��������		������	#�����
���������		#0��

�

• C�,�#������� ���������������	���/�		��������������,��.��,������	#�����������������
���������	#�������.���� ������������������������������������	�.�����������0��
��
�������	���	��,������������.������ ���#��	�������  ���0��1����/�		�����	���	��,�����������
��	�������������	�����������������	��*�.�	���� �.��������������.����������(�
���	������������������������������0��
�����	�,�	#������/����������������#������ �		����

113



� ��B���

��.���� ��.�����������	�.���������������������/��������������������������������.�#�
/���������,�����������0��%1������������
����������)��,�������������������������
"997�"9�7&�����.�������	������
�����"99B����������������������������� �����
/��,��������.���������������/��	��� ������������������������������������������#�
��������	���������������0����

�

• 1��� �����	������ ����	�� �*�.���� ��/� �#�������� ���/���� ���� ��������� ��� �����
���-���� ���� ��	����� .���� �  ������	#� ����� ���� ��������� ���	�� ��� ��� ���	������ ����
/�#��������������������  ��������������.������������	���	��0�
������.���������������#�
�������	� �		#��� 	���������-��������	�� ����������-���������	�����������.������/��������
��������&����������	�����������0�

�

• 1��� �����	������ ����	�� ����#� ���� ��� ������.���� � � ����  �������	� �����	��#� � � ����
���-���� �������.����.�����	�������.(����	�����������������	�� ����� ���������������
 ��� ���� ��������� ���-���0� 1��� ������.���� /�		� ��,�� ����� �������������� �*�������
����.�� �������� ��� /�		� ��� ������ #���� ���� ����������  ������ ����.��� ���� ������
��	�������������������������0�1��������������� ��������-��������	������������������#�
����#���� ���� �� ������	�� ����������#� ���	#���� ���� �����.������ ������������ ����� ����
/����������0������	����������	���	������	#�����������..���� ������������������ ���
������	��*���������� ����������-���0�

�

• 
������������ ���������	��#(������	������/�		�����������,�� ������������� ����/��	�� 	� ��
�������� � � .����������� ���� �������� ���� ���	����� ����� �� "8� #���� ������(� ���� 	�,�	#�
.�����.�����������  ���������������/�		������E���������.���������	�����&�����������	�
��E����.�������������������(�����������������	�����.�������.�� ��.������0��

�

• C�����.����� � ���� ���,�� �����������/���� �������-����  ��� ��������������� � ��������
���������������!):1����6�!1����	#���������.�	�����������������0�����	������������#�
 ��� .�����.���� ���� .���������� � � �		� ,�#� ���,�0� � 1��� ���,�� ���� �������������� ����
	�,�	#� ��� ���	������.�������������.�	�.�����#�������������������	�����	��.�����
�����������������������0�

�

• C�����.����� �����.��,��� ����������-����	���		#(��������	#����� ���.����������������
	���		#� ���� �������		#� /����� ����� ������� .�#� �.����� ��� �������	��  ��� ���� 2�/�
���	�������������0�

�

• !��������������������� ����� ������������(���	�����	����������.��(�����������������(�
��� ������ ��� ������� ���� ��	�� � � ���� �����  ��� ���������#� ����	��.���� ��� ����
����	��.���0�

�
!�� ���������
���
�
1����������������������������E�����/�������������	��������	�������������/�		����
�� ��.���(�������������.�,���(���	��#����������� ���������������������0��)�����!����*�
���������.������.�	�����������/�� �����������	�.����������������������#(�������������
���#�/�		������,�#������	������� ��������.��������������	���	�������	�.����������������
������������/��,��������E����.����0��5�#�������.�����/�����������������/�����������
/�		��	�������������������	���0��1�������������� ��������	�����/���������� ��.����
�*�������������������������	��������������������������������������������,��(����������

114



� ��<���

����	�������������������#��������#�������	��	����/����������������������0��1�����	������
�����	������.�#�/������������������������ �������0�
�
"�� ���������������
�����
���
�
1������������������/�		���������  �������	�.�����������������	��������������������� �����
�����������������������������0���

• )�����!����*���������������*������������,��/	������ �����������(�� ��	���������
�������/��,�������������������� ������.��������������������������	�������	��#0�
1��#�����	�,�	#��������	������.��	�������������#������#�.�����.����� �����
 ���	��#0���

• 1���+��������#�/�		��������������������������������*�����������(�����������
������� ����������������������������.�����/����.��#�� ������������ �����
���	����(���	����������.������������	���	����������+��������#(��������������������
���#0��

• 1���,�#��	�.������������#�������	�/��	����	���������������	���������	 0�
��/��	��
�	�����	��������������������������(�/����������������(���������������������������
������������������������ �2�������(����������.�����.����� (�����������������
2�/����	����L�����������D������?�����������.���0���

�
1�����������������/��	������������.�����������������������		��.������ ��������-�������
�����	����������.������.��/��	�������������0��
�
1���������	��������	#���������������	�����.�� ��.��������	����0�
������.���������������#�
����������	�����,������������������� ������ �������������������������������������������
��/�������������.�����������������#�����������	�����	���������	���	���/������*������
�����������������.������������������.��� �	�� �����������������������������
�������������(���	��� ���
���#��������������0��
�
1���������������������	���������������������������.��������������������	��������,�������
�������������������#������������������� ��������/�����2����������	#���	������� �
����������	�/�����(�	�/����������������������������.����������/��������������.������� �
����������������	������������	��� ������������	������������������������.���#�����������
������������������.������������ ��������	����0����/����(��������������������#�����������
�����������	������ ����������#0��C��������������������*����������.������������
������������#����������������������������.�������$��������		#�������.��.�.�������
������/�������������	����'������/���������������..��������������������������.��,���
����0�
�
1�����������������.������,����������� ����������*��/������/�������������������������(�
�����������	����������,�#� �����0��1���� ����������������������/�		��������� ���������
������������������������������	�����/���/���	���������������������#�.�,��������
���	�����/��,�����������������������  �����������������/��,����������� ��� ���	������(�
����������������..�����	������	��������/��,�����������.�����$���������� �����������(�
������	��.�������������(����'(��������������������������������(�.����.�����	���������������
����������	���	��$����������������������'�/������E��������������������������������	��#����
��#0���
�

115



� ���9���

�*�����������������	�.�������������/��������������������	�����/�		����������E���������
������������������(��������		#����.��#�� ����.���-�#����������������������D���	��������
1������C���.����������#�/��	����E�������.���������0��
������� ������	��������/�		�
.�������� �������/�������������������������.���	#�������	�.�����������(����������/�		�
����������������/�������.������	�������*��������������0�
�
2����� ������������������	�,�	#���������	���������������� ������������	� ��������������
�����	��$�	��������������������.�#������	�������		������	#����� �����.�� �������� ������#�
���������������������������.���	������������'0��1�����	����#������	��/�		������ ����
�����������,�/�#��� ���������������	�����������������#�����0�
�
#��� $�������
�
��������

��/�		�����*�������� ����������	��������������������(�����������������������������/�#�
�������� ���� �����	����#� ��������(� ���#� ��	����� ��� ������	� ��� �� ������� ���� ��	�� ��
/��,�����/���������������������������������������� ������,���������������	���� ��������0�
1��#�/�		����������*������������	������� ���	�������0�1���� ���	��������/�		�����*�������
���������$�����������	�.�������'>�
� C���*��������!�..��#0�
� C������/�� �����������	�.������������	���		#�����������	�����������������������	�

��������������		#(����	���������/�������������$������������������������/����
)�����!����*'0��

� C�����	#����� �����.��,����	���� ���������	�.����(�������������		#�����	���		#(�
���	��������.��	�.������������������$������������������������/����)�����!����*'0�

� C������.����� ������*�������2�/����	���������������*�(����	����������
����������������(�	��,��������������������������	�K������*�������������� �����
���	�������������,����� ���	��������������������������0�

� C�����������������������#���� ������	�� ������������������� ��.(�������/����.�����
�������������(����	�����������������$�����	���	���	�����������������������/�������
��#������	���� �������������/�		����������E�����'(������	������������������/����
������������������������0�

� C�������������������.���	(����	�����>�
o :�-��������
o ?������������.��
o �*��������������.�����
o C���..��������������������������
o F�������
o �����F	�/�
o 
�����.����

� C����-����������������	�,�	#��.����������������	�/��,��������.�����������������
���������.���	�$�0�0����������.�������������/�������������(����0'0��C������
�����	������/�		������������������������������������#���������������������������
���	����������������	���������	��� ����������(��0�0����������(�/��������������
.�����0��1�����������	�/��,��.��������	���������������/�������/�������������	�����
���������������������	�������(����/�		��������������������*���������������������
����������	������0��1���"99A�?������������6�����������!���#�����.���������
����������������������������������������	����������.���������� �/��,����E�����(�
������������������ �������������������������������0�

116



� �������

� ��������������� ���/��������������������.�#���������������������.���	� ���2�/�
���	���������(��������	��	#������������,��������������� ��������	�����/�����.�����
��	��������������	����������4�����������	��������0�

�

���������������������/��,�����������������������������	����������������������������
���������#�����������������������������������������#�.����������	������������������
���-���(�����������������/�		�������������	���������������/����� ��������������.��������
������0��1����/�#��������������/�		�,��/�/���� �������/��,����#����������������������
�����������/��������#�/�		������������	�������������0�
�
0�	
����������	��
���
)����� ���������������������#�����	�������	���	�������� ������������������������/�����
 ������������������������.����������������	�����.�����	���0��
�
��������������/�		����������������������*�������������� ��������.������������(�
���	����������:�������"99<������	�����������.���� ��.��
�1������#�>��%������
��������>����������������� ������	����������������� ��.����-��������������/��������
��������������0&�
�
%�� �
&�������
1������������,�#������� �����������-�������>�
��
C������������	���������������������������	���� 9849;4�9�
��.�	������� �����������	��� �A4984�9�
:  ����������������������� �������� "=4984�9�
6��-���������������������� �������� 9<49=4�9�
����������������� ������������� �84974�9�
!�������������	���������	�� C������"9�9���/�����
�

 ������	����������,��������.����	��������������� ���������.�	������� ��������E��	��#�
����������	��������������.�#���������� ������������������*�������(���/����(������������
��������#���������������������������.��������.�.����.0�
�

'������&
��
�������
���
������������	�����.���A����������������� �������������(�/���������	����������� ����
.���������B�������� �CA��������#�����.�������������� �		�/���������>�

• :��	�����������������.������	��#��������������������� ��������������������0�

• 6������������	��� �����������*��������������������#(��������������� ������������
,��/	����������*���������������	��.���� ������0�

• �����	����������,�����/���������������������	�.������ ��������� 0�

• ����� �,�#�.�.������ ��������.�������������.����..��.��������������-���0�
�
����
�(��
�������������	�����	�������� �		�/������ ��.�����>�

• 1�������	� �*�������������0�

• 1�����.���(���������#������*���������� �������������	�����	���0�

• 1�������	#������ ��������������0�

• ����.�������.����� ������� ��������������� ��������� ����������� ����������0�

117



� ���"���

• 1���	�,�	#��������� �����#����������	����������������*������0�
�
1������#�������	(�)�����!����*���������+��������#�� �!����*����������������.��	�������
���������#��������	�/���������������������/�		����������#���� ��������������������������
� � ���� .���� �����.���		#� ������������� E��������0� � M��� ���� ����� ���� �������� ���
��������E��	�������������	��� ���.�	��������������..�������(�/�������.�����������/�����
/��,�/����������,�������.������0��1�������������� ��� ��������/��	�������	� �	0���
�
������
�����������)��
&�������
1�����.����	�� �����	������������� �		�/�>�
�

���� �������>������������������������� ���� <���F���"9�9�
��������������������������������#>����������� "=���F���"9�9�$�"�����'�
�����������6���	������	���� �����������/>���� "���
�����
�����������
�������/�����>������������������������ 8���
�����"9�9�
�
!�	�������������������/��/�		�����������������#�
�*�)��� ���(�6��-����
������� �������
���#�������	K�6��	�������
������������������ �)�����!����*��������
���������(����������
� �?��������������������������+��������#�� �!����*0��
 ���	������ �����������/(����� ��.�
����	������������������#�������������������������/���������		�����������	��#� �������
��..����������������/�����������������	�/��������������������,����#������#�
����������	��#� ���������..������0�
�
*+�����
�������
���
�����/�		�������	������������������ �		�/������������>�
�

��
���
��� ��
(��
�(�
�

:����		�E��	��#�� ������������������*��������/��������
��.�������������	��#���� �		#������ #��������� �
�

�
,�

��������*���������������� ��	��� �����������	�����������
�������	��	#������������	��.����� �-��������4����	����������4�
�������������������������	�������

	",�

����	�#����,��/	������������������������ �����������	�.�����
�����������������������������.�����
�

	
,�

6�����$���	����������	������(���/����	�����������������������
��	���������.��� ������4�����'�
�

	",�

�
������&���������&��
���
+���������F�����.�� �
� ��.������C���"999(�.�.������ ��������	��������#������������
����#(�.�#�.�,������E����� ����� ��.����������������������������#�������	0��

� ��.�������������������#���������������.�����/�		�����������������..�����		#�
���������������������-�����������	����������	���������� �	����������������������������0��
C ��������������������������	�.�#�����	������.������		�� �������� ��.�������������E�����
��	����������		�������������������������������#������ ������*�.��������������C��0�
�

118



� ���;���


 �#���������������.����������#��� ��.�������������������������������������..�����		#�
������������������������������(�������������������������������������������������
�� ��.����������������	���	#������� ��������������������������#�������	0�C�#��������
����.�������4������������&����������������..�����		#������������� ��.���������4���
��������������	���	#�.��,������������� �����������0�
�
1��������	�����/�		������������������	���������,��������� ��.���������� �	�������/�		����
��E���������,������ ��.��������� �������	���	�������������	����#�����������	�����.�������
��	�����������#�������	����������.������������	�������������0�
�
�����
����������������
������������������	��������������������������	� �����#���� 	�������/������������������� �
������������������#��������	������ ����������	�������������� ����������������������0�
�

-����
���
�
M�����������������	�������������������������/������.��,�������	�����#�&
��������
	#��������������>�
�

�*�)��� ������6��-����
�������$������	�6��-����'�

�-���6��-�������?�������������
�������������������#�������	��
?��.�A;9(�5�����������
G�����C������
�����
�2;�"D!�
�
������
(�������
��������������������&
��
������������������������(������
.
�����������������������
��&��
��/�-0�-1-����&�&������
� 2�����3���
���
���.
��������������
��������
�
C	���������	#�����������.�#������.��	������.�*0/��� ���N�������������0���0�,��#�
�������.�����������/���������������� �		�/����������	#������������0�
�

�
�
�������������&��
���
�
F��� ��������� ��.�������	��������������
�

• 
�*�)��� ���(�6��-����
�������$������	�6��-����'(����9�"7;�"<;A8�����
.�*0/��� ���N�������������0���0�,��

�

• )�����!����*��������>�6��	�������
�����9�"7;�=98=7�����
���	N/���������*0��.��

�

• +��������#��������>�
���������(����������� �?����������������������(����9�"7;�
B777�B�����0������N�����*0��0�,��

119



� ���A���

�

 ������������ �	������	�������E�����������������������	�������������� �.��������/��������
�����������������#�/�		���������	������/�����	�������/���.�������������	����� �������
���#�������	�����?����������	��(���������
�������$�K��������0���	��N���������
����0���0�,���	>�9�"7;�"<�AA9'0�
�
4
������5���+����5���������������
���
�
1��� �		�/��������.����������� ��.�����������������������	������ ��������/��,�����
������������*���������	���>�
�

• ���������
����������)��,�������������������������"997�"9�7����	������
�����
"99B�

�

• 1���D������?����������	�
������	������ ��!���	�.�����#�6	�����������.����
$!6�'�

�

• 2�/����	����������
������	��(�F������#�"99A�6���������#�?��������D�/�
F������(�F�	�����G�#�6����������(���*���������5�.������:�,	�#���..�����	0��
��..����������#��������������������#�������	0�������������	��	����������������
��E����0�

120


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	11 Update on Work of City Employment Initiatives Team
	12 Interim Work and Skills Plan
	Item 12 Appendix Work Skills plan 2010 pdf - FINAL

	13 Creative Industries Update : Creative Industries Sector : New England House Consultation
	NEH Business Case Consultants Brief


